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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

(ROAN) @

(ROAE)
(O]

187,881 165,766 157,231 154,159 145,545
(2,821,973) (2,489,805) (2,361,610) (2,315,468) (2,186,086)
48,994 45,376 42,878 41,786 41,740
(735,890)  (681,548)  (644,028)  (627,626)  (626,935)

48,015 44,513 42,566 41,629 41,158
(721,185)  (668,585)  (639,341) (625,268)  (618,193)
979 863 312 157 582

(14,705)  (12,962) (4,686) (2,358) (8,742)
517,311 436,661 399,638 379,224 317,740
(7,770,011) (6,558,648) (6,002,563) (5,695,944) (4,772,455)
48,935 48,935 48,935 48,935 48,935
(735,004)  (735,004) (735,004) (735,004)  (735,004)
6,750,433 6,066,714 5,677,691 5,931,050 5,122,292
(101,391,504) (91,122,044)(85,278,919) (89,084,371) (76,936, 826)

9.04 8.21 7.45 7.04 6.49
(136) (123) (112) (106) 7
0.95 0.88 0.84 0.85 0.88
(14) (13) (13) (13) (13)
0.89 0.88 0.84 0.85 0.88
(13) (13) (13) (13) (13)
116,969 102,316 54,074 218,811  (20,835)

(1,756,874) (1,536,786) (812,191) (3,286,541) (-312,942)
(253,064)  (144,573) (133,695) (176,451)  (142,554)
(-3,801,021)(-2,171,486) (-2,008,099) (-2, 650,294) (-2, 141, 161)
100,579 74,042 39,445 110,123 154,229
(1,510,697) (1,112,111) (592,464) (1,654,047) (2,316,520)
342,449 376,009 337,915 385,356 226,364
(5,143,584) (5,647,655) (5,075,483) (5,788,047) (3,399,987)

57,045 56,415 56,724 58,023 56,489
0.76% 0.77% 0.74% 0.76% 0.90%
11.06% 11.36% 11.63% 12.58% 14.26%
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cITIC 1987 cITIC
cITIC cITIC
1985 1987

cITIC 800
(1)2005 cITIC cITIC
(2)2006 11 16  CIFH cITIC

2006 11 22 cITIC
BBVA BBVA
®) 2006 12 31
(4)2007 27
(5)2009 10 23 CIFH 70.32%
(6)2011
25.786
5,273,622,484 2,480, 360,496 46,787,327,034
31,905,164,057 14,882,162,977
)
1.00 2,462,490,897
4.84
2014 12 16 2014 2014
2014 2015 30
4.84 5.55 2,462,490,897 2,147,469,539
1501428 2015 12 31 11,918,455,941.45
11,888,695,194.53
2016 20 2,147,469,539
48,934,796,573
34,052,633,596 14,882,162,977 cITIC
cITIC
(8)2016 350,000,000
48,934,796,573 350,000,000 34,052,633,596
14,882,162,977 350,000,000
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7.01% 88.420
49.61%
24..24% 14.080
73]
24 .38% 68.840
38.63% 36.51%
38.780 66.75% 10.01
18.31%
18.110 10.16%
32.44% 11.100 19.11%
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ciTic 139 (6) 65.37%
2019 12 31
CIFH 7,503 100%
39
1801-4
CNCB 89 1,889 99.05%
21 2106
28 2801
200 51%
777
cITIC 4,000 100%
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55,278 1,767
12,126 41,001 3,828 12,535
21.97% 40,197 70.47% 4,313
7.56% 1,625
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2019
2019 GDP 6.1%
5.7% CPI 2.9%
0.3% % 5.3%
6,199.55
PBOC
LPR
CBIRC
AFRE 2019 M2
198.65 153.11 251.31
8.7% 12.3% 10.7%
2018-2020
7.87%
48.015 13.34% 187.881
1.65% 0.12
175.25% 2.90%
17.27 0.10
683.7 11.27%
6.7504 10.80%
11.68% 4.04
88.420 112,900
38.780
66.75% 10.01
150 700
18.110
32.44% 11.100

19.11%
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7.87% 48.015
2019 2018 %
187,881 165,766 22,115 13.34
127,271 112,912 14,359 12.72
60,610 52,854 7,756 14.67
(54,168) (52,600) (1,568) 2.98
(77,255) (58,233) (19,022) 32.67
56,545 54,326 2,219 4.08
(7,551) (8,950) 1,399 (15.63)
48,994 45,376 3,618 7.97
48,015 44,513 3,502 7.87
2019
13.34% 187.881
67.7% 0.4 32.3%
%
2019 2018
67.7 68.1
32.3 31.9
100.0 100.0
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14.359 12.72% 127.271
2019 2018
(0 (%)
3,834,467 194,891 5.08 3,405,578 173,748 5.10
1,433,945 58,838 4.10 1,142,526 49,474 4.33
383,828 5,949 1.55 456,515 7,049 1.54
311,352 8,067 2.59 353,672 10,675 3.02
35,400 753 2.13 38,077 987 2.59
5,998,992 268,498 4.48 5,396,368 241,933 4.48
3,856,859 80,272 2.08 3,526,276 66,254 1.88
1,015,957 28,391 2.79 842,701 29,778 3.53
583,813 22,186 3.80 496,358 22,416 4.52
243,402 8,118 3.34 271,306 8,937 3.29
70,106 1,679 2.39 57,115 1,623 2.84
10,514 581 5.53 496 13 2.62
5,780,651 141,227 2.44 5,194,252 129,021 2.48
127,271 112,912
2.04 2.00
2.12 2.09
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2019 2018

21,873 (730) 21,143
12,618 (3,254) 9,364
(1,119) 19 (1,100)
(1,278) (1,330) (2,608)
(69) (165) (234)
32,025 (5,460) 26,565
6,215 7,803 14,018
6,116 (7,503) (1,387)
3,953 (4,183) (230)
(918) 99 (819)
369 (313) 56
262 306 568
15,997 (3,791) 12,206
16,028 (1,669) 14,359

0.03 2.12%

0.04 2.04%
4.48Y% 0.04 2.44%
268.498 26.565 10.98%
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21.143 12.17%
194.891
2019 2018

D) (%)

1,435,503 73,365 5.11 1,199,731 62,662 5.22

2,398,964 121,526 5.07 2,205,847 111,086 5.04

3,834,467 194,891 5.08 3,405,578 173,748 5.10

2019 2018

D) Q)

1,945,350 101,049 5.19 1,886,203 95,562 5.07

1,624,870 84,748 5.22 1,341,796 69,541 5.18

264,247 9,094 3.44 177,579 8,645 4.87

3,834,467 194,891 5.08 3,405,578 173,748 5.10

9.364 18.93% 58.838
1.1 15.61% 5.949
2.608
24.43% 8.067
234
23.71% 753
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12.206 9.46% 141.227
14.018 21.16% 80.272

2019 2018
(D) %)
1,494,220 45,357 3.04 1,389,757 40,952 2.95
1,565,110 16,637 1.06 1,505,852 13,408 0.89
3,059,330 61,994 2.03 2,895,609 54,360 1.88
537,023 17,481 3.26 386,994 11,201 2.89
260,506 797 0.31 243,673 693 0.28
797,529 18,278 2.29 630,667 11,894 1.89
3,856,859 80,272 2.08 3,526,276 66,254 1.88

1.387 4.66% 28.391
230 1.03% 22.186
819 9.16% 8.118
56
3.45% 1.679
568 581
2019
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7.756 14.67% 60.610

2019 2018 t
46,384 37,008 9,376 25.34
5,229 6,519 (1,290) (19.79)
8,629 9,046 417) (4.61)
Q@) @ ) 100.00
370 282 88 31.21
60,610 52,854 7,756 14.67
9.376 25.34% 46.384

oL o 10.284
2.506 51.79%
715 12.74%
2.209 36.55%

2019 2018 %
34,800 24,516 10,284 41.95
7,345 4,839 2,506 51.79
4,898 5,613 (715) (12.74)
3,835 6,044 (2,209) (36.55)
1,322 1,269 53 4.18
84 318 (234) (73.58)
52,284 42,599 9,685 22.74
(5,900) (5,591) (309) 5.53
46,384 37,008 9,376 25.34

1.707
13.858 2019
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1.568 2.98% 54.168
2.87 27.84%
2019 2018 %
29,636 29,599 37 0.13
9,238 9,255 an (0.18)
13,440 12,047 1,393 11.56
52,314 50,901 1,413 2.78
1,854 1,699 155 9.12
54,168 52,600 1,568 2.98
) 28.83% 31.73% 2.90
) 27.84% 30.71% 2.87
77.255 19.022
32.67% 21.040 44..06%
68.793
2019 2018 %
68,793 47,753 21,040 44.06
2,103 3,034 (931) (30.69)
4,267 1,074 3,193 297.30
26 (23) 49
390 6,098 (5,708) (93.60)
1,100 (50) 1,150
576 347 229 65.99
77,255 58,233 19,022 32.67
1.399 15.63% 7.551
3.12 13.35%
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11.27% 6,750.433
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
" s
3,997,987 59.2 3,608,412 59.5
10,104 0.2 8,338 0.1
(115,489) (1.7 (101,100) 1.7
3,892,602 57.7 3,515,650 57.9
1,863,351 27.6 1,588,416 26.3
17,021 0.3 15,117 0.2
@ (6.,776) 0.1) (3.370) ©.1)
1,873,596 27.8 1,600,163 26.4
3,672 0.1 3,881 0.1
463,158 6.9 538,708 8.9
325,844 4.8 275,313 4.5
9,954 0.1 10,790 0.2
181,607 2.6 122,209 2.0
6,750,433 100.0 6,066,714 100.0
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10.80%
3,997.987 S7.7% 0.2
92.1%

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
D) ()
3,682,283 92.1 3,511,892 97.3
308,789 7.7 96,520 2.7
6,915 0.2 - -
3,997,987 100.0 3,608,412 100.0

274.935 17.31%
1,863.351

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
D) )
1,234,308 66.3 944,623 59.5
218,491 11.7 189,176 11.9
187,169 10.0 228,618 14.4
160,265 8.6 178,068 11.2
51,658 2.8 40,763 2.6
11,460 0.6 7,168 0.4
1,863,351 100.0 1,588,416 100.0
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(%) (%)
317,546 17.0 308,872 19.4
921,109 49.4 773,178 48.7
621,660 33.4 503,659 31.7
3,036 0.2 2,707 0.2
1,863,351 100.0 1,588,416 100.0
289.685 30.67% 1,234.308
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(%) (%)
345,664 28.0 207,254 22.0
674,782 54.7 491,368 52.0
97,561 7.9 118,121 12.5
115,961 9.4 125,796 13.3
340 - 2,084 0.2
1,234,308 100.0 944,623 100.0
2019 12 31
/ 7/ %
4,467 24/06/2020 2.51% -
4,379 18/07/2022 3.12% -
4,322 18/02/2021 2.96% -
3,919 02/07/2024 3.420% -
3,876 20/08/2029 5.98% -
3,500 20/12/2021 3.79% 0.47
3,499 28/04/2020 4.20% 0.47
3,445 14/08/2024 3.240% -
2,999 08/03/2021 3.250 0.89
10 2,990 28/03/2022 3.50% 0.40
37,396 2.23
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3.672
5.39%%
24

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2,914 2,759
758 1,122
3,672 3,881

20
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

2,886,296 5,203 5,176 1,845,632 6,106 5,974
1,513,070 11,700 10,928 2,595,674 24,826 24,501
12,715 214 732 59,464 1,059 1,171
4,412,081 17,117 16,836 4,500,770 31,991 31,646

3.494 1.168

2.326

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
3,494 2,928
3,491 2,429
3 499
(1,168) (725)
(1,168) (449)
- (276)
2,326 2,203
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2018 / / 2019
12 31 @ o3
@ 101,154 68,793 (60,686) 6,609 115,870
® 4,394 4,267 (276) 4 8,389
® 243 26 . 1 270
®) 12,072 2,493 (10,387) (130) 4,048
4,543 1,100 . 3 5,646
122,406 76,679 (71,349) 6,487 134,223
725 576 (205) 72 1,168
725 576 (205) 72 1,168
123,131 77,255 (71,554) 6,559 135,391
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10.76% 6,217.909
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
% "
240,298 3.9 286,430 5.1
4,073,258 65.5 3,649,611 65.0
1,043,661 16.8 897,622 16.0
111,838 1.8 120,315 2.1
650,274 10.4 552,483 9.9
) 98,580 1.6 107,167 1.9
6,217,909 100.0 5,613,628 100.0
422.397 11.68%
4,038.820 0.5
65.5% 3,160.650 256.736
8.84Y% 878.170 165.661 23.25%
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(%) (%)
1,674,923 41.1 1,521,684 41.7
1,485,727 36.5 1,382,230 37.9
83,539 2.1 86,739 2.4
3,160,650 77.6 2,003,914 79.6
275,526 6.8 262,960 7.2
602,644 14.8 449,549 12.3
878,170 21.6 712,509 19.5
4,038,820 99.2 3,616,423 99.1
34,438 0.8 33,188 0.9
4,073,258 100.0 3,649,611 100.0
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(0 (%)
3,700,005 90.8 3,283,244 90.0
373,253 9.2 366,367 10.0
4,073,258 100.0 3,649,611 100.0

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(0 ()
13,540 0.3 12,749 0.4
1,012,398 24.9 889,733 24.4
1,064,584 26.1 891,975 24.4
709,706 17.4 657,033 18.0
534,637 13.1 486,734 13.3
405,283 10.0 376,039 10.3
85,017 2.1 83,730 2.3
248,093 6.1 251,618 6.9
4,073,258 100.0 3,649,611 100.0
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532.524 17.53%
78.083 123.38%
7.361 39.70%
2019
2018 12 31 48,935 34,955 58,977 5,269 108,705 179,820 16,425 453,086
48,015 979 48,994
2,092 110 2,202
43,128 (1,825) 41,303
11,839  (24,424) (476)  (13,061)
2019 12 31 48,935 78,083 58,977 7,361 120,544 203,411 15,213 532,524
10.80% 3,997.987
1.65% 0.12 175.25%
17.27 2.90% 0.10
1,955.519
74.394 3.95% 1,730.814
246.324 16.5%%
43.29% 2.15 68.857
1.801 288 0.01
0.12
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
0 D) (%) (%)
1,955,519 48.91 50,923 2.60 1,881,125 52.13 49,122 2.61
1,730,814 43.29 15,194 0.88 1,484,490 41.14 14,906 1.00
311,654 7.80 0.00 0.00 242,797 6.73 0.00 0.00
3,997,987 100.00 66,117 1.65 3,608,412 100.00 64,028 1.77
153.661 2,220.741
1.74 55.54% 167.057
1,465.592 0.67
36.66%
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

(0 Q)

976,047 24.41 806,153 22.34

489,545 12.25 492,382 13.65

1,822,815 45.59 1,658,485 45.96

397,926 9.95 408,595 11.32

3,686,333 92.20 3,365,615 93.27

311,654 7.80 242,797 6.73

3,997,987 100.00 3,608,412 100.00

1,224 .035 920.846 598.313
30.61% 23.03% 14.97%
17.35% 15.39% 9.46%
45.106 68.22%
4.820 0.69
2.070 0.29
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(%) (%) ) )
™ 1,224,035  30.61 23,401 1.901 1,123,293  31.13 25,050 2.23
920,846  23.03 7,711 0.84 784,722  21.75 9,146 1.17
508,313  14.97 12,499 2.09 549,491  15.23 7,679 1.40
474,109  11.86 9,206 1.94 433,143  12.00 7,136 1.65
534,366  13.37 7,192 1.35 463,100  12.83 8,479 1.83
77,694 1.904 4,125 5.31 75,682 2.10 5,068 6.70
168,624 422 1,983 1.18 178,981 4.96 1,470 0.82
3,097,987  100.00 66,117 1.65 3,608,412 100.00 64,028 1.77
352.732 288.975
18.04% 3.01
14.78% 1.85
28.73% 24.77% 19.74%
15.687 11.861 54.10%
5.955 1.002
1.25 0.42
2.344 1.902 1.304 532
0.84 0.40 1.14
0.17
724 365
0.48 0.37
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
0 D) (%) (%)
257,675 13.18 15,687 6.09 295,005 15.68 21,642 7.34
288,975 14.78 3,426 1.19 312,923 16.63 1,082 0.35
146,883 7.51 11,861 8.08 151,391 8.05 12,863 8.50
152,127 7.78 1,367 0.90 151,038 8.03 2,001 1.38
268,942 13.75 799 0.30 208,922 11.11 267 0.13
94,701 4.84 2,462 2.60 79,086 4.20 1,158 1.46
352,732 18.04 3,944 1.12 282,699 15.03 2,042 0.72
66,215 3.39 945 1.43 72,938 3.88 1,310 1.80
12,743 0.65 5 0.04 13,366 0.71 0 0.00
314,526 16.08 10,427 3.32 313,757 16.68 6,667 2.12
1,955,519 100.00 50,923 2.60 1,881,125 100.00 49,122 2.61

2019 12 31 2018 12 31 2017 12 31

Q)
) 10 2.27 2.44 2.25

10 @ @ 50 13.12 14.49 16.88

10 10
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2019 12 31
(%) (%)
A 14,427.09 0.36 2.27
B 12,416.93 0.31 1.95
C 9,483.93 0.24 1.49
D 7,456.01 0.19 1.17
E 7,127.68 0.18 1.12
F 7,095.32 0.18 1.12
G 6,800.00 0.17 1.07
H 6,435.00 0.16 1.01
1 6,193.70 0.15 0.97
J 6,006.30 0.15 0.94
83,441.97 2.09 13.12
10 83.442 2.09%
13.12%
CBRC

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
Q) (0
3,931,870 98.35 3,544,384 98.23
3,843,061 96.13 3,459,343 95.87
88,809 2.22 85,041 2.36
66,117 1.65 64,028 1.77
31,132 0.78 26,141 0.72
30,080 0.75 30,779 0.85
4,905 0.12 7,108 0.20
3,997,987 100.00 3,608,412 100.00

96.13% 0.26 - 3.768
2.22% 0.14
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66.117 2.089
0.12 1.65%
@
)
2019
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 2017 12 31
) 1.80 2.53 1.96
) 23.03 48.27 35.16
) 23.97 73.53 46.05
) 8.77 41.91 32.05
) 1.83 1.63 1.45
1.83% 0.20
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
%) (%)
3,893,978 97.40 3,511,853 97.32
)
1-90 53,866 1.35 37,391 1.04
91-180 13,976 0.35 13,181 0.37
181 36,167 0.90 45,987 1.27
104,009 2.60 96,559 2.68
3,097,987 100.00 3,608,412 100.00
91 50,143 1.25 59,168 1.64
@ 22,792 0.57 21,588 0.60
7.450 104.009
0.08
90 1.25%
0.39
1.204 22.792 0.03
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
N/A 7,002
101,154 97,905
! 68,793 47,753
(60,686) (46,938)
5,042 2,441
@ 1,567 0
115,870 101,154
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115.870 14.716
175.25%
2.90% 17.27 0.10
68.793 21.040
@ )
®
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
426,226 393,851
147,154 158,813
103,981 92,924
52,211 40,029
545,503 434,590
1,275,075 1,120,207
- 12,934
3,457 5,356
444,387 473,399
1,722,919 1,611,896
14.653 116.969
108.491 253.064
26.537 100.579
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2019 )
116,969 14.3
417,812 113.1
50,330 (45.1)
()
(440,025) .4)
(44,840) (202.0)
(253,064) 75.0
1,940,528 39.0
(2,190, 629) 42.7
100,579 35.8
586,270 (36.4)
39,993 1,096.3
(486,792) (40.3)

IFRS
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30%

2019
2019 )
6,865 37.6
17,117 (46.5)
12,390 -
32,095 38.5
87,556 140.1
16,836 (46.8)
8,865 80.2
10,896 -
78,083 123.4
7,361 39.7
(76,679) 32.5
(576) 66.0
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2019 2018
() () (D) ()
93,790 49.9 22,764 40.3 87,823 53.0 25,573 47.1
71,284 37.9 19,633 34.7 57,525 34.7 16,623 30.6
19,476 10.4 14,941 26.4 16,712 10.1 12,529 23.1
3,331 1.8 (793)  (1.4) 3,706 2.2 (399)  (0.8)
187,881  100.0 56,545  100.0 165,766  100.0 54,326  100.0
2019
31
2019 CIFH CNCB
CITIC
2019 12 31 2019
() ©)
(D) (D) (D)
2,733,418 40.7 3,312,559 53.3 37,148 65.7
1,400,247 20.8 1,021,511 16.4 10,891 19.3
810,404 12.1 624,170 10.0 3,226 5.7
1,440,563 21.4 1,212,606 19.5 2,980 5.3
656,139 9.8 554,658 8.9 4,337 7.7
585,993 8.7 457,021 7.4 (2,804) (5.0)
106,531 1.6 94,420 1.5 (2,539) (4.5)
338,452 5.0 272,066 4.4 3,306 5.8
(1,353,409) (20.1)  (1,331,112) (21.4) - -
6,718,338 100.0 6,217,899 100.0 56,545 100.0
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2018 12 31 2018
@ @
(%) (%) ()
2,445,696 40.5 2,084,629 37.1 25,144 46.3
1,184,230 19.6 1,191,150 21.2 10,980 20.2
812,520 13.5 800,478 14.3 8,020 14.8
1,255,616 20.8 1,228,822 21.9 6,532 12.0
594,775 9.8 596,075 10.6 4,134 7.6
539,071 8.9 524,880 9.4 (229) 0.4)
97,329 1.6 106,680 1.9 (3.537) (6.5)
338,573 5.6 282,868 5.0 3,282 6.0
(1,224,270) (20.3)  (1,201,970) (21.4) - -
6,043,540 100.0 5,613,612 100.0 54,326 100.0
37
Tier2 40 40
2012 CBRC
0.03
12.44% Tierl 0.77 10.20%
Tierl 0.07 8.69%

2020

70/407



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

2019 12 31 2018 12 31 ) 2017 12 31
Tierl 444,203 403,354 40,849 366,567
Tierl 77,555 37,768 39,787 36,811
Tierl 521,758 441,122 80,636 403,378
Tier2 114,139 142,271 (28,132) 99,443
635,897 583,393 52,504 502,821
5,113,585 4,677,713 435,872 4,317,502
Tierl 8.69% 8.62% 0.07 8.49%
Tierl 10.20% 9.43% 0.77 9.34%
12.44% 12.47% 0.03 11.65%
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 %) 2017 12 31
6.71% 6.37% 0.34 6.18%
Tierl 521,758 441,122 80,636 403,378
7,780,321 6,928,004 852,317 6,527,276

() 2015 [2015]

IR

http://www._citichank.com/about/investor/financialaffairs/gglzb/
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Altyn

151
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1,401 37
41
9,060
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€))
2019 12 31
1) 1)
49,284,811,106 @

@

@ 34,052,648,129 14,882,162,977 350,000,000

®) 2019 100 40

2019 11 2025
2019 19 2018 2019 22
7.45 7.22
39(F)
2019 12 31
1.00 48,934,811,106
100.00 350,000,000
)
43(i)

@)
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€©))

2014 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
479,216

2015 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
479,216

2016 20 2,147,469,539 2,147,469,539 )

32,255

2016 12 31 34,052,633,596 34,052,633,596
511,471

2017 12 31 34,052,633,596 34,052,633,596
511,471

2018 12 31 34,052,633,596 34,052,633,596
511,471

2019 11 14,533 14,533 @

2019 12 31 0

2019 12 31 34,052,648,129 34,052,648,129
511,471

(1)2016 20 2,147,469,539
48,934,796,573 2,147,469,539
@ 105,000 14,533

39(F)

€Y)

741407
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2014 12 31 14,882,162,977, 14,882,162,977,
223,530

2015 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977,
223,530

2016 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
223,530

2017 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
223,530

2018 12 31 14,882,162,977, 14,882,162,977,
223,530

2019 12 31 14,882,162,977, 14,882,162,977,
223,530

)

2016 11 350,000,000 0 @

2016 12 31 350,000,000 0

2017 12 31 350,000,000 0

2018 12 31 350,000,000 0

2019 12 31 350,000,000 0

€Y)
(@) 2016 10 21 100.00 350
2016 11
Q)
163,940 134,506

29,434

751407
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®)
% 2019 12 31
(@) %)
CITIC 31,988,728,773 65.37
HKSCC 11,555,133,994 23.61
30
2,147,469,539 4.39
55
1,114,065,677 2.28
28
46,805,397,983 95.65
(LCITIC HKSCC
(2)HKSCC HKSCC
cITIC
3)CITIC cITIC cITIC cITIC
cITIC 65.97%
32,284,227,773 28,938,928,294 3,345,299,479
cITIC 65.37% 31,988,728,773
28,938,928,294 3,049,800,479
) HKSCC 4.685%
2,292,579,000
HKSCC 0.314% 153,686,000
2019 12 31 %
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31 10

2019 12 31

) ) )
- 43,860,000  12.53 - - -

- 38,430,000 10.98 - - -

005L  FH002
- 38,400,000  10.97 - - -
005L  CT001
- 30,700,000  8.77 - - -
- 30,700,000  8.77 - - -
- 30,700,000  8.77 - - -
- 21,930,000  6.27 - - -
- 15,350,000  4.39 - - -
- 10,960,000  3.13 - - -
- 8,770,000  2.51 - - -
- 8,770,000  2.51 - - -
@
@
005L  FH002 005L CT001
10
®)

771407
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10%
50%
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
74,255 74,251
7,280 4
12 31 81,535 74,255
GAAP IFRS
CBIRC % Tierl % Tierl %
3.80%
2016 10 26

48
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10%

10
@

11
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11 0

33.7361

2019 2019 12 31
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22 19%

2020 12
2019 12
31
LI Qingping cITIC cITIC
1962 10
cITIC
CIFH cITIC
CITIC ai
2016 20
2014
2016
2014 2014
2013
cITIC cITIC
2014 cITIC
2015 12 cITIC cITIC
cITIC 2017
12 cITIC 2017
CITIC ai 2015
CIFH 2014
cITIC
2009 2013
2009 2009
2007 2008 12
1984
2007
30
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2018 2018
CAO Guogiang CITIC
1964 12 2018 2019 CITIC
2015 12 2018
2015 2018
CITIC
2018 2018
2017 12
2016 10
2013 12
2015 12 2018
2009 10 2016
CIFH CNCBI 2005 12
2014 CNCBI
2005
2015 10
1992 12 2005
1988 1992
PBOC
30
2018 2019
FANG Heying) 2019
1966 2017 2014
2014 11 2019
CNCBI CIFH
2014 2019 CNCB
2013 2015
2014
2007 2013
2003
2007
1996 12 2003
1996 1996 12
1992 12 1996
1991 1992 12
20
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2019
GUO Danghuai) 2014
1964 2014 11 CIFH CNCB
CITIC ai
2015
2019 12
2013 2014
2010 2013
2006 2010
2005 2006
2001 2005
2000 11 2001
CITIC
1999 2000 11
1986 1999
30
2016 11
HUANG Fang 2015 11
1973 2013
2011
2010 10
2011
1992 2010
2016
WAN Liming 2018 12
1966 2011 11 2018
11
2009 12 2011 11
2007
2009 12
1996 2007
1996
1996
1988 1996
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HE Cao
1955

2016
2002
12
20
2012
19

2002
2013
2009
2009
2014
13
07
20
1979
86
1987

1979

Tierl

2010

2004
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CHEN Lihua
1962

2016

40

2019
CwT
1999
2001

2005 2006

1983
1988 1998
1999 2000

European Journal of
Operational Research Proceeding of Workshop
on Internet and Network Economics
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2016 12
QIAN Jun 2017
1970 2014 2017
EMBA/DBA/EE
2013 12 2016 12
Review of Finance 2013
2017
EMBA
2009 2013
2000 2013
2000 2006
2006 2013
2011 2013 Haub
2011 Frontiers of
Economics in China
2007 2009
2007 2008
MIT
2002
1988 1991
1993
2000
American Economic Review Journal of
Finance Journal of Financial Economics
Journal of Financial and Quantitative Analysis
Journal of International Economics
China’ s Great Economic Transformation
Emerging Giants: China and India in the World
Economy China’ s Emerging Financial Markets:
Challenges and Opportunities Global
Perspectives of Rule of Law
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2018
YAN Lap Kei lIsaac 1984
1960 10 1987 KPMG
1988 KPMG
1989
1993
1998
2000 2017 KPMG
KPMG
CBRC
CSRC

91/407



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

oOoOooodn

2018
LIU Cheng 2019 10
1967 12 AFCA
2008 2018
2004 12 2008
2003 2004 12
1995
2003
1989
1995
2001
2019
DENG Changging 2019 11
1973 2020
2014 11 2019
2016 2019
2009
2014 11
2007 2009
2000 2007
2019
JIA Xiangsen) 2016
1955 2010
2014
2008 2010
1983 12 2008
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ZHENG Wei)
1974 1988
1999
2016
2016
2017
2018 11
1999
2000
2019 2020
WEI Guobin
1959 2016 2019
2012 2016
2007
2012
1998 2007
2005 2007
1992
1998
1982 1998
2019 12
LI Gang 2018 2019 12
1969 2015 2018
2015
2018
2012 2015
2012
2009
2012
2009 2009
2005 2009
2001 2005
EMBA
2018
CHEN Panwu) 2014 12
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42,878 54,061
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56) 3.8

1.30

173/407



()

)

400

2019 12 31

CBIRC

CBIRC

1,330

EDINETCI I
e o o o o e o {053 )
OooooOodd

(CBRC No.56 [2012])

7.07
Tier
2019 12
( ) 2019 12 11
100 4.20
CBIRC
CBIRC
Tier
Tier
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
( ) ( )
517,311 436,661
439,228 401,706
78,083 34,955
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6,789 4,521
45,422 35,508
52,211 40,029
426,226 393,851
545,503 434,590
147,154 158,813
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1,275,075 1,120,207
)
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
( ) ( )
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26,809 (38,392) (20,552) 32,135 —
79,008 31,636 7,480 9,147 127,271
12,591 39,017 929 (6,153) 46,384
2,191 631 11,067 337 14,226
93,790 71,284 19,476 3,331 187,881
(1,938) (1,119) (1,399) (1,610) (6,066)
(18,012) (26,462) (2,340) (1,288) (48,102)
(51,076) (24,070) (796) (737) (76,679)

— — — (576) (576)

— — — (15) (15)

— — — 102 102

22,764 19,633 14,941 (793) 56,545
(7,551)

48,994

1,484 891 1,074 999 4,448
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) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2,305,553 1,315,035 1,763,646 1,330,432 6,714,666
— — 112 3,560 3,672
32,095

6,750,433

3,274,306 1,876,042 864,467 203,084 6,217,899
10
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53,524 60,669 26,282 (27,563) 112,912
20,376 (32,179) (18,935) 30,738 —
73,900 28,490 7,347 3,175 112,912
11,253 24,699 1,123 (67) 37,008
2,670 4,336 8,242 598 15,846
87,823 57,525 16,712 3,706 165,766
(1,040) (552) (640) (710) (2,942)
(19,136) (25,055) (3,356) (2,111) (49, 658)
(42,074) (15,295) (187) (330) (57,886)
— — — (347) (347)
— — — 35 35
— — — (642) (642)
25,573 16,623 12,529 (399) 54,326
(8,950)
45,376
1,394 769 851 1,089 4,103
2018 12 31
) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2,328,330 1,155,488 1,488,115 1,067,726 6,039,659
— — 118 3,763 3,881
23,174
6,066,714
3,046,177 1,538,976 716,638 311,821 5,613,612
16
5,613,628
1,027,283 92,924 — — 1,120,207
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35,906 22,013 6,971 21,000 21,457 2,331 11,490 6,103 — 127,271
( ) (9,879) (5,000) 13,226 (6,403) (9,536) (501) 18,314 (221) — —
26,027 17,013 20,197 14,597 11,921 1,830 29,804 5,882 — 127,271
2,852 2,421 4,232 1,634 1,475 325 32,132 1,313 — 46,384
) 593 199 467 130 175 37 11,753 872 — 14,226
29,472 19,633 24,896 16,361 13,571 2,192 73,689 8,067 — 187,881
(933) (755) (894) (695) (842) (228) (1,190) (529) — (6,066)
(8,004) (5,844) (7,448) (5,015) (4,642) @1,221) (12,978) (2,950) — (48,102)
(9,475) (9,808) (13,369) (6.247) (10,820) (3,263) (22,527) (1,170) — (76,679)
(169) — (205) 67) G 19) — 5) — (576)
— — — — — — — (15) — (15)
— — — — — — 154 52) — 102
10,891 3,226 2,980 4,337 (2,804) (2,539) 37,148 3,306 — 56,545
(7,551)
48,994
475 168 235 125 621 44 2,571 209 — 4,448
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1,400,247 810,404 1,440,563 656,139 585,993 106,531 2,730,391 327,807 (1,353,409) 6,714,666
— — — — — — 3,027 645 — 3,672
32,095
6,750,433
1,021,511 624,170 1,212,606 554,658 457,021 94,420 3,312,559 272,066 (1,331,112) 6,217,899
10
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26,679 17,920 14,234 16,865 17,332 2,334 11,644 5,904 112,912
( (3,327) (300) 6,477 (2,907) (5,703) (489) 6,578 (329) —
23,352 17,620 20,711 13,958 11,629 1,845 18,222 5,575 112,912
3,047 2,756 4,571 1,603 1,603 341 21,648 1,439 37,008
D)) 991 216 638 112 103 26 12,979 781 15,846
27,390 20,592 25,920 15,673 13,335 2,212 52,849 7,795 165,766
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(7,404) (5,628) (7,581) (5,066) (5,062) (1,194) (14,892) (2,831) (49,658)
(8,378) (6,669) (11,366) (6,131) (8,000) (4,419) (11,821) (1,102) (57,886)
(113) © (66) — (83) © — ) (€2)
— — — — — — — 35 35
— — — — — — (288) (354) (642)
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331 1,017 171 144 311 42 1,641 446 4,103

186/407



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o A (=S(0 ST oY)

(

)

ooooooo
2018 12 31
) ) ( )« ) ) ( ) ) ) ) )
1,184,230 812,520 1,255,616 594,775 539,071 97,329 2,442,818 337,570 (1,224,270) 6,039,659
— — — — — — 2,878 1,003 — 3,881
23,174
6,066,714
1,191,150 800,478 1,228,822 596,075 524,880 106,680 2,084,629 282,868 (1,201,970) 5,613,612
16
5,613,628
189,531 133,112 125,076 140,766 77,284 10,914 427,397 16,127 — 1,120,207
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)
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) 10 10
18.96 (2018 12 31 21.66
)
12 ECL ECL
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2,098 1,790
62,017 54,860
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2019 12 31
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) ) ) ) )
456,813 — — — 456,813
121,297 — — — 121,297
204,547 — — — 204,547

— — — 17,117 17,117

9,954 — — — 9,954
3,798,800 71,130 15,757 6,915 3,892,602

— — — 317,546 317,546
907,906 10,458 5,870 — 924,234
628,457 123 200 — 628,780

— — — 3,036 3,036

31,138 2,118 728 — 33,984
6,158,912 83,829 22,555 344,614 6,609,910
1,266,571 8,316 188 — 1,275,075
7,425,483 92,145 22,743 344,614 7,884,985
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2018 12 31
( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) )
532,520 — — — 532,520
99,153 — — — 99,153
176,159 — 1 — 176,160

— — — 31,991 31,991
10,790 — — — 10,790

C () 3,425,701 70,888 19,061 — 3,515,650

— — — 308,872 308,872
773,878 3,738 622 — 778,238
510,020 105 221 — 510,346

_ _ — 2,707 2,707
17,440 2,191 4,667 — 24,298

5,545,661 76,922 24,572 343,570 5,990,725
1,114,830 5,257 120 — 1,120,207
6,660,491 82,179 24,692 343,570 7,110,932
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2019 12 31
( )« ) ( ) ( ) (C DI ¢ ) ( )
C (1)
3,143,219 621,373 69,770 — 3,834,362 (35,562) 3,798,800
2,154 11,153 83,911 — 97,218 (26,088) 71,130
— — — 69,596 69,596 (53,839) 15,757
830,071 80,948 501 — 911,520 (3,614) 907,906
— 10,792 — — 10,792 (334) 10,458
— — — 8,698 8,698 (2,828) 5,870
577,688 50,769 — — 628,457 (1,331) 628,457
— 123 — — 123 ®) 123
— — — 200 200 (297) 200
4,553,132 775,158 154,182 78,494 5,560,966 (123,896) 5,438,701
2018 12 31
( ) ( ) ) ( ) ( ) ) ( )
C ()
2,713,135 683,890 60,616 — 3,457,641 (31,940) 3,425,701
414 9,373 83,889 — 93,676 (22,788) 70,888
— — — 65,433 65,433 (46,372) 19,061
671,939 104,619 — — 776,558 (2,680) 773,878
— 3,890 — — 3,890 (152) 3,738
— — — 1,160 1,160 (538) 622
493,858 16,162 — — 510,020 @727) 510,020
— 105 — — 105 0 105
— — — 221 221 (310) 221
3,879,346 818,039 144,505 66,814 4,908,704 (105,509) 4,804,234
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( ) ( ) ( )
3,457,641 93,676 65,433
(113,799) 42,217 —
— — 71,582
486,777 (38,913) (6,733)
— — (60, 686)
3,743 238 —
3,834,362 97,218 69,596
2018 12 31
) ( ) ( )
3,036,736 92,227 67,933
(84,271) 11,115 —
— — 73,156
495,119 (10,215) (28,961)
— — (46,938)
10,057 549 243
3,457,641 93,676 65,433
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1,286,574 3,995 1,385
(11,260) — —
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— — 892
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1,539,977 10,915 8,898
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( ) ( ) ( )
1,064,552 347 45
(8,430) — —
— 3,875 —
— — 4,555
227,172 (236) (2,528)
— — (689)
3,280 9 2
1,286,574 3,995 1,385
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32,072 22,788 46,372
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— 6,134 —

— — 42,339
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327 5,747 21,153

— — (60, 686)

175 29 6,413
36,015 26,088 53,853

2018 12 31
) ( ) ( )

30,664 24,674 42,565
(1,870) — —
— 515 —

— — 48,640
4,702 (1,838) (1,337)
(1,540) (625) 1,107
— — (46,938)

116 62 2,335
32,072 22,788 46,372
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2019 12 31
) ( ) )
3,407 154 848
(56) — —
— 195 —
— — 138
1,610 12) 2,135
(23) — 190
— — (186)
) — —
4,945 337 3,125
2018 12 31
) ( ) )
3,953 10 31
(239) — —
— 144 —
— — 1,843
370 — —
(703) — (341)
— — (689)
26 — 4
3,407 154 848
ECL
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
( ( ( (
) ) ) )
352,732 8.8 190,879 282,699 7.8 177,013
288,975 7.2 256,672 312,923 8.7 273,640
268,942 6.7 124,285 208,922 5.8 106,882
257,675 6.4 114,547 295,005 8.2 140,199
152,127 3.8 70,036 151,038 4.2 76,331
146,883 3.7 87,346 151,391 4.2 89,064
94,701 2.4 44,461 79,086 2.2 31,980
66,215 1.7 47,132 72,938 2.0 40,669
12,743 0.3 6,733 13,366 0.4 2,721
314,526 7.8 135,663 313,757 8.6 128,377
1,955,519 48.8 1,077,754 1,881,125 52.1 1,066,876
1,730,814 43.2 1,142,987 1,484,490 41.0 1,000,203
311,654 7.7 — 242,797 6.7 —
10,104 0.3 — 8,338 0.2 —
4,008,091 100.0 2,220,741 3,616,750 100.0 2,067,079
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) ( )« ) ( )
1,224,035 30.5 420,248 1,123,293 31.1 426,447
920,846 23.0 592,602 784,722 21.7 507,327
598,313 14.9 472,112 549,491 15.2 448,719
534,366 13.3 329,238 463,100 12.8 296,286
474,109 11.8 275,498 433,143 12.0 269,765
77,694 1.9 55,767 75,682 2.1 51,582
168,624 4.3 75,276 178,981 4.9 66,953
10,104 0.3 — 8,338 0.2 —
4,008,091 100.0 2,220,741 3,616,750 100.0 2,067,079
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976,047 806,154
489,545 492,382
2,220,741 2,067,079
1,822,815 1,658,484
397,926 408,595
3,686,333 3,365,615
311,654 242,797
10,104 8,338
4,008,091 3,616,750
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
( ) ) ) )
22,792 0.57 21,588 0.60
10,800 0.27 18,748 0.52

2019 12 31
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490,734 175,718 14,895 1,786 — 683,133
94,455 — — 6,062 — 100,517

— 102 346 — — 448
35,558 321,254 6,151 25,349 9,531 397,843
44,596 36,881 11,023 15,593 9,188 117,281
185,854 — 406 — 17 186,277
157,194 — — — — 157,194

1,008,391 533,955 32,821 48,790 18,736 1,642,693
2018 12 31

D)) AAA AA A A

( ( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) ) )
371,368 114,370 11,693 265 — 497,696
108,816 8,664 — 7,016 — 124,496

178 29 1,666 — — 1,873
26,995 181,031 4,569 23,595 9,591 245,781
55,240 48,675 10,047 7,230 6,254 127,446
228,392 — — — — 228,392
178,019 — — — — 178,019
969,008 352,769 27,975 38,106 15,845 1,403,703
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ce»
( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
1.55 463,158 17,743 445,415 — — -
2.00 121,297 1,349 53,285 66,663 — —
2.82 204,547 1,218 149,333 39,546 14,450 —
2.13 9,954 - 9,954 — — -
C ) 5.08 3,892,602 9,958 1,580,543 1,155,741 317,997 828,363
317,546 219,536 49,923 26,845 15,508 5,734
4.39 924,234 112 362,026 78,763 367,340 115,993
3.66 628,780 427 44,913 92,694 348,325 142,421
3,036 3,036 — — — —
185,279 185,279 — — — —
6,750,433 438,658 2,695,392 1,460,252 1,063,620 1,092,511
3.34 240,298 — 11,358 228,940 — —
2.79 951,122 2,710 702,939 245,473 — —
2.84 92,539 484 57,432 31,714 2,909 —
847 716 131 — — —
2.39 111,838 23 80,155 31,660 — —
2.08 4,073,258 50,932 2,782,857 645,144 593,397 928
3.80 650,274 3,512 71,769 458,267 9,022 107,704
4.68 10,896 790 11 108 5,303 4,684
86,837 86,837 — — — —
6,217,908 146,004 3,706,652 1,641,306 610,631 113,316
532,524 292,654 (1,011,260) (181,054) 452,989 979,195

204/407



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

OooooOodd
2018 12 31
CC»
( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
1.54 538,708 17,047 521,661 — — —
2.22 99,153 114 94,039 5,000 — —
3.38 176,160 873 129,236 46,051 — —
2.59 10,790 — 10,790 — — —
C ) 4.86 3,515,650 8,635 1,577,525 918,215 996,066 15,209
308,872 225,164 28,057 26,624 20,915 8,112
4.71 778,238 8,541 67,972 181,186 388,840 131,699
3.80 510,346 8,529 42,830 73,607 288,337 97,043
2,707 2,707 — — — —
126,090 124,208 1,711 171 — —
6,066,714 395,818 2,473,821 1,250,854 1,694,158 252,063
3.29 286,430 — 68,350 218,080 — —
3.54 782,264 4,151 553,283 224,660 170 —
3.49 115,358 241 83,859 31,224 — 34
962 962 — — — —
2.84 120,315 35 110,790 9,490 — —
1.88 3,649,611 20,940 2,605,686 647,223 375,730 32
4.52 552,483 4,155 98,144 247,974 95,260 106,950
106,205 104,823 1,382 — — —
5,613,628 135,307 3,521,494 1,378,651 471,160 107,016
453,086 260,511 (1,047,673) (127,797) 1,222,998 145,047
)
() 2019 12 31 (
43,791 (2018 12 31 42,289 )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
100 (11,471) (3,407) (11,435) (1,409)
100 11,471 3,407 11,435 1,409
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2019 12 31
( ( (
( ) ) ) ) ( )
445,569 16,679 694 216 463,158
96,334 16,579 2,598 5,786 121,297
123,725 55,649 20,516 4,657 204,547
9,954 — — — 9,954
3,655,998 112,700 105,842 18,062 3,892,602
293,217 20,862 3,467 — 317,546
922,228 2,006 — — 924,234
538,355 64,153 17,903 8,369 628,780
2,557 178 301 — 3,036
175,304 4,679 4,550 746 185,279
6,263,241 293,485 155,871 37,836 6,750,433
240,298 — — — 240,298
942,867 7,842 331 82 951,122
75,315 16,858 216 150 92,539
715 132 — — 847
111,838 — — 111,838
3,700,005 200,762 154,291 18,200 4,073,258
628,885 21,389 — — 650,274
10,183 4 559 150 10,896
80,992 1,724 3,855 266 86,837
5,791,098 248,711 159,252 18,848 6,217,909
472,143 44,774 (3,381) 18,988 532,524
1,169,606 84,385 13,294 7,790 1,275,075
C () (9,194) (27,398) 45,836 (7,770) 1,474
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2018 12 31
( ( (
( ) ( )
) ) )
525,321 12,668 535 184 538,708
64,670 23,757 2,429 8,297 99,153
123,262 41,291 9,137 2,470 176,160
9,832 958 — — 10,790
3,263,386 122,573 109,773 19,918 3,515,650
287,997 18,146 2,729 — 308,872
775,749 2,489 — 778,238
429,671 50,766 23,970 5,939 510,346
2,340 155 212 — 2,707
121,762 1,858 515 1,955 126,090
5,603,990 274,661 149,300 38,763 6,066,714
286,430 — — 286,430
777,789 2,582 131 1,762 782,264
101,094 14,139 125 — 115,358
— 962 — — 962
120,097 218 — — 120,315
3,283,244 205,993 138,905 21,469 3,649,611
531,768 20,715 — — 552,483
93,020 3,626 7,625 1,934 106,205
5,193,442 248,235 146,786 25,165 5,613,628
410,548 26,426 2,514 13,598 453,086
1,004,799 95,187 12,862 7,359 1,120,207
C () 33,795 (38,861) 22,205 (14,261) 2,878
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cCe»
104,114 — 3,080 — — 355,964 463,158
39,476 14,100 67,721 — — — 121,297
— 150,131 39,858 14,558 — — 204,547
— 9,954 — — — — 9,954
27,210 695,697 928,062 691,475 1,478,383 71,775 3,892,602
GG
819 49,394 27,738 15,979 5,754 217,862 317,546
8,714 69,541 160,329 470,798 214,740 112 924,234
134 34,824 94,189 357,203 142,426 4 628,780
— — — — - 3,036 3,036
74,094 11,457 10,812 36,027 84 52,805 185,279
254,561 1,035,098 1,331,789 1,586,040 1,841,387 701,558 6,750,433
— 11,358 236,569 — — — 240,298
402,889 302,059 246,174 — — — 951,122
— 57,594 32,010 2,935 — — 92,539
715 — — — — 132 847
— 80,177 31,661 — — — 111,838
2,010,162 828,467 639,909 593,583 1,137 — 4,073,258
— 71,846 460,610 9,071 108,747 — 650,274
168 784 2,225 6,562 1,157 10,896
43,902 6,785 6,893 13,493 6,927 8,837 86,837
2,457,836 1,359,070 1,648,422 625,644 117,968 8,969 6,217,909
(2,203,275) (323,972) (316,633) 960,396 1,723,419 692,589 532,524

210/407



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooooo
2018 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
CcC»
134,917 — 1,288 — — 402,503 538,708
65,701 28,245 5,207 — — — 99,153
— 129,317 46,843 — — — 176,160
— 10,790 — — — — 10,790
7,117 585,723 952,830 910,098 1,022,976 36,906 3,515,650
CcC»
— 30,418 43,589 29,476 8,115 197,274 308,872
— 68,375 182,641 394,010 132,878 334 778,238
31 39,437 75,556 295,308 99,920 94 510,346
— — — — — 2,707 2,707
34,630 17,382 12,238 28,655 180 33,005 126,090
242,396 909,687 1,320,192 1,657,547 1,264,069 672,823 6,066,714
80 68,350 218,000 — — — 286,430
319,576 236,910 225,607 171 — — 782,264
— 84,099 31,225 — 34 — 115,358
962 — — — — — 962
— 110,823 9,492 — — — 120,315
1,880,088 746,341 647,718 375,432 32 — 3,649,611
— 98,205 247,992 97,354 108,932 — 552,483
50,170 16,677 16,827 6,554 4,419 11,558 106,205
2,250,876 1,361,405 1,396,861 479,511 113,417 11,558 5,613,628
(2,008,480) (451,718) (76,669) 1,178,036 1,150,652 661,265 453,086
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( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
cC»
104,114 1,407 7,624 — — 355,964 469,109
39,476 14,168 69,201 — — — 122,845
— 155,306 40,902 15,580 — — 211,788
— 10,002 — — — — 10,002
27,210 735,040 1,025,345 1,000,430 2,084,351 77,504 4,949,880
(GE@D))
819 60,220 28,771 16,380 5,754 217,862 329,806
8,714 78,104 191,311 563,757 224,657 118 1,066,661
134 38,162 109,737 395,348 156,066 4 699,451
— — — — — 3,036 3,036
74,004 11,457 10,812 36,027 84 52,805 185,279
254,561 1,103,866 1,483,703 2,027,522 2,470,912 707,293 8,047,857
— 11,358 236,569 — — — 247,927
402,889 487,768 324,007 84,721 — — 1,299,475
— 57,594 32,039 2,935 — — 92,568
715 — — — — 132 847
— 80,728 32,077 — — — 112,805
2,010,162 842,424 673,137 668,153 1,336 — 4,195,212
— 78,869 472,403 119,387 108,747 — 779,406
168 787 2,285 7,341 1,603 12,184
43,902 6,785 6,895 13,493 6,927 8,837 86,839
2,457,836 1,566,313 1,779,502 896,030 118,613 8,969 6,827,263
(2,203,275) (462,447) (295,799) 1,131,492 2,352,299 698,324 1,220,594
— 32 146 77 12) — 243
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748,197 568,296 58,470 — 73 1,375,036
(395,774) (563,552) (58,322) — — (1,017,648)
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2018 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
([GE@D))
134,721 1,621 6,608 — — 402,503 545,453
67,502 29,625 5,326 — — — 102,453
— 134,633 57,838 — — — 192,471
— 10,795 — — — — 10,795
8,797 620,238 1,042,464 1,197,180 1,536,250 40,738 4,445,667
(GE@D))
— 35,039 47,703 31,114 88,205 200,776 402,837
— 74,135 201,371 418,337 163,300 5,880 863,023
31 43,751 97,680 375,381 145,474 11,941 674,258
— — — — — 2,406 2,406
34,630 17,381 12,239 28,655 180 33,275 126,360
245,681 967,218 1,471,229 2,050,667 1,933,409 697,519 7,365,723
80 64,769 226,130 — — — 290,979
573,392 662,179 485,918 31,575 — — 1,753,064
— 89,065 40,706 — 34 — 129,805
962 — — — — 962
— 110,983 9,483 155 — — 120,621
1,880,996 760,404 679,534 429,917 40 — 3,750,891
— 98,780 306,786 180,166 108,932 — 694,664
50,171 16,677 16,827 6,554 4,419 11,558 106,206
2,505,601 1,802,857 1,765,384 648,367 113,425 11,558 6,847,192
(2,259,920) (835,639) (294,155) 1,402,300 1,819,984 685,961 518,531
— (56) 44 128 23 — 139
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1,194,286 1,244,844 48,220 — — 2,487,350
(802,726) (1,243,629) (48,151) — — (2,094,506)
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(

OooooOodd
2019 12 31
) ) ( ) )
426,226 — — 426,226
538,861 6,387 255 545,503
96,576 49,086 1,492 147,154
16,448 18,779 16,984 52,211
101,948 2,033 — 103,981
1,180,059 76,285 18,731 1,275,075
2018 12 31
) ( ) ( ) )
393,851 — — 393,851
427,681 6,909 — 434,590
83,905 68,354 6,554 158,813
7,033 15,578 17,418 40,029
90,634 2,290 — 92,924
1,003,104 93,131 23,972 1,120,207
) PBOC
)
@
IT
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CBIRC

CBIRC

2013 2012 CBIRC ( )

2019 2018

CBIRC

CBIRC 2018 ( )

Tier Tier
8.50 9.50 11.50
Tier Tier
7.50 8.50 10.50
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CBIRC
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
( ) ( )
Tier 8.69 8.62
Tier 10.20 9.43
12.44 12.47
Tier
48,935 48,935
62,112 58,977
7,361 5,269
39,009 34,450
81,535 74,255
203,411 179,820
4,627 4,422
Tier 446,990 406,128
Tier
( ) (912) (896)
( ) (1,875) (1,878)
Tier __ o
Tier 444,203 403,354
Tier Cc () 77,555 37,768
Tier
Tier 521,758 441,122
Tier 63,151 104,515
49,753 37,122
1,235 634
635,897 583,393
5,113,585 4,677,713
( )2019 12 31 Tier ( 43)
¢ 49
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Ogoooood
2019 2018 2019 2018
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
924,234 778,238 938,830 778,779
2,863 2,813 2,789 2,752
81,196 82,091 80,619 80,625
89,555 126,269 89,937 126,041
438,830 341,310 431,706 335,475
37,830 — 37,730 —
2019 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) )
2,063 663,508 273,259 938,830
— 2,789 — 2,789
— 80,619 — 80,619
5,789 84,148 — 89,937
— 431,706 — 431,706
— 37,730 — 37,730
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ooooooo
2018 12 31
DN ¢ ) ( DN ¢ )
2,109 501,890 274,780 778,779
— 2,752 — 2,752
— 80,625 — 80,625
5,642 120,399 — 126,041
— 335,475 - 335,475
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()
CC» C () C(»
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2019 12 31
— 922 — 922
— 307,867 — 307,867
— — 6,915 6,915
2,086 30,417 10,367 42,870
9,962 196,224 12,305 218,491
— 46,792 — 46,792
— 133 819 952
1,185 — 7,239 8,424
17 — — 17
86,557 516,989 13,248 616,794
361 4,505 — 4,866
205 123 2,708 3,036
2 5,201 — 5,203
— 11,700 — 11,700
— 214 — 214
100,375 1,121,087 53,601 1,275,063
132 — — 132
— — 715 715
— 5,176 — 5,176
29 10,899 — 10,928
— 732 — 732
161 16,807 715 17,683
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C ¢ C ¢ C ¢
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2018 12 31

— 137 — 137

— 96,383 — 96,383

2,815 62,319 6,786 71,920
4,879 178,451 5,846 189,176

— 16,713 — 16,713

— — 116 116

540 — 3,021 4,461

_ — 26,486 26,486

64,506 421,783 4,726 491,015

662 11,982 — 12,644

295 — 2,412 2,707

8 6,098 — 6,106

— 24,825 1 24,826

— 1,048 — 1,048

— 11 — 11

73,705 819,750 50,294 943,749

962 — — 962

12 5,962 — 5,974

— 24,500 1 24,501

— 1,170 — 1,170

— 1 — 1

974 31,633 1 32,608

)
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0000000
( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
43,155 4,726 2,412 1 50,294 — ) w
924 (226) (n — 681 — —
— 145 14 — 159 — — (715)
17,819 12,159 785 — 30,763 (715) — —
(31,095) (3,557) (486) ) (35,139) — 1 1
(68) — — — (68) — — —
©) 1 — — @ — — —
30,730 13,248 2,708 — 46,686 (715) — —
( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) )
45,535 4,850 237 1 50,623 ) W
194 (40) — 1 155 W W
— 102 ) — 93 — —
8,549 1,700 2,185 — 12,434 — —
(11,105) (1,926) — ) (13,032) 1 1
— 39 — — 39 — —
(18) 1 @ — (18) - —
43,155 4,726 2,412 1 50,294 w 6
CITIC (
65.37 CITIC
)
CITIC CITIC
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2015 12 31
CNTC
24 CBIRC

2015
2,292,579,000
2016 17
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2,320,177,000

4.999
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(1,398)
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4.39 2,147,469,539 CNTC
2016 17 2016
4.68
2016 11 16 CBIRC
4.74 2017 10
2,446 ,265,000
27,216,400
2018 25
)
2019 12 31
)
( ) ( ) )
1,426 793 253
2,073 252 —
(782) (1,210) (€))
17 — _
(1,501) (1,050) ©)
2018 12 31
)
( ) ( ) )
244 4 63
1,240 2 _
(445) (869) an
(32) — —
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2019 12 31
)
( ) ( ) ( )
31,742 23,372 —
(527) (572) —
31,215 22,800 —
51 — 21,056
2,879 — —
207 — —
901 — —
1,722 3,500 —
226 1,237 —
107 — —
— — 3,672
74 5 —
11,183 150 —
30,219 2,340 1,511
649 — —
342 — —
63,050 57,112 51
12 — —
70 4 —
1,622 — —
9 935 —
2,336 258 —
35,284 3,048 —
11,989 8,117 —
2,933 — —
58,903 36,951 —
55,574 — —
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2018 12 31
)
( ) ( ) )
10,645 14,363 —
(258) 417) —
10,387 13,946 _
_ — 5,364
1,547 — _
60 — —
310 — —
4,258 4,318 _
— — 3,881
10,941 — _
25,710 178 1,201
2,503 — —
24 — _
37,496 41,756 17
1,222 — _
1,828 452 _
72 — —
45,729 6,641 —
18,514 12,540 —
707 — —
52,986 9,638 —
7,950 — —

CNTC

2019 CNTC
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@
2019 12 31
2019 12 31
( ) ) ) ) )
133 — — 133 133
— 186,217 — 186,217 186,217
17 160,248 — 160,265 160,265
87 101,684 132,222 233,993 233,993
218,491 — — 218,491 218,491
218,728 448,149 132,222 799,099 799,099
2018 12 31

( ) )« ) ) )
116 — — 116 116
— 228,502 — 228,502 228,502
26,486 151,582 — 178,068 178,068
1,289 39,846 61,994 103,129 103,129
189,176 — — 189,176 189,176
217,067 419,930 61,994 698,991 698,991

(
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)
2019 12 31
1,200,192 (2018 12 31 1,058,907 )
2019 12 31
935 (2018 2,628 ) 1,259 (2018
2,271 846 (2018 620 )
2019 12 31
53,500 (2018 12 31
63,500 )
35,162 (2018 12 31 44,605 ) 2019 12 31
60,077 (2018 12 31
68,144 )
12,711 (2018 12 31 13,435 )
2019 23,875 (2018 )
2019 12 31 CITIC
166,444 (2018 12 31 188,892 )
©
60
35 2019 12 31
77,356 (2018 12 31
227,518 )
©
2019 12 31 67,562 (2018
12 31 192,665 )
44,594 (2018 12 31
7,197 )
5,859 (2018 12 31
897 )

231/407



2019 12 31
(2018 12 31

61

2019 12 31

34,853

232/407

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

9,794

© ()



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

Ogoooood
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
( ) ( )
455,377 533,393
108,523 78,758
6,865 4,988
164,896 144,364
11,250 26,571
9,954 10,790
3,673,860 3,285,963
308,577 293,542
924,028 777,883
557,543 449,350
2,581 2,242
25,163 25,008
21,931 20,956
11,743
1,347 1,301
31,334 22,458
78,114 33,108
6,393,086 5,710,675
240,258 286,350
955,451 782,768
42,241 71,482
— 962
10,907 25,784
111,838 120,095
3,824,031 3,397,318
10,879 9,508
7,929 4,086
10,255 —
6,027 4,944
638,839 541,053
35,606 44,800
5,894,261 5,289,150
48,935 48,935
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78,083 34,955
61,359 61,359
6,332 5,167
39,009 34,450
80,648 73,370
184,459 163,289
498,825 421,525
6,393,086 5,710,675
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( )
2018 12 31
2019 48,935 34,955 61,359 5,167 34,450 73,370 163,289 421,525
() — — — — — — 45,592 45,592
() — — — 1,165 — — — 1,165
— — — 1,165 — — 45,592 46,757
)
— 3,135 — — — — — 3,135
)
— 39,993 — — — — — 39,993
)
_ _ — — 4,559 (4,559) —
_ _ _ — — 7,278 (7,278) —
— — — — — — (11,255) (11,255)
_ _ _ _ — — (1,330) (1,330)
2019 12 31 48,935 78,083 61,359 6,332 39,009 80,648 184,459 498,825
2017 12 31 48,935 34,955 61,359 (9,782) 31,183 73,370 147,982 388,002
— — — 4,478 (939) — (8,442) (4,903)
2018 48,935 34,955 61,359 (5,304) 30,244 73,370 139,540 383,099
() — — — — — — 42,057 42,057
() — — — 10,471 — — — 10,471
— — — 10,471 — — 42,057 52,528
)
— — — — 4,206 — (4,206) —
_ _ _ — — — (12,772) (12,772)
_ _ _ — — — (1,330) (1,330)
2018 12 31 48,935 34,955 61,359 5,167 34,450 73,370 163,289 421,525
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@
2019 12 31
)
( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
(1) — — — — — — — — —
— 825 1,124 — 38 245 — — 2,232
— 600 764 — 38 241 — — 1,643
Cao Guogiang O) — — — — — — — — —
Huang Fang O) — —_ —_ — — — — — —
Wan Liming O] — — — — — — — — —
He Cao 300 — — — — — — — 300
Chen Lihua 300 — — — — — — — 300
Qian Jun 300 — — — — — — — 300
Ying Liji 300 — — —_ — — — — 300
Liu Cheng — 700 790 — 38 149 — — 1,677
Deng Changqging O] — — — — — — — — _
Wang Xiuhong 300 — — — — — — — 300
Jia Xiangsen 300 — — — — — — — 300
Zheng Wei 300 — — —_ — — — — 300
Chen Panwu — 440 1,483 — 51 208 — — 2,182
Zeng Yufang — 330 702 — 38 213 — — 1,283
Li Gang — 390 990 — 51 224 — — 1,655

2019
Sun Deshun (i) — 525 733 — 22 125 — — 1,405
Cheng Pusheng (i) — 360 910 — 44 165 — —_ 1,479
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2018 12 31
CcCy»
( ( ( (

) ) ) ) ) ) )

— 600 652 — 132 184 1,568
Cao Guogiang — 233 229 — 104 63 629
Huang Fang — — — — — — —
Wan Liming —_ — — — — — _
He Cao 300 — — — — — 300
Chen Lihua 300 — — — — — 300
Qian Jun 300 — — — — — 300
Ying Liji 82 — — — — — 82
Liu Cheng — 467 451 — 47 99 1,064
Deng Changqing — — — — _ _ _
Wang Xiuhong 300 — — — — — 300
Jia Xiangsen 300 — — — — — 300
Zheng Wei 300 — — — — — 300
Cheng Pusheng — 360 2,373 — 164 178 3,075
Chen Panwu — 440 2,327 — 179 184 3,130
Zeng Yufang — 330 2,457 — 117 329 3,233
2018
Chang Zhenming — — — — — — —
Shu Yang 225 — — — — — —
Wu Xiaoqing 225 — — — — — 225
Wang Lianzhang — — — — — — 225
Zhu Gaoming — — — — — — —
Sun Deshun — 900 1,124 — 222 209 2,455
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Chapter 11 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

For the pear ended 71 December 2009
{Am ouris in milions of Renminb! onles othermwise stated)

Year ended 31 Diecember

Motes 2019 2018
Interest Income 268,498 241,933
Interest expense (141,227) (129,021)
Met Lnterest come [ 127,271 112,912
Fee and commission incoms 52, T84 42 509
Fee and commisslon expense (5. 900) (5.391)
Met fee and commission Inoome i, JRE F7.008
Met trading gain 8 5219 6,319
Met gain from investment securities a B629 Q0406
Met hedging loss 10 (2 (1)
Orther operating income 370 2R
Owperatlng lncome 187,881 165,766
Oiperating expenses 11 (54, 168) (52,500)
Dp:n:in; pd:\ocﬂt before Impalrment 133,713 113,166
Credit impairment losses 12 (78673 (37 886)
Impairment losses on other assets 13 (576) (347)
Revaluation gain on investment properties (15) a5
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures 102 (542
Profit befote tax 56,545 54,326
Income tax expense 14 (7.551) (B.850)
Profit for the Year 48,994 45,376
Met profit atttibutable tos
Equity holders of the Bank 48,015 44,513
Man-controlling interests 979 B&3
Profit for the year 48,904 45,376
Other comprehensive lncome, net of tax 15
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
[met of tax):
— Hex rJ:.n.n.Eﬂ on the measurement of defined
benefit plan — 7
— Fair value changes on financial imvestments designated
at fair value H:mu.g]:.-uﬂ::r mmprd:ml}m imcome (TAT) 11
— Pair value changes on transfers from owner-occupied
property to investment property —_ 65
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profic or loss
(met of tax):
— Other comprehensive income transferable to profic or
loss under equity method — (1)
— Fair value changes on financial assets ar fair value
through other comprehenshre income 1,714 10,040
— Impairment allowance on financlal assets at fair value
through other comprehenstve income GRS 140
— Exchange difference on translating forelzn operations 592 2208
Oither comprehensive lncome, net of tax 15 2,002 12,462
Total comprehenstve Income for the year Total 51, 196 57.B38
Total comprehenstre lncome atttibate tor
Equity holders of the Bank S0, 107 57022
Mon-controlling interests 1,89 Bl&
Earnlngs per share attrlbutable to the ordihary
shareholdetrs of the Bank
Basic earnings per share (RMB) 16 095 0.BE
Diluted =arnings per share (RMB) 089 0.BB

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Chapter 11 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Asar 31 December 2019
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

31 December 31 December
Moes 2019 2018
Aszers
Cash and balances with central banks 17 463,158 538,708
Deeposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 18 121,297 99,153
Precious metals o865 4 988
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank
financial Instltutions 19 T, 547 176,180
Diervative financial assets 20 17,117 alm9l
Financial assets held under resale agresments 21 &4,954 10,790
Loans and advances to customers 22 3,892,602 3,51 5650
Financial investments 23 1,873,596 1,600,163
— at fair value through profit or loss 23 317,546 308872
— at amortised cost 924,234 T7B.238
— at fair value through other comprehensive income 628, 7TED 510,346
— designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income 3,036 2,707
Imvestments in associates and jolnt ventures 24 3,672 3881
Investment properties 26 426 443
Property. plant and equipment 7 12,372 71,385
RJ.Eh.r-aF-u.u assets 2B 12,390 —
Intangible assets 1,874 1879
Goodwill 29 a1z 896
Deeferred tax assets 30 32,095 23,174
Orcher assets 31 87,556 37453
Total assets 6,750,433 6,066,714
Liabilites
Borrowings from central banks 40,298 2RG.430
Dq:!mitl from banks and non-bank financial institutions 33 951,122 TR2 264
Placements from banks and mon-bank financial instimarions W 91,539 115358
Financlal Habilities at fir value= 'ﬂ:.n:u.z]:. p.l:DH.I: or loss 847 a2
Dierbrative financial liabilicies 20 16,836 3] 46
Financlal assets sold under r:pu.nd:ﬂ.l: agresments 35 111,838 120,315
Dieposits from customers a6 4,073,258 3640611
Accrued staff costs a7 12,132 10,549
Taxes payable 38 8,865 4920
Dbt zscurities issued an 650,274 552,483
Lease liabilities 10,896 —
Provisions 40 6,116 5013
Dieferred tax liabilities 30 10 1&
Orher liabilities 41 42,878 54061
Total liabllitles 6,217,909 5,613,628

182 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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Chapter 11 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continucd)

As at 31 December 2019

{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

31 Drecember 31 December
Motes 2019 2018

Equlty
Share capital 42 48,935 48,935
Orther equity instruments 43 7B, 083 34,933
Capital resenve 44 58,977 58.977
Crther comprehensive income 45 72361 5.269
Surplu: reserve 46 39, W09 34.4%0
Genenl reserve 47 81,535 74255
Fetained earnings iR 03,411 179, B30
Total equlty attHbutable to equlty holders of the Bank 517,311 435,661
Mon-controlling interests 40 15213 165425
Towl equity 532,524 453,086
Total Uabilities and equiny i TS 433 5,068,714

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directos on Mar 26ch 2020,

L1 Qingplag Fang Heylng
Lagal Rep kdtive Ex ive Dhirector,
{Chairpersan) Dresidens dnd Chief Findneil Officer
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Chapter 11 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the pear ended 31 December 2009
{Amonmts in milives of Renminh orless othermise stated)

Ty airbatable io equity lnblre e Rt Fancusndbi liren
T3 £ 3 (odiary et ryadir
Tur Ity Coptul oegebesdee  Guphs Gl Raudied wply Lt Tnd
Ko opil it Ihire [ (] rein mahp bles btz iy
How . Dhemlnr X141 ey X3 LT R 2 Wi N IR bkl LU
1 Bepuke - - - - - - W ] L
{0 ek com i fncome 1 - - - um - - - m - m
Totd compeelensie incme - - - 1n1 - - LT an i L%
() by ol ocker ey inmmcens
— Conmibe copaare e - ME - - - - - - - M
— ek roitd bonds - B - - TN
— Rudpion of o epiy immmens - - - (1 E
() Db spooprinions
— Nppropinie o axp 1 & - - - - 1) - i - - -
—Aprprivinns o groeal e LY - - - - - T - - -
— Disilend diachocinn # et (ks
ol lok L - - - - - - s - - ol
— Diridend diackorinn & wn-mvoeliie bz - - - - - - - [ - ]
— Dbvidend dihocan v peeveny
shurbabden by q - - - - - - 18] - - [
— Diriend dirachurinn w acheruiy
intnmesn bl F] - - - - - - - -
Aol Doember MY o T S T3 Ax A Ak I R I
Eapiy scborsbls iy bl o e sk Koamolii vre
(dn e Ok iy
Ko oitd dur i = = mER B balden el iy
fae 3l Dipmmler X7 LT T N 1 N A I TR T 1L I )
Dl g ey W - - - 4 m - @ -
box] Jannap 14 o HE B o waR M Tn T o Ren
{1 Bepuke = - - - - Hi i m AN
(1) der comprrbe e income 1j = 115 = = = 18] = i
Totd compoelensie incme - - - 1Ly - - LRI b w e
() Courbacin by wou- oo g shubaldeny L] = = = - - - - 1H] 1
Do pprgricions
— hpopine oo rem L 3 - - - - X6 n i -4 - -
— Appropriacines o ol e q - - - = = i [t] = = -
— Diriend diachocinn # mdimu (ks
dbelok L = = = = = - = -
— Diriend diacborion # pefevo hurbekden
ol lok L = = = = = - LM - 1
— Diridend. diwckorion & wa-covoelie b - - - - - - - ] - 4
— Diriend diichorion # acherouity
indnmews bolles ] - - - - - - - - B | [
fo Y Dooemher W38 L] HE W i3 Hait M T B HE iR

The accompanying noves form an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements.
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Chapter 11 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the pear ended 31 December 2019
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

Year ended 31 December

2019 2018
Oyperating activitles
Pofit before tax 56,545 34326
Adjustments fon
— revaluation gain on Investments, derivatives and investment properties 373 2,825
— Investment gain (7829 I:J",Eﬂ?:l
— pet loss gain on disposal of property, plant and squipment,
inl'n.u.ElB]E assets and other ossets 3 LESJ:I
— unrealised forelzn exchange (pain)iloss (323 B
— credit impairment losses T, 679 57.BBG
— impairment losses on other assets 576 4T
— depreciation and amortisation 2,821 2,042
— interest expense on debt securities issued 21,186 22416
— dividend income from equity investment (65) (320}
— depreciation of right-of-use assets and intersst expense on
lease Habilities 3793 —
— Income tax paid (13,503) (15.875)
Subtoeal 141,250 118,295
Changes In operating assets and Habiltizs:
Dlecrease in balances with central banks 4, BAS GE403
{Increase)/decrease in deposits with banks and non-bank financial
institutions (F0522) 31359
{Increase)/decrease in placements with and loans to banks and non-bank
financial institutions (18:513) 42,501
Dlecrease in investments in fnancial assets held for trn.dlng purposes 29,279 17.B50
Diecrease in financlal assets held under resale agreements TAE 43 837
Incr=ase in loans and advances to customers non-bank financial instltutions (440,0325) (ﬁﬂﬂjﬂ]
Increase/{decrease) in d eposits from banks and non-bank financial
Institutions 170,271 {19.990)
{Drecrease)/increase in borrowings from central banks (44,840 43 08B0
{Dhecrease)//increase in placements from banks and non-bank financial
institutions (23.227) 36,480
{Dhecrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value through profic or loss (243) 958
Dhecrease in financlal assets sold under r:pu.rd:.nu agreements (B, 487T) {ll,ﬂiﬂ:l
Increase in deposits from customers 417,812 198, D4
I:Iu.::m:}fdmu in other operating assets (TL.776) 6,721
{Dhecrease)/increase in other operating liabilities (@, 683) 11,257
Subtortal (24,281) (13.979)
Met cash flows from operatlhg acthvlties 116,969 102,316
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Chapter 11 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continucd)

For the pear ended 31 December 2009
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

¥ear ended 31 December

Motes 2009 2018

Investing acthvitles
Proceeds from disposal and redemption of imvestments 1,540,528 1,396,004
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment,

land use rights, and other assets 399 1,154
Cash received from equity Investment Income 373 330
Payments on acquisition of investments (2,190,529) (1.535.459)
Payments on acquisition of property, plant and equipment,

land use rights and other assets (4,056) (4,754)
Met cash pald for acquisition of associares and joint ventwres 24 — (1.838)
Met cash received from disposal of associates 3z1 —
Net cash flows used I lnvestag activitles (253,064) (144,573)
Financlag activites
Cash received from debt securities issued 39 586,270 922,161
Cash received from other equity instruments issued 49 33,993 3.343
Cash paid for redemption of debr securities issusd (486, 792) (81 5.230)
Interest paid on debt securities issued (22, B29) (21,836)
Drividends paid (13,052) (14, 396)
Pl.']m:l.p]: and interest pn.Ld far ]mdng liabilities {3011) —
Net cash flows from :Fh:.:nthg acthrliles 10, 579 ?4,04‘1
Net Increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equibralents (35,516) 31,785
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 376,009 337915
Effect of E:rJ:m.u.EE rake rJ:m.u.Ezl on cash and cash :q_ulvulgntl 1,956 5,309
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 50 F42 449 F76009
Cash fAows from operatlng activitles Includes
Interest received 271968 220,101
Ineerest paid (119,236) {113,272)

The accompanying noves form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2019
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

Corporate information

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (the "Bank™ or *CHMCE™) is a joint stock company incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC” or *Mainland China™ on 31 December 2006, Headquartered in Beijing, the
Bank’s registered office is located at Mo.9 Chacyangmen Beidajie, Dongcheng DHstrict, Beijing, China. The Bank listed
its A shares and H shares on Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limived, respectively on 27 April 2007,

The Bank operates under financial services certificate Mo, B000H1 11000001 issued by the China Banking Insurance
Regulatary Commission (the "CBIRC™, originally named China Banking Regulatory Com missicn), and unified social
credit code Mo, 911 100001018907 25E issusd 'b}r the State Administration of Indu:tqr and Commerce of the PRC.

The principal activitles of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively the “*Group™) are the provision of corporate and
personal banking services, conducting treasury business, the provision of asset management, finance leasing and other
non-banking fnanclal services.

HAs at 31 December 2019, the Gmup m.n.LuJ}r operates in Mainland China with branches covering 31 provinces,
autonomous regions and municlpalicies. In addition, the Bank’s subsidiaries have operations in Mainland China, the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Begion of PRC ("Hong Kong™ and other overseas countries and reglons.

Far the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, Mainland China refers to the PRC excluding Hong Kong,
the Macau Special Administrative Reglon of the PFRC ("Macau™ and Taiwan. Overseas refers to countries and regions
other than Mainland China.

The consolidated financial starements were approved by the Board of Diirectors of the Bank on 26 March 2020

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on @ going concern basis. The consolidated financial
starements for the year ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries, assoclares and joint wentures.

(a) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December.

(b Functional CUITEncy and presentation cUrrency

The functional currency of the Bank is Renminbi ("BMB™). The functicnal currencies of overseas subsidiaries
are determined in accordance with the primary economic environ ment in which they operate, and are translaved
inte Renminki for the preparation of the consclidated financial satements according to Mote 4 (b)(ii). The
consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Renminbi and. unless otherwise stated, expressed
in milliens of Renminbi.
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Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2009
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

3  Principle accounting policies

These consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("TASE”), and the disclosure
requitements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These consolidated financial statements also comphy
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Steck Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profic or loss and at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and imvestment properties, which are carded ar fair walue.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFR.Ss requices the use of certain critical accounting estimates.,

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The
areas Imvolving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial smtements are disclosed in Mote 5.

(a) Standards and amendments effective in 2019 relevant to and adopted by the Group

In the current interim periad. the Group has adopted the following International Financial Reporting Standards
{"IFR.5") and amend ments issued by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board ("TASE™), that are mandatorily
effective for the current year. Descriptions of these standards and amendments were disclosed in the Group’s
anmaal consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019,

IFRS 164 Leases
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to [FRE 9 Prepayment Peatures with Megative Compensation
Amendments to [FRS 3, IFES 11, IAS 12 and IASE Annual Improvements to [FRSs

IFRS 11, TAS 12 and TAS 23 (2015 — 2017 Cycle)
Amendments to [A5 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Wentures
Amendments to [AS 19 Employes Benefits’ Regarding Plan Amendment,

Curtaillment or Settlement

The new accounting policies of IFRS 16 — Leases and their impacts are disclosed in Mote 3 (c) Changes in
accounting policies. The adoption of the other new standards and amendments does not have a significant
impact on the opemting results, comprehensive income, or financial position of the Group.

(b} Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that arc not yet effective in the current
interim peried and have not been adopted before their effective dates by the Group
The Group has not adopted the following new and revised IPRSs and IFRS interpretations that have been issued

by the International Accounting Standards Board and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee but are not yet effective.

Effective for the
year beglnnlng
onlaftet
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between The effective date has
and [AS 28 an investor and its associate or joint venture been postponed.

188 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2019
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

3  Principle accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective in the corrent
interim period and have not been adopted before their cffective dates by the Group
{ Comtinued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28- Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
jolnt vemtare,

The IASE has made limited scope amendments to [FRS 10 Consclidated financial statements and [AS 28
Investments in associates and joimt ventures.

The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or contribution of assets between an Investor and its
assoclates or joint ventures. They confirm that the accounting treatment depends on whether the non-monetary
assets sold or contributed to an assoclate or joine wenture constitute @ business” (as defined in IFRS 3 Business
Combinations).

Where the non-monetary assets constitute a business, the investor will recognise the full gain or los on the sale
or contrbution of assets. If the assets do not meet the definition of a business, the gain or loss is recognised by
the investor only to the extent of the other investor’s interests in the associate or joint venture. The amendments
apply prospectively.

In Drecember 2015 the IASE decided to defer the application date of this amendment until such time as the
IASE has finalised its research project on the squity method.

The adoption of the amendments does not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statemEnts.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The Group adopted IFRS 16 Leases (hereinafter referred to as the “new leasing standard™), with the first
implementation date on 1 January 2019. This represents a change in accounting policies and adjustments to
the relevant amounts have been recognised in the financial statements.

According to the transitlon requirements of the new leasing standand, the Group did not restate the information
for the comparative perlod. Therefore, the reclassifications and adjustments made due to the adoption of the
new leasing standard are recognised in the balance sheet as at 1 January 2019 and no restatement has been
made to the comparative financial statements as at 31 December 2018,

As described above, the Group only makes relevant disclosures on the current peried in Mote 28,

The implementation of the new leasing standard also leads to changes in the lease accounting policies of the

Group as a lessee, and the specific accounting policies applicable to lessee in the current percd under the new
leasing standard are as follows.
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Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2009
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

3 Principle accounting policies (Contimed)

i) Changes in significant accounting policies (Continsd)
Lﬂ.ﬂ.‘

A lease is a contract under which the lessor comeys to the lessse the right to use an asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

The Growp as the lessee

The Group recognises the dght-ofuse assets on the commencement date of the lease term and recognises the
lease liability at the presemt value of the lease payments that have not been paid yer. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and interest expense. The interest expense is charged to profic or loss over the
lease period 5o as to produce a constant pedodic rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The lease payments include fized payments and payments to ke made in the event that it is reasonably
determined that the purchase option will be exercised or the lease option is terminated. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicic in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
bomowing rate is used.

The Group’s right-of-use assets include leased buildings, land use right, equip ments, vehicles and athers. The
right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which includes the initlal measurement of the lease liabilicy,
the lease Py ments pn.ld on or before the lease commencement date, and the initial direct costs, less army lease
incentives recebved. If the Group can reascmably expect to obtain the cwneship of the leased asset ar the
expiration of the lease term, it is depreciated ower the remaining useful life of the leased asset on a straightline
basis; if it is not possible to reasonably determine whether the ownership of the leased asset can be obtained at
the expiration of the lease term, it is depreciated ower the shorter period of the lease term and the remaining
useful life of the leased assets on a straight-line basis. When the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying
amount of an right-ofuse asset, the Group writes down the carrying amount to the recoverable amount.

For short-term l=ases with o lease term of no more than 12 months and leases of assets with low values when new,
the Group chooses not to recognise the dght-of use assets and lease liabilities. Instead , it recognises in each period
the relevant rental payments in profit or los or relevant asset costs on a straightline basis over the lease term.
Land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis ower the respective periods of grant. When the costs
attributable to the land use rights cannot be reliably measured and separated from that of the building at inception,
the costs are included in the cost of buildings and recorded in property, plant and equipment.

Impairment loss on land wse rights Is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
Mate 4 (1)
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3  Principle accounting policies (Continued)
ic) Changes in significant accounting policies |Continued)
Lease {Continged)
The Group as the lessor

Alease Is classified as either a finance lease oran opemting lease. A finance lease s a lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of whether the legal
title to the asset is eventually transferred. An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

i1} Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount representing the sum of the minimum
lease receipts and unguaranteed residual value, net of inital direct costs, all discounted at the implicit
lease rate (the “net lease investment™), is included in “loans and advances to customens™ on consolidated
statemnent of Anancial position as a finance lease recetvable. At the commencement of the lease term, the
Group recognises the agpregate of the minimum lease recelpts determined at the inception of a lease and
the initial direct costs as finance lease recetvable, The difference between the net lease investent and
the aggregate of thelr present value is recognised as uneamed finance income which is included in “loans
and advances to customers” as well. Unrecognised finance income under finance leases is amortised using
the effective interest rate method over the lease term. Hire purchase contraces having the characteristics
of Ainance leases are accounted for in the same manner as finance leases.

Impairment losses are accounted in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Mote 4 {c)(iii).

(i)  Operating leases

Where the Group leasss out assets under operating leases, the assets are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position according to thelr nature and, where applicable, are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreclation policies, as ser out in Mote 4 (g) except where the asset is
classified as an investment property. Impairment losses are accounted in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in Mote 4 (). Revenue arlsing from operating leases is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s revenue recognition policies, as set out in Mote 4 ()b,
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3 Principle accounting policies (Contimed)
i) Changes in significant accounting policies (Continsd)
i) Adjustments due to adoption of the new leasing stan dard

According to the relevant prowisions of the new leasing standard, the Group adjusted relevant ftems in
the beginning financial statements as at 1 January 2019 to reflect the cumulative impact of the initial
adoption of the standards.

The line ltems Amount affected
The changes Ih accountng policies and why affected 1 Janmary 2019
For operating lease contracts that existed before the Right-ofuse assets 13,311
initlal adoption of the new leasing standard, the Group  Lease liabilitles 11,120
has adopted different methods based on the remaining  Otther assets (z.191)

lease terms:

If the remaining lease term is longer than one year,
the Group recognises a lease liabilicy based on the
remaining lease payments and the incremental
bormowing rate on 1 January 2019, and measures the
rght-ofuse asset ar an amount squal to the lease
liability, adjusted by any prepaid lease payments.

If the remaining lease term @s less than one year,
the Group adopis a simplified method and does not
recognise a right-of-use asset or a lease liability, with
no significant impact on the financial statements

For openating lease contracts that existed prior to the
initial adoption of the new leasing standard where the
underlying assets are of low values, the Group adopts a
simplified approach and does not recognise the dght-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, with no significant
impact on the financial statements.

As at | January 2019, for the purpose of measuring lease liabilities, the Group adopted the same discount
mate for lease contracts with similar characteristics. The incremental bormowing rates uwsed wers from

4.57% to 4.76%.

Asat 1 January 2019, the Group adjusted unsettled minimum operating lease payments disclosed under the
ariginal leasing standard to lease liabilities under the new leasing standard. The reconciliation is as follows:

2019
ﬂpzmﬂng lease commitments disclosed as ai 31 December 2018 12934
Driiscounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of
at the date of initlal application 11.304
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as ar 31 December 2018 —
{Less): shart-term leases recognised on a straighi-line basis as expense (183}
{Less): lowwalue leases recognised on a straight-line basis as expense (1}
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 11,120
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies

{a) Consolidated financial statements
i) Business combinations involving en terprises under common control

A business combination imvolving enterprises under common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same pargy or paries both before and
after the business combination, and that contmol is not transitory. The assets and liabilities assumed are=
measured based on their carrying amounts in the financial statements of the acquiree ar the combination
date. The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets acquired and the consideration paid
for the combination {(or the total face value of shares issued) Is adjusted against share premium in the
capital reserve with any excess adjusted against retained earnings. The issuance costs of equity or debt
securities as a part of the consideration for the acquisition are included in the carrying amounts of these
equity or debt securities upon initial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs are expensed when
incurred. The combination date is the date on which cne combining enterprise obtains control of other
combining enterprises.

(&}  Bunness combinations not invalvi tities under o contral

TEE

A business combination immlving entities not under common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties before the business
combination. Where (i} the aggregate of the acquisition date fair value of assets transferred (including
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree), liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer, in exchange for contmol of the acquinee, exceeds (il) the acquirer’s interest
in the acquisition date fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is recognised as
poodwdll (Mote 4 (j1). IF (i) is less than {ii), the difference is recognised in the consclidated statement
of profic or loss for the cumrent pericd. The isuance costs of equity or debt securities as a part of the
considenation for the acquisition are included in the carrying amounts of these equity or debt securities
upon indtial recognition. Other acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Any difference beowesn
the fair value and the carying amount of the assets transferred as consideration is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The acquiree’s identifiable asset, liabilities and contingent
liabilicies, if the recognition criteria are met, are recognised by the Group ar their acquisition date fair
value. The acquisition date is the date on which the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.

For a business combination not imwolving enterprises under common control and achieved in stages, the
Group remeasures its previously-held equicy interest in the acquiree to its fair value ar the acquisition
date. The difference between the fair value and the carrylng amount is recognised as investment income
for the current perod; the amount recognised in other comp rehensive income relating to the previoush-—
held equity interest in the acquire will be reclassified to profit or loss.

(&§i] Consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based on control and the consclidated financial statements
comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries, as well as structured entities controlled by the Group. The Group
conerols an entity when It is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Bank has power, only substantive rights (held by the Bank and other parties) are considered. The
financial statements of subsidiaries are Included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{a) Consolidated financial starements (Continued)
{iif] Consolidated financial state men ts ( Continued)

Mon-contralling interest is presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial position within
owners equity. Profit or loss and total comprehensive income attributable to non-contmolling equitg holders
are presented separately in the consolidated statement of profic or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the amount of loss for the current period attributable to the non-contrelling interest of a subsidiary
exceeds the non-controlling interest’s portion of the opening balance of equity holders’ equity of the
subsidiary, the excess is allecated against the non-controlling interests.

When the accounting period or accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those of the Bank,
the Bank makes necessary adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based on the Bank’s
own accounting period or accounting policles. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows, and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidared
Anmancial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminared only limiesd
to the extent that this s no evidence of impairment.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting perlod, through a business combination imvolving
enterprises under common control, the financial statements of the subsidiary are included in the consclidared
fnancial statements as if the combination had occurred at the date the ultimate contmolling party st
obtained control. Therefore the opening balances and the comparative figures of the consolidated financial
statements are restaced.

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period, through a business combination not involving
enterprises under common control, the identifiable assets and labilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the sCopeE of consalidation from the date that control commences, based on the fair valu= of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date

Where the Bank acquires a non-controlling interest from a subsidiary’s non-contolling equiny holders ar
disposes of a portion of an interest in a subsidiary without a change in control, the difference betwesn
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the amount of the consideration
paid or recelved is adjusted to capital reserve (share premium]) in the consclidated statement of financial
position. If the credic balance of capital reserve (share premium) is insufficlent, any excess is adjusted
to retalned earnings.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary due to the disposal of a portion of an equity imvestment, the
Group derecognises assets, labilities, non-controlling interests and other related ftems in equity holders’
equity in relation to that subsidiary. The remaining equity investment is remeasured at its fair value ar
the date when contral is lost. Any gains or losses therefore incurred are recognised as investment income
for the current perlod when the control is lost.

If there is a difference between the accounting entity of a Group and the accounting entity of the bank
aor a subsidiary on measuring the same transaction, the transaction will be adjusted from the perspective
of the Group.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

(b) Foreign corrency translations
i) Transhtion of foreign currency transactions

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from imvestors, the capital is translaved to Benminbi
at the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other foreign currency transactions are, on inital
recognition, translated into Benminbd by applying the spot exchange mates at the dates of the transaction.
Monetary items denominated in forelgn currencies are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate
at the reporting date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in the consclidated satement
of profit or loss. Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historcal cost in a foreign currency
are translated to Benminbi using the exchange rate at the transaction date. Mon-monetary items that
are measured at fair value in a forelgn currency are translated wsing the foregn exchange rate at the date
the fair value is determined. The differences arising from the translation of financial assets at fir value
through other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income. Changes in the fir
value of monetary assets denominared in forelzn currency classified as financial assets ar fairvalue through
other comprehensive income are analysed berween translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the carrying amount. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss,
and other changes in the carying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income. The translation
differences resulting from other monetary assets and lHabilitles are recognised in the consalidaved statement
of profit or loss.

()  Transhtion of financial statements denominated in foreign cumency

Financial statements denominated in foreign currency are translated into Renminbi for the preparation
of consolidated fnancial statements. The assets and liabilities in the financial sttements denominated
in forelgn currency are translated into Renminbi ar the spot exchange rates prevailing ar the reporting
date. The equity items, except for “retained sarnings®, are translated to Renminbi ar the spot exchange
rates at the dates on which such items arose. Inoome and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the
date of the transactions, or a rate that approcimates the exchange rates of the date of the transaction.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Upon disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the translation differences recognised in
equiity holders® equity which relates to that foreign operation is transferred to profit or loss in the pericd
in which the disposal occurs.

The effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents held or due in a forelzn curency are
reported in the statement of cash fows.

{c) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provislons of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date,
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell asser.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
i) Initial recognition and class#fication of financial instrumen ts
Financial dseets

Financlal assets are classified on the basis of the Group’s business model for managing the fnancial asset
and the contractual cash flow characterstics of the financial assets:

. Fair value through profic ar loss ("FYTFL™);
. Fair value through ather comprehensive income ("FVOCI™); or
Ll Amortised cost

The business model adopted by the Group for managing its financlal assets refers to how the Group
manages its fnanclal assets in order to generate cash fows. The business model determines whether the
cash Aows from the financial assets managed by the Group come from the collection of contractual cash
flowes, sale of Ainancial assets or a combination of the two methods. In d.:‘buminingth: business model for
a group of financial assews, the Group considers varous factors, including: past experience in collecting
cash Aows from this group of assets; how to assess the p:rﬁ:rmnnn: of this Erouwp of asset and report
it to key management personnel; how to assess and manage risks are; and how to compensate people
responsible for managing these assets, among others.

The contractual cash flow chancteristics of financial assets refer to contractual terms as agreed in the
fimancial instrument contracts that reflect the economic chamcteristics of the financial assets, i.e., the
contractual cash fows arsing at a specified date from the financial assets at amortised cost or FYOCL are
salely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. OF which, the principal
is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition, and the amount of the principal may change
over the life of the financial asset, if, e.g., there are repayments of principal; and the interest includes
consideration for the time value of money, and credit risk, other basic lending dsks and costs assoclared
with halding the Anancial asset for a particular peried of time.

Financlal assets with embedded derbvatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash Aows are solely payment of principal and interest.

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity instruments are descrbed belown:

Diebt Instruments

Diebt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer’s
perspective. Classificarion and subsequent measurement of debe instruments depend on: i) the Group’s
business model for managing the asser; and 1) the cash flow characteristics of asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies it debt instruments into one of the following three measarement
categories:

. Amortised costr Assets that are held for collection of contractual cashflows where those cash Aows
represent soley payments of principal and interest (“SPPI7), and that are not designated at FVPL,

are measured at amortised cost.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

() Financial instruments (Continued)
i Initial recognition and classification of finandial instruments { Con tinped)
Fimancial assets (Comtinued])
Diebt Instruments (Continued)

. Fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash fows and for selling the asmets, where the assets” cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at FYPL, are measured at FVOCIL

= Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criterda for amortised cost or FWOCT
are measured ar FYPL.

The Group may also irrevocably designate financial assets at fair value through profit or loss if doing
so significantly reduces or eliminates a mismatch created by assets and liabilivies being measured on
different bases.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group afier
deducting the labilities. A financial instrument is an equity instrument if, and only if, both conditions
1) and ii) below are met:

i The financial instrament includes no contractual obligation to deliver cash or ancther financial
asset to another entty, or to exchange financial assets or financial Habilities with another enty
under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Group; and

i} If the financial instrument will or may be settled in the Group’s own equity Instraments, it is
2 non-derivative instrument that includes no contractual obligations for the Group to deliver a
variable mumber of its own equity instruments; or a derbvative that will be setted only by the
Group exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a Axed number of its own
squity instruments.

Equity investments of the Group are measured at FWPL, except where the Group’s management has
elected, ar initial recognition, to brevocably designate an equity investment at F¥OCL The Group's
policy is to designate equity investments as FWIC] when those investments are held for purposes other
than trading. After designation, the fir value change is recognised in the other comprehensive income
and it Is mot allowed to subsequently reclassify to profit or loss (including upon disposal). Impairment
loss and reversal of impairment is not presented separately in the financial statement and is included in
the fair value change. Dividend income as the return from imvestments is recognised by the Group when
the right to receive is formed

Fingneial fiabilicies
The Group’s financial Habilities are classified into financial liabilities at F¥PL and other Anancial Habilicies

carried ar amortised cost on initial recognition. Financial labilities ar FVPL is applied to dedwvatives,
fimancial liabilities held for trading and financial Habilities designated as such at initial recognition.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
i) Initial recognition and class#fication of financial instrumen ts (Contin ued)
Fimancial liakilivies (Comtimuea])

The Group may, at initial recognition, irrevocably designate a Anancial liability as measured at fair value
through profit or loss when doing so results in more relevant information, because eithen

i} it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency thar would
otherwise arise; or

(i) a group of financlal labilities or financial assets and fnancial liabilitles is managed and s
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or Investment strategy, and information about the Group is provided internally on that basis ta
the Group's key management personnel.

i}  Measmrement of Fnancial assets
Imitiad medsurement

Financlal assets ar FWPL are stated at fair value. Financial assets at fair value through profic or loss,
transaction costs thar are directly attriburable to profic or loss. Financial assets not at fir value through
profit orloss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets.

Swkseguent msdsurament

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the categories:

Financlal assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition: i) minas
the principal; i) plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of amy
difference between that initial amount and maturity amouwnt; Hi) for financial assets, adjusted for ame
loss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or recelpes
through the expected life of the financial asset to the gros carrying amount of a fAnancial asser (Le. its
amortised cost before any impairment allowance). The calculation does not consider expected credit losses
{"ECL") and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or receiwed thar
are integral to the effective interest mate. Por purchased or odginated credit-impaired (POCT) financial
assets — assets that are credit-impaired ar initial recognition — the Group dalculates the credit-adjusted
effective interest e, which is calculated based on the amortised cost of the financial asset inst=ad of this
gross carying amount and incorporates the impact of ECL in estimated future cash flows.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the carrying amount of o financial
asset, except fon

1] a POCT financial asset, whose interest income s calculared, since initial recognition, by applying
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to its amortised cost; and

i) a financial assets that is not o POCI financial asset but has subsequently become credit-impaired,
whiose interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to s amortised cost. IF in
a subsequent period, the financial asser improwves its qualityr so that it is no longer credit-impaired
and the improvement in credit quality can be related objectively to a certain event cocurring after
the application of the above-mentioned rule, then the interest income can again be calcularsd
by applying the effective interest rate to Its gross carrying amount. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in “interest income” wsing the effective interest rate method.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i)  Measmrement of financal assets (Continped)
Suhsaguent medrnemens

For Acating-rate financial assets and fAoating-rate financial liabilities, periodic re-estimation of cash fows
to reflect the movements in the market rates of interest alvers the effective interest rate. If a floating-
mate financial asset or a floating rare financial Hability is recognised initially at an amount equal to the
principal receivable or payable on marurity, re-estimating the funare interest payments normally has no
significant effect on the carying amount of the asset or the labilicy.

If the Group revises its estimates of payments or receipts, the differ=nce between the gross camrping amount
ofthe financial asset or amortised cost of a financial Habilicy calculated from revised estimated contracoual
cash flows and the present value of the estimated future contractual cash flows that are discounted at the
fimancial instrument’s original effective interest rate should be recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets ar fair value throwgh ether conprebensive income
Dbt instruments

Mowvements in the camying amount are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses on the
instrument’s amortised cost which are recognised in profit or loss.

When the financial assets s derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehenstve income is reclassified from equity to profic or loss and recognised in “Met investment
incame’. Interest income from these fimanclal assets is included in Tnterest income’ using the effective
interest rave method.

Equity instruments

Where an imvestment In an equity investment not held for trading is designated as a financial asset
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the fair value changes of the financial asset
is recognised in the other comprehensive income. When the financial asset is derecognised, the comulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from other comprehensive
income to retained samings. The dividends on the imvestment are recognised in profit or los only when
the Group's rght to recetve payment of the dividends is established.

Fimaneial asets at firiv value through profit or b

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value and a gain or loss on a fAnancial
assets that s measured at fair value should be recognised in profic or loss.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

i) Financial instruments {Continued)
i} Measmrement of Hnancial assets (Con tinped)
Fimancial abilities ar faiv value through P!q‘l"r or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profic or loss are measured at fair value with all gains or losses
recognised in the profit or loss of the cumrent period. except for financial liabilitles deslgnated as at fair
value through profit or loss, where gains or losses on the financial Habilities are treated as follows:

. changes in fair value of such financial liabilicies due to changes in the Group’s own credit risk are
recognised in other comprehensive income; and

] other changes in fair value of such financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss of the current
period.

{iifl Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a foreard Jooking basis the ECL associated with its debt instrument assets carried
ar amortised cost and FYOCT and with expasure arbsing from loan commitments, financial guarantee
contracts and lease receivables.

ECL is the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of o defaule cocurring as the weights,
Credit loss is the difference berween all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash fows H:.n.rﬂquu.p expects to recehe, e, all cash shartfalls, discounted
ar the orginal effective interest rare (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for POFCT financial assets).

The Group measures ECL of a financlal instrament in a way thar reflects:

. an unbiased and probabiligyr-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
OuULCOmes;

. the time value of money; and

. reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or efforr at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of furwre economic conditions.

Dhetailed information about ECL in the abowe areas is ser out in note 55 I:n;l

The Group applies the impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance
for debe instruments that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The lass
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and the impairment loss is recognised in profic
or loss, and it should not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the consolidated satement
of financial position.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previcus reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the credic risk
on the financial instruments has increased significantly since initial recognition is no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-months ECL at the current reporting dare
and the amount of ECL reversal is recognise in profit or loss.

At the reporting date, the Group only recognises the cumulative changes in lifetime ECL since initial
recognition as a loss allowance for POCI Ananclal assets. At =ach reporting date, the Group recognises
in profit or loss the amount of the changes in lifetime ECL as an impairment gain or loss.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
(&) Mbdification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash fAows ofloans to customers.
When this happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are substantially different to the
orginal terms. The Group does this by considering, among others, the following factors:

- If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contracoual
cash flows to amounts the bormower is expected to be able to pay.

. Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit share/equity-based return that
substantlally affects the risk profile of the loan.

. Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in flnancial difficulty.
. Significant change in the interest rate.
] Change in the currency the loan is denominared in.

] Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that significantly affece the credit
risk associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises the original Ainancial asset and recognises a
“newe’ asset at falr value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is
consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes, including
for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has ccoumed. However, the
Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial
recognition, especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable
to make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit
or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.

Ifthe terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition,
and the Group recalculares the gross carrping amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset
and recognises o modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amownt is recalculated
by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective
interest rate for POCT financial assets).

vl Derivatives and hedpes
Derivatives are initlally recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entersd
into and are subsequently remeasured ar fair value. All derbvatives are carried as assets when fair value is
posithve and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
Certailn derbvatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as the convesion option in a convertdble
bond. IF the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the entire
contract as described in the financial assets section above for classification and measurement purposes.
Oitherwise, the embedded derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:
- Their economic chancteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract
- A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the definition of a derivarive; and

. The hybrid contrace is not measured ar fair value through profit or loss.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
{v)  Dertatives and bedges ( Contin ued)

These embedded derbratives are sepanately accounted for at fir value, with changes in fair valwe recognised
in the statement of profit or loss unless the Group chooses to designate the hybdd contraces at fair value
through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated and qualifies as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derbvatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm
commitments for fair value hedges,

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship between hedped items and
hedging instruments, as well as Its risk management o bjective and strategy for underraking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis,
aof whether the derbvatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash Aows of hedged items.

Ftiv wake bodge

Changes in the fair value of dertvatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded
in the statement of profit or loss, together with changes in the fir value of the hedged asset or liabilige
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount
aof a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss aver the
pericd to maturdty and recorded as net interest income.
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{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
{vi] Derecopnition of financial assets
Fimancial dssets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when (1) the contractual rghts to the cash Aows from
the asset expire, or (2} when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of cwnenhip of the asset to another entity, or {3) when it transfers the financial asset and gives up the
conerol of the transferred assets thaugh the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of cwnemship.

Where a transfer of o financial asset in it entivety meets the criterda for de-recognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in the consclidated statement of profit and loss:

—  the carying amount of the financial asset transferred;

—  the sum of the consideration received from the transfer and the cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in equitg.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of o wnership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset o the extent of its continuing
invalvemnent and recognises an associated liabilicy.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the related obligarion is discharged, is cancelled or expires.
An agreement between the Group and an existing lender to exchange the original financial labilicy =ith
a new financial liabilicy with substantially different terms, or a substantial modification of the terms of

an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the criginal financial lakbility and
recognition of a new financial Habilicy.

The difference benween the carrying amount of the financial liabilinr derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

(vl Securitimtion

As part of Its opemations, the Group securitises financial assets, genenlly through the sale of these assets
to structured entitles which issue securdties to imestors. When the securtisation of financial assets that
qualify for de-recognition, the relevant financial assets are de-recognised in their entirety and a new financial
asset or liabilities is recognissd regarding the interest in the unconsolidated securitisation vehicles thar the
Group acquired. When the securitisation of financial assets that do not qualify for de-recognition, the
relevant financial assets are not derecognised, and the consideration paid by third parties are recorded as
a financial Hability. When the securitsation of financial assets that partially qualify for de-recognition,
where the Group has not retained control, it derecognises these financial assets and recognises separately
as assets or llabilities any dghts and obligations created or retined in the transfer. Otherwise the Group
continues to recognise these financial assets to the extent of Its continuing involvement in the financial asset.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{c) Financial instruments (Continued)
(vili) Sales of assets on condition of r Fr

Dée-recognition of fAnancial assets sold on condition of repurchase is determined by the economic
substance of the transaction. If o financial asset is sold under an agreement to repunchase the same or
substantially the same asset at o fixed price or at the sale price plus a reasonable return, the Group will
not derecognise the asset. If a financial asset is sold together with an option to repunchase the financial
asset at its fair value ar the time of repurchase (in case of transferor sells such financial asset), the Goup
will derecognise the financial asset.

fix) Preseatation of financial assets and fnancial Kabilit fes

Financlal assets and financial liabilities are presented separarely in the consolidated statement of financial
position and are not offset. However, financial assets and financial liabilities ar= offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position only if the Group has a legally enforceable
rght to set off the recognised amounts and the transactions are intended to be settled on a net basis, ar
by realising the asser and settling the liabilig simultanecusly.

ix)  Financial assets beld under resale and financial assets sold under repurchase apreements

Financlal assets held under resale agreements are transactions which the Group acquires financial assets
which will be resold at a predetermined price in the future date under resale agreements. Financial assees
sold under repurchase agreements are transactions which the Group sels financial assets which will ke
repurchased at a predetermined price in the furure date under repurchase agreements.

Cash advanced or recebved s recognised as amounts held under resale and repurchase agreements on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Assets held under resale agreements are recorded in
memomandum accounts as off-balance sheet items. Assets sold under repurchase agreements continue to
be recognised in the consclidated statement of financial position.

The difference between the resale and repurchase consideration, and that between the purchase and sale
consideration, should be expired ower the period of the respective transaction using the effective interest
method and are included in interest expense and interest income, respectively.

jxf]  Eguity instrument

The consideration received from the Issuance of equity instruments net of transaction costs is recognisad
in equity. Consideration and transaction costs pald by the Bank for repurchasing selfissued equiny
instruments are deducted from equity holder’s equiry.

(d) Precious metals

Preclous metals comprise gold and other precious merals. Precious metals that are not related to the Group’s
precious metals trading acthvities are initially measured at acquisition cost and subsequently measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Preclous metals acquired by the Group for trading purposes and precious
metals leasing are inftally measured ar fair value and subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profic or loss.
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{e] Interests in subsidiaries

In the Bank’s consclidated statement of financial position, interests in subsidiarles are accounted for wsing the
cost less impairment losses (see Mote 4 (1)) Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. Dividends
declared by subsidiaries are recognised in investment income.

Diatermination of investment cost

Far long-term equity investments acquired through a business combination: for long-term equity imestments
acquired through a business combination imvolving enterprises under common contral, the investment cost
shall be the absorbing party’s share of the carrying amount of owners’ equity of the party being absorbed at the
combination date; for kong-term equity imvestment acquired through a business combination involving enterprises
not under commaon control, the imvestment cost shall be the combination cost.

Farlong-term squity investments acquired not through a business combination: forlong-term squity imvestment
acquired by payment in cash, the initial investment cost shall be the purchase price actually paid; for long-term
equity investments acquired by issuing equity securities, the initial imvestment cost shall be the fair value of the
equity sscuritles issued.

ifi Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. A joint venture Is an arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties contractually agree to share control of the arangement, and have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement.

When acquiring asscciates and joint ventures, the Group recognises as initial investment cost in the principle
which: for the investments obtained by making payment in cash, the Group recognises the purchase cost which
is actually paid as initial imestment costs; for the investments obtained by equity securities, the Group recognises
the fair value of the equity securities issued as initial imvestment cost.

An investment in an associate or a jolnt venture is accounted for using the equity method, unless the imvestment
is classified as held for sale.

The Group adopts the following accounting treatments when using the equity method:

—  Where the initial investment cost of an associate or joint venture excesds the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets ar the date of acquisition, the imvestment is initally
recognised at the initial imvestment cost. Where the initlal investment cost s less than the Group's
interest in the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition, the investment
is imitlally recognised at the investar's share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets, and
the difference is charged to profit or loss.

—  Afrer the acquisition of the investment, the Group recognises its share of the investee’s profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as imvestment income or losses and other comprehensive income
respectively, and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly. Once the investee declares
any cash dividends or profit distributions, the carrying amount of the imvestment is reduced by that
amount attributable to the Group. Changes in the Group’s share of the investee’s owners’ equity, other
than those arlsing from the investee’s profit or loss, other comprehensive income or profic diseributon,
is recognised in the Group’s equity, and the carrying amount of the investment is adjusted accordingly.
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(fi Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

— The Group recognises its share of investee’s profits or losses, other comprehensive income and other
changes in equity holders’ equity after making appropriate adjustments to align the accounting policies
or accounting periods with those of the Group based on the fir value of the investee's identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition. Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions berween the
Group and its associates or jolnt wentures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the
asociates or jolnt ventures. When an entity in the Group transacts with the Group’s assoclate, profics
and losses resulting from the transaction are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial starements
only to the extent of the interest in the associate that are not related to the Group. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the aset transferred.

—  The Group discontinues recognising its share of net losses of investees after the carrying amount of
imvestment to the associates and joint ventures and any long-term interest that in substance forms part
of the Group’s net interest in the associates and joint ventures are reduced to zero, except to the extent
that the Group has an obligation to assume additicnal losses. Additional loss is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of thar
associate. Where profits are subsequently made by the associates and joint ventures, the Group resumes
recognising Its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised,

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an investes
but does not have control or joint control over those policies.

The Group makes provisions for impairment of interests in associates and jolnt ventures in aocordance with the
principles described in Note 4 ().

(gl Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is asset held by the Group for the conduct of business and is expected to be used
for more than one year. Construction-in-progress, an item of property, represents property under construction
and is transferred to property when ready for its intended use

i}  Cos

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost wpon initial recognition. Costs of o puchased property,
plant and equipment comprise purchase price, related taxes, and any directly attributable expenditures for
bringing the asset to working conditlon for its intended use. Costs of @ selfconstructed property, plant
and equipment comprise construction materals, direct labor costs and those expenditures necessarily
incurred for bringing the asset to working conditlon for its intended use.

Subsequent to initlal recognition, property, plant and equipment is stated ar cost less accumulared
dep reclation and impairment losses.

Where an item of prmoperty, plant and equipment comprises major components having different useful
liwes, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.
i}  Subsequent costs

The Group recognises in the carrping amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefics
embodied with the item will Aow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as an expense when Incurred.
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(gl Property, plant and equipment {Continued)
(i) Depreciation

Deepreciation is calculated to werive off the cost, less residual value if applicable, of property, plant and
equipment and is charped to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an item of property, plant and equipment.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Estimated Estimated

useful lives residual value Drepreciation rate
Buildings 30 - 35 years 0% 5% 2.71%%-3.33%
Camput:r equipment and others 3 - 10 y=ars O 1 0% Q00%-33.33%

Mo depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

The residual value and useful lives of assets are reviewsd, and adjusted if appropriate, as of sach reporting
date.

(i) Impairment
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in Mote 4 (1)

(v}  [Nsposal and retirement

Gains or losses arising from the disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the cargying amount of the asset and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

(h) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initlally recognised at cost. The cost less estimared net residual values {if any) of the intangible
assets Is amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, and charged to profic or loss. Impaired intangible
assets are amortised net of accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment loss on intangible assets is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
Mote 4 (I}. Impaired intangible assets are amortised net of accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets which are not yet available for use should be estimated ar least at each financial year-end, even
if there was no indication that the assets were impaired.
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(i) Inwvestment properties

Investment properties are land and/or bu]]d.‘lngl which are owned andior held under a leasehald interest to earn
rental income andfor for capital appreciation.

The Group’s investment properties are accounted for using the fair value mode for subsequent measurement
when either of the fallowing conditions is metn

—  There is an acthve property market in the location in which the imvestment property is situared;

—  The Group can obtain the market price and other relevant information regarding the same type of or
similar properties from the property market, so as to reasonably estimate the fair value of the imvestment

property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property Is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profic or loss.

When there is a change in use of properties from owner-occupation to earn rentals or for capital app reclation,
the investiment properiy transferring from property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is measured at fair
value on the date of transfer. If the fair value on the transferred investment property is lower than the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets on the date of transfer, the difference Is recognised
in profit or lass, otherwise in the comp rehensive income.

When an investment property is sold, tansferred, retired or damaged, the Group recognises the amount of any
proceeds on disposal, net of the carrying amount and related expenses, in the consolidated statement of profic
and loss.

() Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination ower the Group’s interest in the falr value
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Goodwill is not amortised. Goodwill arising from a business combination
is allocated to each cash-generating unit ("CGUT) or a group of OGLs, that s expected to benefic from the
synergies of the combination. The Group performs impairment test on goodwill annually.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identiflable net assets over the cost of
a business combination is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

On disposal of the related CGU or a group of OGUs, any attributable amount of the purchased goodwill net
of allowance for impairment losses, if any, is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment loss on goodwill is accounted in accordance wich the accounting policies as set our in Mote 4 ().
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(k) Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take possession of assets held as collateral
through court procesdings or voluntary delivery of possession by the boroowers, Where it is intended to achieve
an orderly realisation of the impaired assets and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the bormwer,
repossessed assets are reported In “other asses™.

When the Group selres assets to compensate for the losses of loans and advances and interest recetvables, the
repossessed assets are inltally recognised ar fair value and any taxes that are directly attributable to the assets,
and ather expenses incurred for collecting the repossessed assets.

When the fair value less costs to sell s lower than a repossessed asset’s camying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profic or loss. Repossessed assets are recognised ar the carrying
walue, net of allowance for impairment losses.

The repossessed assets are disposed after acquisition and cannot be used without authorisation. The repossessed
assets that are transferred to own use are treated as newly purchased property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss ardsing from the disposal of the repossessed assets is included in the consclidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which the item is disposed.

il  Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets
{1 Impaimment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period. the Group assesses whether there Is any indication that a non-
financial asset other than goodwill such as investments in associates and joint ventures, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and other assets may be impaired. If any indication
exisis that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its Rir value less costs to sell and the present value
of the fature cash fows expected to be derived from the asset. The Group considers all relevant factars
in estimating the present value of future cash Hows, such as the expected future cash Aows, the useful
life and the discount rate.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its cargying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is recognised as an impairment loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

(&) Impaiment of poodnil

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the
CGL or the group of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the symergies of the combination.

A OGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that is largely independent
of the cash flows from other assets or groups of assets.

The CGU or the group of CGUs to which geodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment by the
Group annually, or whenever there is an indication that the CGL ar the group of ©GUs are impaired,
by comparing the carrying amount of the CGL or the group of CiGUs, including the goodwill, with the
recoverable amount of the CGU or the group of CGUs. The recovenble amount of the CGU or the
group of CGUs are the estimated future cash flows, which are discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGL or the group of CGUs with allocated En-adw]]l.
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il) Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
i}  Impaimment of goodnill { Contin wed)

At the time of iImpairment testing of a OGL ar a group of the CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated,
there may be an indication of an impairment of an asset within the CIGU containing the gocdwill. In
such circumstances, the Group tests the asset for impalrment first, and recognises any impairment loss
for that asset before testing for impalrment on the CGU or group of the CGUs containing the goodwill.
Similarly, there may be an indication of an impairment of a CGU within a group of the CGL containing
the goodwill. In such circumstances, the Group tests the CGU for impairment first, and recognises amy
impairment loss for that CGLL before testing for impairment the group of CGL to which the goodwill
is allocated.

For a CGU or a group of OGUs, the amount of impairment los Astly reduces the camying amount
aof any geodwill allocared to the CGU or the group of CGLL, and then reduces the carrying amount
of other assets (other than goodwill) within the CGU or the group of CGUs, pro mam on the basls of
the carrying amount of each asser. The carrying amount of an asset should not be reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable); its value in use (if determinable) and zem.

An impalrment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

(m) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be recetved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordecly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) marker ar the measurement date under current market conditions
{Le. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated wsing amother valuation
technique (MNote 57).

in) Employee benefits
i) Short-termn employee benefies

Dhuring the accounting period when an employee has rendered service to the Group, the Group recognises
the undiscounted amount of short-term employes benefits as o liability and as an expense, unless another
IFR.S requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. Short-term employes benefics
include wages, bonuses, labor union expenses and employee education expenses, social insurance such as
medical insurance, work-related injury insurance and matemity insurance, as well as housing provident
fands, which are all calculated based on the regulated benchmark and ratio.

(i}  Post-employment benefits: Defined contnbution plans

Pursuant o the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group participated in a defined contribution
basic pension insurance in the soclal insurance system established and managed by government organisations.
The Group makes contrbutions to basic pension insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance contributions are charged o profic or
loss when the related services are rendered by the employees.

In addition to the statutory provision plan, the Bank's employees have joined its annuity scheme (the
“scheme”) which was established by the CITIC Group Corporation (“CITIC Group™) in accordance with
policies regarding the state owned enterprise annuity policy. The Bank has mad e annuity concributlons
in proportion to its employee’s gross salaries which are expensed in the consclidated statement of profic
or loss when the contributicns are made.

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and a Mandatary Provident Pund scheme
for Hong Kong staff. Contributions are charged to profic or loss as and when the contdbution f&ll due.
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in) Employes benefits (Continued)
(&i] Post-employment benefits Defined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans of the Group are supplementany retirement benefits provided to the domestic
employess.

The Group adopts the projected unit credit actuarial cost method, using unblased and mutually compatible
actuarial assumptions to estimate the demographic and financial varlables, to measure the oHigation
associated in the defined benefits plan. The discounted present value of the defined benefit obligation,
is recognised as the liabilities of the defined benefic plans.

The Group recognises the obligation of defined benefit plans in the accounting perlod in which the
employess render the related services. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of pofit or los. The net interest cost Is calculared by applying the discount rate to the net
balance of the defined benefic cbligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employes benefic expense in the consclidated statement of profic or loss. Re-measurement arsing from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the pedod in which they arise.

(o) (Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets or non-monestary assets from the government to the Group
at no consideration except for any capital contribution from the government as an imvestor in the Group. Special
fands such as investment grants allocated by the government, if clearly defined in officlal documents as part of
“capital reserve™ are dealt with as capital contributions, and not regarded as government grants.

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to the grants. Government grants are measured at the
amount recetved or will be recetved when recopnised as monetary assets. Government grants are measured at
fair walue when recognised as non-monetary assets.

The grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition is thar an enticy qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. The grants related to income are government
grants other than those related to assets. A government grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred
income and amortised to profic or loss on a straight-line basis ower the useful life of the asset. A grant chat
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred in the subsequent pericds is recognised initially as deferred
income and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the same perdods in which the expenses
are recognised. A grant that compensates the Group for expenses incurred is recognised in the consolidaved
satement of profic or loss immediately. The Group uses the same statement method for similar government grants.

The prime based loan of the Group Is calculated based on actual incoming loan as entry value and preferential
interest rate. The direct interest charges against the cost of loan.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantee contracts and lean commitments

A financial guarantes contract is a contrace that requires the lssuer to make specified payments to relmburse
the holder for a loss it Incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due, In accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised at fair value on the date the guarantes was ghven. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group's liabilities under such guarantees are measured ar the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of guarantee fees, and the best estimare of the expected credit loss provision required
to s=ttle the guarantes. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is taken to the consolidated statement
of profit and loss.

The impairment allowance of loan commitments provided by the Group is measured by ECL. The Group has
not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net in
cash or by delivering or Issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance is recognised as a provision. However,
for contracts that include both a loan and an undewn commitment and the Group can not separately identify
the ECL on the undrawn commitment component from those on the loan component, the ECL on the undmrn
commitment are recognised together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined ECL
exceed the gross carmying amount of the loan, the ECL are recognised as a provision.

iq) Provisions and contingent liabilitics

A provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial pasition when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arsing as a result of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefics
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. A provision is initially measred
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to sertle the reated present obligation. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account as a whole in reaching
the best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is materal, the best estimate is determined by
discounting the related future cash outflows. The Group recognise the loss allowance of financlal guarantee
contracts measured by ECL as a provision.

A contingent Habiligy is (a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence can only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
contral of the Group; or (b} a present obligation that arises from past events and it is not probable that an
outflow of economic benefits Is required o settle the cbligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably. Such lHability is disclosed as contingent liabilities under Mote 51.

ir)]  Fiduciary activities

The Group acts in a fiduclary capacity as a custodian, trustee, or an agent for customers. Assets held by the
Group and the reated undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded from the consolidared
financial statements as the risks and rewards of the assets reside with the customers.

Entrusted lending is the business where the Group enters into entrusted loan agresments wich customens, whereby
the customers provide funding (the “entrusted funds™) to the Group, and the Group grants loans to thind parties
(the “entrusted loans™) at the instruction of the customers. As the Group does not assume the risks and rewards
of the entrusted loans and the corresponding entrusted hands, entrusted loans and fainds are recorded as off-
balance sheet items at their principal amounts and no impairment assessments are made for these entrusted loans.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)

(s) Income recognition

Revenue is the gros inflow of economic benefit arsing in the course of the Group's ordinary activities when
those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. Revenue
is recognised when the controls of related products or services is obtained and satisfy the other conditions for
different type of revenues as below.

{1 Interest income
Interest income of financial assets is calculated using the effective interest method and included in the
profit and loss.

The accounting policies about interest income of Anancial assets measured at amortised cost refer o

note 4 (i),

(&}  Fee and commisdon income

Fee and commission income is recognized when the G roup fulfills it performance obligation, either over
time or at a point in time when a customer obtains control of the service. Origination or commitment
fees received by the Group which result in the creatlon or acquisition of a financial asset are deferred and
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate. If the commitment expires without the Group
making a loan or anticipating will not, the fee is recopnised as revenue on expiry.

(&i) [DNvidend income
Diividend income Is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or los on the date when the
Group's right to receiwe payment is established.

(&)  Rental income from operating lease

Rental income recebved under operating leases is recognised as other operating income in equal instalments
aver the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derbwed from the leased asser. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profic or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments recebrable.

(v}  Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contmct

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase payments is recognised as interest income
over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant pericdic rate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting period.
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4  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t) Income tax

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity (including other comprehensive

Current income tax is the expected tax payables on the taxable income For the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payables in respect of previous periods.
Dieferred tax is provided for temporary differences berween the carying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Temponary differences also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Dieferred tax liabilitles are not recognised if they arse from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if i arlses from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profic or loss. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent thar it is probable
that fature taxable profits will ke available against which the asset can be urilised.

Dieferred income tax liabilities are provided on tazable temporary differences arsing from investments in
subsidiaries, assoclates and joint arrangements, except for deferred Income tax Hability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference Is contolled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foresesable future. Dieferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arsing from investments in subsidiaries, asscciates and joint ventures armngements only w the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profic
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

At the reporting date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates thar are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the Habilicy is settled according to the requirements of tax
lawes. The Group also considers the posibiligy of realisation and the settlement of deferved tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in the calculation.

Current tax assets are o et against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax labilities and meet the
additional conditions that deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same authoricy
on the same taxable entity.

(o) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original maturity of three months
or less ar acquisition.

(v) Profit distribution
Proposed dividends for ordinary shares which are declared and approved afier the end of each reporting period
are not recognised as a liability in the consclidated statement of financial position and are instead disclosed as
a subsequent event after the end of each reporting pericd in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Dividends payable are recognised as liabilities in the pedod in which they are approwed.

MAs authorised by the shareholders’ annual genenl meeting, the Board of Directors has the sole discretion to
declare and distribute dividends on preference shares. Preference share dividend distribution is recognised as a
lability in the consalidated financial statements in the pericd in which the dividends are approwved.

{wl Related partics

If the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to control, jointly contml or exercise significant influence
over another party, or vice wersa, or where the GIU'I.I.P and one or more parties are ru.]:-jﬂ:l: to common contral,
jointly contral from another party, they are considersd to be related parties. Related parties may be individuals
ar enterprises.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continned)
(x) Operating segments
An operating segment is 2 component of the Group that satisfies all of the following conditions: (1) the component
is able to earn revenwes and incur expenses from its ordinary activities; (2) whose operating resulis are repulady
reviewed by the Group’s management to make declsions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to
assess Its performance, and (3) for which the information on financial position, operating results and cash fAows
is available to the Group. If twe or more operating segments have similar economic characteristics and satisfy
certain conditions, they are aggregated into one single operating segment.

O'perating segments are reported In o manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group's
chief operating decision-maker for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing pedformance. The Group
considers the business from different pespectives including produces and services and geographic areas. The
operating segments that meet the specified criveria have been aggregated, and the operating segments that meet
quantitarhve thresholds have been reported separately.

Inter-segment rewenues are measured on the basis of actual transaction price for such transactions for segment
reporting, and segment accounting policies are consistent with those for the consolidated financial statements.

5  Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Prepamation of the consolidated Anancial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and Habilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experlence and other factors that are believed w be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carying values
of assets and Habilitles that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual resules may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated key assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future pedods affected.

(i) Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets of debt instruments and off balance
sheet credit assets measured at amortised cost and FYWOMC] is an area that requires the use of complex models and
significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credic behaviour (e.g. the likeliheod of customers
defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation technigues used in
measuring ECL is further detailed in note 55 (a).

A pumber of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring
ECL, such as:

- Segmentation of portfolic sharing similar credit risk characreristics for the purposes of measurng ECL;
- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

- Criteda for determining whether or not there was a significant increase in credic rsk. or a default or
impalrment loss was imcureed;

- Economic indicators for foreard looking measurement, and the application of economic scenarios and
veeightings;

- Management overlay for asset portfolics whose non-linear risk characrerstics cannot be adequarely reflected
through impairment models; and

- Discounted cash flows model is applicable to assets related to corporate client in stage 3.

Dietailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the Group in the abowve areas is set out in
note 55 (a).
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5  Ciritical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(i) Classification of financial assets

The critical judgments the Group has in determining the classification of financial assets include analysis of
business models and characteristics of contractual cash fAows,

The Group determines the business model for managing financial assets at the level of financial asser portfolic.
The factors considered include evaluation and reporting of financial asset performance to key management
personnel, risks affecting the performance of financial assets and their management metheds, and related business

management personnel. The way to get pald, erc.

When assessing whether the contractual cash flow of financial assets Is consistent with the basic lending
armangement, the Group has the following main judgments: Whether the principal may be subject to change in
the duration or amount of money due to prepayments during the duration; Wether interests is only included
currency timevalue, credit dsk, other basic bnrm'IrLu.E risks, and considerations for costs n.u.d.pmﬂr:. For m.mp]n.
Wether the amount pald in advance reflect only the outstanding principal and interest on the cutstanding
principal, as well as reasonable compensation for eardy termination of the contract.

(iii) Fair value of financial instroments

For financlal instruments without active market, the Group determines fair values using valuation techniques
which include discounted cash flow models, as well as other trpes of valuation models. Assumptions and inpuis
used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and foreign currency
exchange rates. Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimared cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of each reporting pericd applicable for
an instrament with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based on
observable market data at the end of each reporting period. However, where market data are not available,
management needs to make estimates on such unobservable market inputs based on assumptions. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affece the estimated fair value of financlal instruments.

{iv] De-recognition of financial asscts

In its mormal course of business, the Group transfers financial assets through varous types of transactions
inchading regular way sales and transfers, securdtisation, financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and
etc.. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing whether it has transferred these financial assets which

qualify for a full or partial de-recognition.

Where the Group enters into struciured transactions by which it transferred financial asset to structured entities,
the Group analyses whether the substance of the relationship bemween the Group and these structured entities
indicates that it controls these structured entities to determine whether the Group needs to consolidate these
structured entities. This will determine whether the following de-recognition analysis should be conducted at
the consolidared level or at the entity level from which the financial assets was transferred.

The Group analyses the contractual rights and obligations in connection with such transfers to determine whether
the de-recognition criterla are met based on the following considerations:

— whether it has transferred the dghts to recebve contractual cash flows from the Anancial assets or the
transfer qualified for the “pass through™ of those cash flows to independent third parties;

—  the extent to which the assoclated risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred by
using appropriate models. Significant judgment is applied in the Group's assessment with regard to the
parameters and assumptions applied in the models, estimated cash Aows before and afier the transfers,
the discount rates vsed based on current markst interest roces, vn.d.nbi]il}r factors considered and the
allocation of weightings in different scemarios;

—  where the Goup neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the rsks and rewards associated with
their ownership, the Group analyses whether the Group has relinguished its controls over these financial
assets, and if the Group has continuing involvement in these transferred financial assets.
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5  Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continned)

(v) Consolidation of structured entities

The Group makes significant judgment to assess whether or not to consolidate structured entities. When
performing this assessment, the Group:

—  assesses its contractual rights and obligations in light of the transaction structures, and evaluates the
Group’s power over the structured entities;

—  performs independent analyses and tests on the variable returns from the structured entities, including
but not limited to commission income and asset management fees marned, recencion of residual income,
and, if amy, liquidity and other support provided o the structured entities; and

—  assesses its ability to exercise its power to influence the variable returns assessed whether the Group
acts as a principal or an agent through analysis of the scope of the Group’s decision-making authordty,
remuneration entitled, other interests the Group holds, and the rights held by other parties.

{vi) Income taxes

Dietermining income tax provisions imvolves judgement on the Future tax treatment of certain transactions. There
are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the crdinary
course of business. The Group carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidersd periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislaticns. Dieferred tax assets are recognised for temponary deductible differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognisad to the extent that it is probable that fature taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of
fature taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewsd and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable thar huture taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recoversd.
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6  Net interest income
Year ended 31 December

019 2018

Intetest locome atklng fom (Note (1))
Dieposits with central banks 5,949 7049
Dreposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions 1,741 2472
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank

financial institutions 8,320 8,203
Financial assets held under resale agreements 753 Q87
Loans and advances to customers

— corponate loans 101, D5 95,562

— pmnﬂ] loans 84,748 50,541

— discounted bills T094 Br45
Financial investments

— at amortised cost 38,238 32,881

— at fair value H:.mru.Eh. ather mmprd:n:n:bm Income 20,584 16534
Crthers 16 39
Subtotal 268,498 241933
Intetest expense atslng froow
E-arm'wlngl from ceniral banks (B, 118) I:E,EJT.I
Dreposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions (24,569) (26,389)
Macements from banks and non-bank financial institutions (3.522) I:&..!EH:I
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements {1679 (1.623)
Dreposits from customers (BDL2TZ) (66,254)
Dheht securities lmsued (22,186) (22,416)
Lenzs liahilicias (548) —
Oithers (33 (13)
Subtotal (141,227) {128,021}
Met intersst income 127,271 112912

Hoim:

[11] Incareat incsma from Impaired Anancid ssets b BAB3EL millon for the yesr anded 31 December 2019 [(318: EAMBITS millan].
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7  Net fee and commission income
Year ended 31 December

2019 2018
Fee and commission faco mer
Bank card fees 34, 800 24,516
Commission for custodian business and other fiduciary 3,835 5,04
Agency Fees and commission (Maoee (1)) T35 4,830
Guarantes and nﬂrl.l:u:)r ) 4, 898 5013
Settlement and clearance fees 1,322 1269
Oiithers B 318
Tatal 52,284 42,599
Fee and commission expense (5, D) (5.391)
Mt fee and commission income i, JRE F7.008
Mate:
0 Agesey femsand p— 4 for ala ofbonds, fards and praduces, and p o "

8  Net trading gain
Year ended 31 December

019 2018
Drebst securities and certificates of interbank deposic 2,783 3,897
Fn:ndzn currencies 2,194 1,983
Drerivatives and related exposures 52 552
Financial instrument designated at fair value through profic or loss — BT
Total 5.219 6,519

9  Net gain from investment securities
Year ended 31 December

2019 2018

Financial investments
— at fair value through profit or boss 7,329 7745
— at amortlsed cost 188 [494)
— at fair value 'ﬂ!mud:. ather mmp:ﬂ:.gmlw Income {1,878} {1,415:|
Revaluation gain/{loss) on transfer out of equity at disposal 1,187 (262}
Mt gain fraom bills r:ﬂ.llnn-unﬂ'.ug Sibid 154
Met loss from securitisation of financial assets 71 3181
Dthers 250 158
Total 8,629 9,046
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10 Net hedging loss

Year ended 31 December
019 2018

Met loss of fair value hedge (2) (1}

11 Operating expenses
¥ear ended 31 December

019 2018
Staff costs
— mllaries and bonusss 22,320 22,196
— welfare EXpenses 1,262 1,400
— social insurance 1,490 1. 469
— housing fund 1,250 1,300
— labour union expenses and employes education expenses 462 416
— housing allowance ] 186
— other short-rerm benefits &7 @l
— post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans 2770 2453
— post-employment benefis — defined benefit plans (14 102
— other long-term benefits 1 [
Substotal 29,636 29,599
Property and equipment expenses
— depreciation of rght-ofuse assets »ITS —
— depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,742 1.830
— rent and property management expenses 1,492 1972
— amortisation expenses 1,045 1,112
— electronic equipment operating expenses 547 458
— maintenance 718 483
— othems 405 398
Substotal 138 9:255
Tax and surcharges 1,854 1,699
(Orther general openting and administrative expenses (Mote (1)) 13,440 12,047
Toatal 54,168 52,500
HNoim:
i Incladed in iber guneral aperasing und adrinirstive expenms wars usdis s =f FMBZL ruillion for the e anded 31 Dacarber 2010 (2013: RAMBZ0

smillien] and reen-mdie fear of RABS millien far cha yar anded 31 Dacarsbar 2019 (1018: RABE2] milbian].
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11 Gpemting expenses (Continued)

{a) Individuals with highest emoluments

For the pear ended 31 December 2019
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

Far the year ended 31 Dlecember 2019, of the 5 individuals with H:n:]:ﬂd:.ﬂ't emoluments in the 'Gmp, there
was ao director (2018 Mil) and no supervisor (2018: Mil). The aggrepate of the emoluments before individual
income tax In respect of the other five (2018: five) highest paid individuals of the Group were as follows:

Year ended 31 December

019 2018
FMB 0 EME 000

Basic salaries, ]:.-u'u.l'l.u.g allowances, other allowances and
benefits in kind 24,897 20,089
D'I.lcr:l.{o.n.n.qr bonusss 19, B 18,452
Contrbution to pension scheme 1,761 1438
Total 46,462 39,579

The emcluments before individual income tax of the
are within the following bands:

fiwe individuals of the Group with the highest emoluments

Year ended 31 Dlecember

2019 2018
EMES, 000,001 — EMBLO000,000 3 3
FMEB 10,000,001 — RMB1 5,000,000 2 2

Mo inducement fee and compensation for loss of office was paid to the five highest paid individuals for the year

ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Mil).

12 Credit impairment losses

31 Drecember 31 December
2019 2018
Depu:l.l:l with banks and non-bank financial institutions 67 11
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank
financial institutions {84 {1:|
Financial assets held under resale agreements 43 (33)
Interest recetvables 3,103 3034
Loans and advances to customers 6B, 793 47,733
Financial investments
— @t amortised cost 3,589 gao
— at fair value through other comprehensive income 67E 75
Dther recetvables 390 5,098
Off-balance sheet items 1, 1040 (50}
Total F6,679 57.BBG
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For the pear ended 31 December 2009
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

13 Impairment losses on other assets

31 December 31 December
2019 s
Crther assets-repossessed assets 576 347

14 Income tax

{a) thognis:d in the consolidated statement of pmfi.t or loss and other comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December

Mote 20019 2018

Current tax
— Mainland China 16,073 124580
— Hong Kong 501 361
— Ohverseas k] 46
Dieferred tax 3nic) (9,056) (4,337
Tatal 7551 BA50

Mainland China and Hong Kong income tax have been provided at the rate of 25% and 16.5% respectively.
Owerseas tax has been provided at the rate of taxation prevailing in the regions in which the Group operates
respecthvely.

(b} Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit

Year ended 31 December

2019 s
Profit before tax 56,545 54326
Income tax calculated at PRC statutory tax rare 14,136 13.581
Effect of different tax rates in other regions (263) (285)
Tax etfect of non-deductible EXpEnses 282 2?'4
Tax effect of non-taxable income
— interest income arsing from PRC government bonds
and local government bonds (4,893 (3,353
— the dividends of hunds (1520 (1.209)
— others (a1 (571
Income tax 72551 B850
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15 Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Year ended 31 December
2019 2018

[tems that will ot be reclassified subsequently w profit of loss
Changes on the measurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax
— net changes recognised during the year before tax — ]
— income tax — (2
Fair value changes on fimancial asset designated ar fair walue
through other comprehensive income, net of tax

— net '.‘_]:H.DE\EI in fair value mmgnl.md d.ur]ug the year before tax {1,052) 15

— income tax 63 ()
Transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property

— net changes during the year before tax — 65
Subtotal (783 B3

[tems that may be reclassified subsequently o profit o loss
Dther comprehenstve income transferable to profit or loss

under equity method

— net changes durng the year —_ {10}
Fair value changes on financial assets ar fair value through

other comprehensive income, net of tax (Moee(i))

— net changes during the year before tax 4,425 13,300
— net amount transferred to pmﬂt or los (2,187) 140
— Income tax (524) (3.409)

Credit impairment allowance on financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (Mote(ii) )

— net changes during the year prrd 173
— Income tax (242) (33)
Exchange differences on translation 592 2,209
Subtotal 3,991 12,379
Other comptrehensive lncome, het of tax 2,002 12,4632
Natm:
B Fair el e g e ) e El ok gl e cma gl e Erxchuche fowem o Btz ial ol o o e

cunnman ar fulr valas chroagh cour camprshanie ncsme (Nam 2 (61

] Cradit impalrmene alosncs inclods Anandal venmeres and losns snd sdvances 2 cunommer st fur ralus ehecugh edhr compreberabva incnme (Hees
2 iall.
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16 Earnings per share
Earnings per share information for the year ended 31 Diecember 2019 and 2018 is computed by dividing the profit for
the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of shares in issue during
the year.

The Bank issusd non-cumulatire preference shares during the year ended 31 Diecember 2016, under the terms and
conditlons as detalled in Mote 43 (). The Bank declared and paid cash dividends of RMB1,330 millon of non-
cumulative preference shares for the year of 20019 (2018: 1,330 millicn).

The comversion feature of preference shares is considered to Gl within contingently issuable ordinary shares. The
triggering events of conversion did not cocur as at 31 December 2019, therefore the comversion feature of preference
shares has no effect on the basic and dilated sarnings per share calculation.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated on the assumption that the BMB40 billion A-share convertible corporate
bonds publicly issued by the Bank on 4 March 2019 are deemed to have all been converted to ordinary shares upon
Issuance, and by dividing, after adjustments for the interest expenses of the convertible corporate bonds for the period,
the net profit of the year artributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank, by the adjusted weighted average number
of ordinary shares cutstanding during the year.

Yeatr ended 31 Deceimber

019 s
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Bank 48,015 44,513
Less: dividend atcributable to p.l::E:r:nn: shareholders of the Bank 1,330 1.330
Pmofit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank 46,685 43,183
Weighted average number of shares (in million shares) 48,935 48935
Basic earnings per share (in RMB) 0.95 0.88
Dhluted samings per share (in RME) 0.89 0.88
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17 Cash and balances with central banks

31 Drecember 31 December

Motes 2019 2018

o B35 6,188
Balances with central banks

— statutory deposit reserve funds 1] 354,074 399,797

— l'u.rplul d:pnllt reserve funds I:I.'I:J 97,602 128,425

— Hiscal deposits L] 1,890 2,816

— forelgn exchange reserve (i) 3,080 1,289

Accrued Interest 167 195

Total 463,158 538.708

Natar

[IH] The Group places manumry depeait comrre funds with the Peoples Bank of Chins ["PBOCT] sand oversas cencral banks whare it has cparsdana, Tha
muivory deprati msanve fands s noe svallsbbe for we in the Graop's datly budnes.

Aa o 3] Decerabar 2019, the siaosinry depeak coarve fands placed wich the PRBOC war cakuluied ot 9% (w31 Decamber 2118 12%] of digible

R bl dupariis for d E bua of tha Bank and ax 996 [ar o 3] Discambar 201E: 179) of sligibls Ranminbl deposin from cvermas financis]
trodmudomm. The Bank wam alea requined ca depade an ameone ageivalent ez 3% (oo 31 Dacambar 20LE: 996) of 1o fanipn cumancy deporits fram
branch - v dapsak remres funde.

As s 3] Decarsbar 2010, the statustoey BB deposis remeres ra applicable o Thajang Lin‘sn CITIC Rarsl Bank Corporation Linted 1n matdand
Chiry, o sshridisry of daw Geoup, war & 7.5% (@ wt 31 Decamber 2018 9%].

Tha £ v dapcalc furds placed wich the coniral banks of ovanmas e & d by rap jurud! Tha
eprrtt cesrve funds are Lrterent baaring ceope o tha fordgn. currency mumrve fands deparn placed widh chs FROC,

il Tha sorplus dapese remeve fonds ars matntained with the FEOC for the purpams af desring.
Fiscal depeatis placed wdih the PROC are nce mvallshle for use in the Graup's dally cpersdans, and are nan-neres baarng,
Tha Farsign sachangs ressrve s malncaned sith che PROC In assardance with the relsied notics lased by che PROC. The mssrs b payabls on o meanibly

buaets wt 2096 of cha poeal cantrace smaune of driven Frward. In tha pravicus monck for cha parciad of applicaten. Suck feceign
exchanpy remrve 3 oo beacing and will be mpayable In 11 menchs secarding 1o ths Mot
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18 Deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions

{a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Decetnber 31 December
Mote 019 2018
In Mainland China
— banks B9, 740 44,318
— non-bank financial institutions 5,188 21028
Subtotal 94,928 65,3468
Outside Mainland China
— banks 15,785 31.984
— non-bank financial institutions 11 1,783
Subtotal 25,796 33,767
Accrued intepsst 715 114
Gross balance 121,439 99,227
Less: Allowances for impalrment losses 32 (142) ﬁ"‘i:l
Met balance 121,297 99,153
(b} Analysed by remaining maturity
31 Decemaber 31 Diecember
Mote 019 2018
Demand deposits (Mote (i)} 39,638 65023
Time deposits with remaining maturige
— within one month 1,620 22256
— between one month and ane year 79,466 11834
Subtotal 81,086 34,090
Accrued intersst 715 114
Gross balance 121,439 G027
Less: Allowances for impairment losses 37 (142) (741
Met balance 121,297 99,153

ny A ac 3 Diacamber 3119, cha cacrying smcant of pledged deportt wich banks acd atber fnancil drototicns wa AMBS milion (an et 31
Ducamber 2013: RABL, 342 millizal. These depeaies wer mainly wrurpin wich s mpul beady.
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19 Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial institutions

(a)

Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Deecember 31 December
Mote 019 2018
In Mainland China

— banks 2,773 13,680
— non-bank financial institutions 119,330 113.351
Subtotal 142,103 127,031

Ouiside Mainland China
— banks 61,306 48,431
— non-bank financial institutions — —
Subtoral 61,306 48,421
HAccrusd Interest 1,219 B73
Gross balance 204,628 176,325
Less: Allowances for impairment losses 32 (81 (1&5)
Net balance 204,547 176,160

ib) Analysed by remaining maturity

31 Drecember 31 December
Mote 2019 2018
Within one month 126,867 112,284
Between one month and cne year 62,002 63,168
Ohver ane year 14,450 —
Accrued intersst 1,219 B73
Gross balance 204,628 176,325
Less: Allowances for impairment losses 32 (81) (163}
Net balance 204, 547 176,160
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20 Derivatives

Deerivatives include forward, swap and option transactions undertaken by the Group in foreign exchange, precious
metals, interest rate and credit derbvatives related to trading. asset and liability management and customer initiared
transactions. The Group, through the opertions of its branch network, acts as an intermediary for o wide mange of
customers for structuring deals to offer risk management solutions to maich individual customer needs. These positions
are actively managed through hedging transactions with external parties to ensure the Group’s net exposures are within
acceptable risk levels. The Group also uses these derbvatives for proprietary trading purposes and to manage its own asset
and liability and structural positions. Derivatiwes, except for those which are designated as hedging instruments (Mote
20(c)), are held for trading. Derivatives classified as held for trading are for trading and customer initiated transactions
purpose, and those for fsk management purposes but do not meet the criveria for hedge accounting.

The contractual/notional amounts of derbrathres provide a basis for comparison with fair values of detbvaties recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of futare cash Aows
involred ar the current Bir values of the derlvatives and, therefore, do mot indicare the Gmu.g‘: Exposure to credit or

market risks.
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Nomlnal Nominal
amouwht Assets Liabilitles amount Aszers Liabilities
Hedping insruments {Mote 20c))
— inberest rabe derivacives 2 800 15 17 8,385 o5 B
MNon-Hedging instrumenis
— interest rate derivatives LEB3, 406 5,188 5159 1837, M7 6,010 5,566
— currency derivatives 1L,513 870 11,700 10,928 2,595,674 24,826 24,501
— precious meml derivarives 11,715 14 73z 58, b 1,048 1,170
— credic derivatives — — — B0 11 1
Taml 4,412,081 17,117 16,836 4,500,770 31,991 31,646

{a) MNominal amount ana]ysn:l 1:-}' remaining maturity

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Within thres months 1,746,119 1,921,744
Berween three months and one year L,T53923 2,033.873
Berween one year and Five years B9G,911 5423276
Oheer Five FeELrs 15,128 2875
Total 4,412,081 4,500,770

(b} Credit risk weighted amounts

The credit risk weighted amount has been computed in accordance with the Regulation Governing Capital of
Commercial Banks (Provisional) promulgated by the CBIRC in the year of 2012, and depends on the status of
the counterparties and the maturity charactedstics of the Instraments, including those customer-driven back-to-
back transactions. As ar 31 Dlecember 2019, the total amount of credit risk weighted amount for counterparty
was RMB14,631 million l::nl at 31 December 2018 RMB20,1 58 mlﬂinn}.

{c) Fair value h:dgc

A subsidiary of the Group utilises falr value hedge to diminate the effect of fair value changes of financial assets
and financial liabilities caused by market interest rate Auctuations. Interest rate swap contracts are used for
hedging interest risks arsing from debt securities ar fair value through other comprehensive income, certificares
of deposit and subordinated bonds issued.
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21 Financial assets held under resale agreements

{a) Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Deecember 31 December
Mote 019 2018
In Mainland China

— banks 10, e 3402
— non-bank financial institutions — 5428
Subtotal 10,001 9.B30

Ouiside Mainland China
— banks — 958
Accrued interest —_ B
Gross balance 10,01 10,7594
Less: Allowance for impalrment losses 32 (471 4)
Net balance 9,954 10,750

(b Ani]}'sr.d by types of collateral

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the collateral type of financial asset under resale agreements
of the Group are all debt instruments. The collateral received by the Group in resale transactions are disclosed
in Mote 52 Collatenl.

ic) Analysed by remaining marurity

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the financial assets held under resale agreements of the Group
all mature within one monch.
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22 Loans and advances to customers

fa) Analysed by nature

31 Deceinber 31 December
Maotes 019 mls
Loans and advances to customers at
amortised cost
Corporate loans and advances
— loans 1911597 1LE33.171
— discounted bills 3TET 146,414
— finance lease receivables and payment for
resale arrangement 43, 00 47 BLT
Subtotal 1,958, 384 2,027 402
Personal loans and advances
— residential mortgages TTa657 G543 407
— credit cands 514,657 442 493
— personal consumption 205,483 203,833
— business loans 227,102 194,737
Subtoial 1,723,899 1,484,490
Accrued inrersst 1, 10 B.338
Gross balance 3,692,387 3,320,230
Less: Allowances for impairment losses on loans 32
— principal (115,403 {101,022)
— interest (86) (7E)
Loans and advances to customers at
amartised cost, net 3,576,898 3,419,130
Loans and advances to customers at fair value
through other comprehensive income
— loans 932 137
— discounted bills 07,867 96,383
Carrying amount of loans and advances at fair
value through other comprehensive income 308, TED 96,520
— fair value changes through comprehensive
incorme (48) {2 1:|
Loans and advances to customers ar fair walae
through profic or lass
Personal loans and advances
— residential mortgages 6,915 —
Total 3,892,602 3,31 5650
Allowances for impairment losses on loans and
advances to customers at fair value through
oither comprehensive income 32 ($67) (132}
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22 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(b) Analysed by assessment method of allowance for impairment losses

31 December 2019
Stape three
Stage one Stage two (Mate (1)) Taotal

Girass loans and advances to astamers

at amortised costs 516,330 96,397 69,556 36821,183
Accrued interest 9,320 73 11 10,104
Less: Allowance for impairment losses (35,562) (26.,088) (53,839) (115489
Carrying amount of loans and wdvainces w

customers measured 1t Amortised cost 3,490,085 T1,082 15,728 3.576,898
Carrying amount of loans and wdvinces w

customers at fair vihue through other

comprehensive income 308,712 48 il 308,789
Total 3798800 71,130 15757 3.885.687
Allowances for impairment losses on loans

and advances to customers at fair value

through other comprehensive income (453 — (14 (467)

31 December 2018

Slngz thres
Stape ane Smge two [Maee (i) Taowl

Giross loans and advances to custamers

at amortised oosts 3,351,529 02,940 65414 3511892
Accrued intepest 7392 727 12 B.338
Less: Allowance for impalrment losses (31.940) (22,788) (45,37 2) {101 ,100)
Carrying amount of loans and

advances to customers measured

ar Amortised cos 3.329,181 70,BE8 19,061 3,419,130
Carrying amount of loans and adwances

to customers at falr value through

other comprehensive income a6,520 - — 9&, 520
Total 3423701 70,BE8 19,061 3,515,650
Allowances for impairment losses on

loans and advances to customers

ar fair value through other

comprehenshre income (132) — — {132}
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22 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

ib)  Analysed by assessment method of allowance for impairment losses (Continued)

[1H] Siage 3 Jaars arw lawma and sdvance io casicman thet b iocamed coedl Impal o,

31 Dacamber 31 Dacermbsar

2018 mnis

Secured pertizn 41,506 37,548
Unmcured porien 7080 27766
Grear balunc 69585 5414
Allowanza for tmpatmare loner (53,853) WEA72)

A e 31 Dacarmber 2015, tha
Dracarmber 2013; AAMBIS, 221 miling).

pomur zovered by pledgs and callwen held of mcured perilen i FAMBA0, 306 millan fx = 31

Tha Fur valus af cell | wan d by bamed oo cha Loiam k dudi lable sxrerrald val IF any, adjussd

by taking inea asccunt the et cadlacian srpacimes an wall w markes douation

{c) Owerdue loans analysed by overdue pericd

31 December 2019

Chrerd Chverd
Owerdue between three  between one
withln thiee months and yeat ahd  Owerdue over
months odve yeak three yeaks three yeaks Total
Unsecured loans 17173 1,511 1.507 144 19,335
Guaranteed loans 10,353 B350 4,191 230 21,124
Loans with pledged
assers
— loans secured by
collareral 23,901 11,134 10,810 2,012 47,857
— pledged loans 2,439 1,865 1,288 101 5,603
Tatal 53.B66 29,860 17,796 2487 104,009
31 December 2018
Chrerdue Ohrerdus
Owerdue  between three beetwreen one
within three months and year and  Owerdue over
months OnE Fear three years three years Total
Unsecured loans 9,221 9,602 1877 493 21,293
Guaranteed loans 9.284 8,292 6539 BI7 24,842
Loans with pledged
assers
— loans secured by
collateral 16,428 13.333 12,008 2367 44,142
— pledged loans 2457 1,959 1,792 114 5,282
Tatal 37.390 33,192 22376 3,601 965,559

Owerdue loans represent loans of which the principal or interest are overdue one day or more.
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22 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

id) Finance lease receivables and Payment for resale arrangement

Finance lease recetvables and payment for resale amangement transactions are attrlburable to the Group's
subsidiaries, CITIC Financial Leasing Limited (“CFLL") and CITIC Internaticnal Pinance Heoldings Limived
(“CIFH"), include net investment in machines and equipment leased to customers under finance lease and hire
purchase contracts which have the characteristics of finance leases, These contracts wsually o for an injtal
period from 1 to 25 years. The total finance lease receivables and payment for resale arrangement transactions
under finance lease and hire purchase contracts and their present values are as follows:

31 Drecember 31 December

2019 2018

Within one year (including one year) 11,619 11,826

One FEar to two years lf_inrJ.u.dLu.E oo :FH.I:I:I 9,935 Q,Bib

Two years to three years (including three years) 6,689 7.B63

Oheer three years 14,757 18,262

Gross balance 43, 000 47,817
Less: Allowance for impatrment losses

— stage one (69 {1001}

— stage two (1,153) (429)

— stage three (150 (Lo}

Met balance 41,007 465287
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23 Financial investments

(a) Analysed by types

31 Deceinber 31 December
Mote 019 mls
Flhandlal assets at falr value through
profit oF loss
Investment funds 218,491 189,176
Diebt securities 42,870 71.820
Certificares of deposic 46,792 16,713
Equity instraments B424 4 451
WMPs and imvestments through
structured entities 952 11&
Trust imvestment plans (Mote(i)) 17 26,486
Met balance 317,546 08872
Flhandlal assets at amorntised cost
Diebt securities 574,644 381588
Investment management products managed by
securities companies (Mote(i)) 186,217 228502
Trust imvestment plans (Mote(i)) 160,248 151.582
Certificares of deposic — 11 40
Subtotal 921,109 TT3.178
Accrued intersst 2,901 BA30
Less: Allowance for impairment losses 32 {8,776 I:5,3?'ﬂ:|
— principles (6,758) (3.355)
— accrued interests (18} (15)
Met balance 924,234 TTB.238
Flnanclal assets at falr value throngh other
com prehenslve lncome (Mote(L1))
Dbt securities 616,794 401,015
Certificares of deposic 4,866 12044
Subtotal 621,660 503,659
Accrued interest 7120 6687
Met balance 628,780 510346
Allowances for impairment losses on Anancial
investments ar fair value through other
comprehensive income 32 (1.531) {1.039)
Flhanclal assets designated at falr value through
othet comprehensive lncome (Mote(ll)) 3,036 2,707
Tatal 1,873.596 1,600,163
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23 Financial investments {Continned)

(2) Analysed by types (Continued)

Notes:

) As of 31 December 2019, RMBE4,447 million (31 December 2018: RMBE99,095 million) of Trust
imvestment plans and Investment management products managed by securities companies listed above
were managed by the subsidiaries and related companies of CITIC Corporation Limited, the Bank’s
immediate parent company.

The underying assets of Trust investment plans and Investment management products managed by
securities companies primarily inchude credic assets, interbank assets and rediscounted bills (Mote 55 (2)

vili]).
(&)  Financial investments at fair value throuph other comprefbensive income

31 Diecember 2019
Equity Drebt secutlny

Mot Insttuments  lhstruments Total
Costsl Amortised cost 4,140 614,035 618,175
Fair value change on accumulated
into other comprehensive income {1, 1) T2 5,521
Fair value 3,036 621,660 624,696
Allovance for impairment losses 32 (1,631) (1,631)
31 December 2018
Equity Dhebt security
Hote Instruments Instruments Total
Costs/ Amortised cost .78 498,299 301,038
Fair value change on accumulated inta
other comprehensive income (52} 3,360 5308
Fair value 707 503,659 506,366
Allowance for impairment losses 3z I:l,ﬂaﬂ:l (l,ﬂaﬂ:l
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23 Financial investments (Continued)

(b} Analysed by location of counterparties

31 Deceinber 31 December
Mote 019 2018
In Mainland China
— EOVErnments 653,797 475246
— palicy banks 98,832 122411
— banks and non-bank financial instliutions 916,083 400,793
— corporates 102,415 126,144
Subtotal L77L1Z7 1,124.594
Outside Mainland China
— POVErnMEnts 20,986 16,121
— banks and non-bank financial instoations 42 069 433 010
— public entities 340 2084
— Corporates 18,829 11,707
Subtotal 92,224 443 822
Accrued intersst 17,021 13,117
Total 1,880,372 1,603,533
Less: Impairment allowance for financial assets
at amortised cost 32 (6, 776) (3.370)
Met balance 1,873,506 1,600,153
Listed in Hong Kong 44,990 39.541
Listed cutside Hong Kong 1,436,126 1,104 876
Unlisted 392,480 455,746
Total 1,873,506 1,600,153

Bonds traded in China’s inter-bank bond market are listed cutside Hong Kong.
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Analysed by assessment method of allowance for impairment losses

31 December 2019

Motes Stape one  Stage two  Stage three Total

Financial assets at amortsed costs 01,695 10,716 BO0E 921,109
HAccrusd Interest a9.825 T — 9,901
Less: Allowance for impalrment losses 32 (3.614) (334 (2,B28) (6, 776)
HMet Balance GO7, M0 10,458 5,870 924,234
Financlal assets at fair value through

ather :.umprd:.:n.lh\e income (21,337 123 200 621,660
Accrued interest TalZ0 — — Tl
Net Balance 628,457 123 200 628,780
Total carying amount of financial

assets affected by credit risk 1,536,353 10,581 G070 1,553,014
Allowance for impairment losses of

other debt instruments included in

other comprehenshre income (1.331) (3 (2973 (1,631)

31 December 2018
Motes Sl:n.g\e one Stn.g\e e Sl:n.g\e three Total

Financlal assets at amortised costs ThE, 136 3.BE2 1,160 73178
Accrued Interest 8,422 g — 8,430
Less: Allowance for impalrment losses 32 (2.680) (152) (538) (3.370)
Net Balance TraA78 3.738 622 B3R
Financlal assets at fair value ﬂn‘nrud:.

other comprehensive income 503,334 104 221 303,639
MAccruad intersse 5,586 1 — 5,687
Net Balance 510,020 105 221 510,346
Total carrying amount of financial

assets affected by credic risk 1,283 898 3,843 843 1,288,584
Allowance for impairment losses of

other debt instruments included in

other comprehenstre income (727} (2 (3100 (1.039)
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For the pear ended 31 December 2009

{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

24 Investments in associates and joint ventures

31 December 31 December

Mote 2019 2018

I nvestments in jolnt ventures l::n.:l 2,914 2,759
lovestments in associates (k) T58 1,122
Total 3,672 3,881

{a) Inwvestment in joint ventures

The details of the joint ventures as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

Fetmn of Effective Nomlnal value
buslhess Place of petcentige  Pinclpal of lsued
Nume of conpany sthuciute Incotpohthn of dutes  acthrltles shares
OTIC aiBank Canpanden Linited  Carpamdien Mainknd China 700%  Financhl mrvices RME4.0 billion
[PCITIC Bairin”) (Noee (1)
J3C Ahtyn Bank Carparadien Limired.  Carparatien FEambkhmn 500%  Financhl mrvices KZT7.05 billion
[7J5C Akrs Bank’) (Noseif)
e

[1H] Acrording ex tha Articln af Anccladan, che Bank and Fujisn BaRul Neewark Technolgy Ca. Led. ["Fufan BoRai™] bl joindy sppeevs muin

i In. 2018, tha Bank csrmplared i scquisiticn of 40 1% sham in [SC Akyn Bank Ascording ta the Amdcles of Amacistien of J5C Alyn Bk,
3 garding al majex of J5C Al Bark shall be ssbje in the jalnt sppraval of the Bank and the ctber shavdhoMar, cha )50

Hulyk Bank of Kxakhwan,

Financial statements of the joint ven tures are as follow:
As at or for the yeal ended 3019

Total Total Total Opetating Net
Mame of Entetptise assers liabilieles heet assets Ihcome maln
CITIC Baixin 58,865 55620 3,245 1373 0
J5C Altyn Bank 520 BABT 1,033 472 59
As at or for the year ended 2018
Total Toral Taotal Operating Met
Mame of Enterprise assers liabilities net assets Income {losg)i gain
CITIC Baizin 35.924 3701 5223 1,295 (484)
J5C Altyn Bank 7.524 7a194 734 349 195

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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24 Investments in associates and joint ventures (Contimued)

{a) Investment in joint ventures (Contimed)

Movement of the Group’s interests in the joint venture:

Year ended Year ended

31 Drecember 31 December

2019 2018

Initial investment cost 3,229 3,229
HAsatl ]n.u.un:y 2,759 1194
Additions — 1,829
Share of net loss of the joint ventures for the year 154 (274)
Exchange difference 1 B
As at 31 December 2,914 2,759

{b) Investment in associates

The Group holds its imvestment in associates through subsidiaries and details of the associates as at 31 December
2019 was as Follows:

Effective

|peireniinge
of shares Mamlnad
Fotm of and vating alue
busines Place of tighthed  Prindpal of lssed
Nuine of compaiy stuctube Incotpohition by the Group  acthrides shates
CITIC [neemational Asres Masagement Corpocatian~ Hoag Eoap 4%  luvemment boldingand  HED2.214 nillian
Binbai {Tiajis} Financial Asees Exchange Corpocation Mainkiad China 2% Semvices and invesmoenr RMBI0 nillian

Can pary Linird ["BFAET

Financial statements of the assoclates are as follow:

As at or for the yeat ended 2019

Total Total Total Operating Met
Name of EntetpHse assets labilites het assets lhcome loss
ClAM 1,540 172 1,368 (38) (133
BEAE 428 26 4032 1500 (50)

As ar or for the year ended 2018

Tortal Tatal Tartal Operating, Met

Name of Enterprise assels liabilities net assets income  (loss)/profit

CIAM 1,631 149 1482 (718) (758)
ZhongAn Financial

Services Limited BE4 — BE4 5 5

BEAE 499 47 432 3 (30)
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24 Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

(b} Investment in associates (Continued)
Mowvement of the Group’s interests In associates:

Yeat ended 31 ¥ear ended 31
Drecember 2019 Dhecember 2018
Initial investment cost 1,168 1,489
As at | Januany 1,122 1,145
Additions (321) 306
Share of net loss of associates for the year (52) (368)
Share of other comprehensive income of asseciates
for the year — (10}
Exchange difference 9
Az gt 31 December TSR 1,122
25 Investment in subsidiaries
31 Dacembar 31 Decembear
Motes 20019 2018
Investment in subsidiaries
— CITIC international financial holdings limired
(“CIFH™) (i) 16,570 16,570
— CHCB (Hong Kong) Imvestment Limited
(MCHCE Investment™) (i) L57TT 1577
— Zhejiang Lin’an CITIC Rural Bank Corporation
Limited {"Lin’an Bural Bank™) (i) 102 102
— CITIC financial leasing (O, LTD (“CFLL™) {iv) R 4,000
Total 12,249 22,249

240 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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25 Investment in subsidiaries (Continued)
Major subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Pardcular ol % of The

of the lsusd owietshlp  owiershlp bdd Groap's

Pl of and pald up Principal directly hedd by subsidlatles effisctbre

Nume of enthy Incatpanation caplal activitles bythe Bank  of the Bank Livbetest

CIFH {Weee () Heng Keng HELR, 503 milicn.  Cammendal banking and LD0% - Lo

ather finandal rerices

(HCH [nvesment (Mo (i)]  Hoop Koo HEDL, B9 milicn  Lending mrvices w.05% 071% T

Lin'an Fural Bank (Woee (ii))  Mainkd China AMBN0 milicn  Cammerdal banking 1L - 1%

CFLL (Mae (i) Mainknd China RMB4.000 miliar  Financial lease vperaticas L00% — 100

Natae

(] CIFH s haking company gl 1 ured brandoy in Heop Koap. In b pa cheoagh Lo aebid | hankirg

wred aiber firanclal srvicer. Tha Bank kolds |00 sharebelding i CIFH. OFH halds 759 sharabaling in CTTIC Bank Ircamstiznal Limied [FCBIT.

Il CHCH lovesiment wa frnded in Hang Kang in 1984, Haling s maney kinding licencs tmued by the Heng Esng Campany Regiiery, T30 Invastment's
bualrem mape drclude cxpical market Imasment, landing and ceher relsted recvice. Tha Back belds 90059 anbelding in CHCB | wnd
CIFH helds e g 0.7 1% sharshaling in CHCE 1 Tha Bank effectivaly bald 09760 sharshabing in CHCB |

] Lin‘sn Fars] Bark s foundad in Thajang Frovincs of Mainlind Chins in 3011 with s mpimeed capital =f FAE200 milion, Dt principal sctbvities are
commarcil baniking rdarsd businemes. The Back held £ 1% of Lin‘sn Boral Baok's shares and wedng righte.

Iiwh The Bank sytablished CFLL b 1015 wich o roplasmred capital of FASB4 Bllica. [ex princip ol burine ssthition s Anandal lesrng. The Bank belds 10096
af its sharer and vadng righte

2019 Anmuel Report  24]
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26 Investment properties

31 December 31 December

2019 s

Fair value as ar 1 January 443 295
Change in fair value (15) 35
Transkers i.u.url:mt) {1 a3
Exchange difference 1 20
Fair value as ar 31 December 426 443

Imvestment properties of the Group are buildings held by subsidiares and mainly located in Hong Kong and leased to

third parties through operating leases. There are active real estate markets where the investment properiies are located
and the Group is able to obrain market price and related information of similar properties, and therefore malkes
estimation about the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2019,

All investment properties of the Group were revalued at 31 December 2019 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Prudential Surveyors Hong Kong Limited. on an open market value basis. The fair value is in line with the definition
of “IFR.513 — Pair value measurement™ The revaluation surplus has been recognised in the profic or loss for the current
year. Prudential Surveyors Hong Kong Limited has among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category of properties being valaed.

The investment properties of the Group are categorised into Level 3.

27 Property, plant and equipment

Computer
Consttuctlon equlpnent
Bulldings ln progress and othets Total
Cost or deemed cost:
As ar 1 January 2019 21,885 1,288 1,839 34,012
Additions 496 T 1,612 1,907
Transfer in (out) in current year 471 (4713
Disposals (263) (7o) (965)
Exchange differences 10 — 19 9
As ar 31 December 2019 11599 1616 11,768 35983
Accumulated depreciation:
As at | Jamaacy 2019 (4:949) (7,678 (12,627)
Diepreciation charges (694 (1,048) (L,742)
Dhsposals 125 656 TEL
Exchange differences (&) (17 (23}
As ar 31 December 2019 (5.524) (8.087) (13.611)
Met carrying value:
Asar 1 ]ﬂ.nu.ll:}' 2019 16,936 1,288 3,161 21,385
As at 31 December 2019 (Mot {i)) 17,075 1,616 3,681 22,372

243  China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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27 Property, plant and equipment (Continned)

Computer
Construction equipment

Buildings in progress and others Total
Cost or deemed cost:
As at 1 January 2018 21,313 1078 11,018 33409
Additions 1157 210 1,466 2,833
Transfer out {102) — (1,041} 1.143)
Disposals (514) — (663 (1,177)
Exchange differences 31 — 39 Qo
As at 31 December 2018 21,885 1,288 10,839 34,012
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 January 2018 (4:497) (7.582) {12,079)
Deepreciation charges (674) (1.156) {1.830)
Transfer outr ] 492 501
Diisposals 9 610 B39
Exchange differences (16) (42) (58)
As at 31 Decemnber 2018 (4,949) (TETE) (12,527)
Met carrying value:
As at 1 January 2018 16,816 1078 3,436 21,330
As at 31 December 2018 (Mate (1)) 16,936 1,288 3,161 21,385

Hatar:

I As 3] Dacember 2014, the mpliration o ansfer proses of ertain baikings scqaived bas nee bean camplesed, and the net besk valus =Fmch butkings
war apprastruedy RMEL 211 millien (an s 31 December 3118 RABLOFE milion). The Graup bellesar cha daer nex
affect che righes of the Grsap o the lagal msssaree 10 thes baildings.
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{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

28 Right-of-use assets

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

Land Vehilcles

Bulldings use Fight Equlpments and othets Total
Caost or deemed cost
As ar 31 December 2018 — — — — —
Change in accounting palicyn 12,145 1.235 125 48 13.553
As ar 1 Janwary 2019 12,145 1.235 125 48 13.553
Additions 2,485 — 7 — 2492
Reducticns (14€) (18) (6) (1 (169)
Emd:ﬂ.ng\e ditferences 17 — — — 17
As ar 31 December 2019 14,501 1,219 126 i7 15,893
Accumulated depreciation:
As ar 31 December 2018 — — — — —
Change in accounting palicyn — (242) — — (242}
As ar 1 Janwary 2019 — (242) = — [242)
Accrual (3.194) (30 (40) (1) (3.273)
Reductions 10 5 1 — 1a
Exchange differences (2) — — — (2}
As ar 31 December 2019 (3.188) [267) (39 {11} (3.503)
Met carrying value:
As at 1 January 2019 12,145 293 123 i8 13311
As ar 31 Diecember 2019 11,315 952 a7 36 12390

I:I.:I As gt 31 December 2019, the balance of HJ.EGII:H.I._F“! lease liabilicles amounted to RMB10,894 million, Lu.du.d.lng

BEME3.176 million of lease Habilities that will mature within a year.

(H)  As ar 31 December 2019, lease payments relating to lease contraces signed but yet to be evecuted amounted oo

FEME113 million.

(i#1)  Faor the year ended 31 December 2019, the lease expense of short-term leases with a lease term of no more than

12 months and leases of assets with low walues when new amounted to BMBG62 million.

244 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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29 Goodwill
31 Drecember 31 December
2019 2018
Asail ]mu.n.qr A Bin
Exchange difference 16 47
Az at 31 December 912 B9G

Based on the result of impairment test, no impairment losses on goodwill were recognised as ar 31 December 2019
{as at 31 December 2018 Mil).

30 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

31 Deecember 31 December

2019 2018

Dheferred tax assets 35095 23,174
Dheferred tax liabilities (1) {16
Net 32,085 23,158

{a) Analysed by namure and jurisdiction
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Deductible/ Dreductible!

(razahle) Dreferred (taxable) Dieferred
teim poraky tax assets/ temporay tax assets/
differences (labiltes) differences (liabilities)

Dieferred tax assets

— allowance for impairment losses 129,678 32,209 95710 23,729

— fair value adjustments (11,559) (2,863 (3.944) (2.526)

— employee reticement benefits and

salaries payable 10,202 2,351 T.430 L.B57

— others 985 200 238 114
Subtotal 129,306 32095 93,434 23,174
Dreferred tax liabilities

— fair value adjustments (56) (10 (B6) (16)
Net 129,250 32,085 93,348 23,158
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30 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (Continned)

(b) Offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

As gt 31 December 2019, the deferred tax assets/liabilities offser b}r the GJ:U'LI.P were RMBE2,223 million (31
Diecember 2018 RME2,720 million).

(c) Movement of deferred tax

Employee
et bement
Allvwance for benefles Toral
Impalrment Falt value  and accrued deferred
lomes  adjustments staff cost (Oithers tax
A ar 31 Diecember 2018 23,719 [2.542) 1,857 114 23,158
Emoﬁ.ui.ud i.u.pmﬂ'tw]m: B.3T1 (72} &Th Bl 9,056
Recognised in other comprebensive income 103 261) 18 [ (134
Exchange differ=nces [ — — n §
As at 31 Diecember 2019 jzam (1B75) 1,551 100 32,085
As at 31 December 2017 17,060 3070 1562 125 .87
Chanpe in aocounting poligr 30 (2,588) — (10) 422
Emoﬁ.ui.ud in pmﬂt ar Joas 1,631 404 ] 2 4337
Recegniced in other comprehencive income = (3.430) (3 — [%.433)
Exchange differences 18 1 = 3 15
As at 31 December 2018 278 I:I.S‘i::l 1857 114 1315

245 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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31 Other assets

31 Drecember 31 December
Motes 2019 2018
Advanced payTmnents and setilement accounis 34,921 2,356
Aszers transfer receivables 12,698 —
Prepayments for properties and equipment (i 11,721 10,833
Assets with continuing imvolvement 915 1,568
Fee and commission recebrables 2,716 3.5
Interest receivables 2,119 2,205
Repossessed assets (i) 1.326 2203
Precious metal leasing 3,071 1,632
Prepayments for assets acquired for finance leases &, difin 1679
Leasehiald improvements (% BT1
Prepaid rent 45 983
Land use rights — o903
Orihers L] 5.895 8,574
Total 87,556 37433
Matax
i Porey JEr grag wnaal gy
Frap fex prep ared agalp ara manky p tha Growp msde Far afflos pemise being carstnucoed.
il B mrvmeal ety
3 Decamber 31 Decambar
Boom e MLE
Praccziom 2401 2,430
Orihars 3 420
Gerear balonow 2404 1928
Lam: Allesrarcs Far impaicmant: Loms 1 (1168 L=}
B balance 1338 1103

Aa ur 3l Decarnbar 2019, tha Group domoded 1o dlapom all of the repramoed st and hed oo pln ez cransfer the epooened wsees Far cwn ma [
31 Diecumber 201 8: Moo,

(i) Do

Oihare Include proviienal bagsl cares for lowpan, atber prepeyrusni, atber cecivsbla, s,
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32 Movements of allowance for impairment losses

Yeat ended 31 December 2019
Charge!
Asatl (reversal]  Wirlee-ofls' Others Asat
Nates Junwary  fottheyeat  tmosfer out Note(ll 31 Deceinbet
Allawance bar credit inpairnest lases
Dlepeasiis with bark and pan-bank Anancial insinsicas 18 T4 &7 — 1 142
Maceneaes with and loams oo banks and nea-hak
Fnancial insinuticns 1% 165 (B4 — — Bl
Finanrial asetr held under remle azmamern: n § 4] — — 47
Laans and sdvances ta customen 12 101,154 G879 [i0,586) G b09 115870
Financial invermen 13
— at amarried coat 1365 3589 (185) - 6,758
— ar fuir vlue theaugh ather canpretenthe income 1,038 T8 (90) i Li31
Oicher amee: — finandal aew Note(ii]) 13,072 2493 (10,387} 130 44
(0 babnce sheet credic avets 40 453 1100 - i 5446
Subotal 121406 ThATY (71.3%) 6487 14,223
Allawance far impainment losses o ocher ase
(Oicher amee: — repoaresed aets Ti5 57H (205 T2 L16%
Subeoal 25 576 205) 7 L16a
Year ended 31 Decenbe 2018
Charpe!
batl [revermal] Write-afls Chibers LI
Nates January hrdeyar o o Woee ] Diecember
Allawance far credit inpairnest luses
Diepeasiis with bark and nan-bank Anancial inginsicas 18 ] 11 = k] 4
Macenerns with and loams oo banks and noa-hask fisandal
institutian 1y 165 il - 1 165
Finanrial aseis bel mder remle agranein n w 3 = — 4
Tnterert ceceivabiles 4 05 13,606 [435%) =
Laans and advances ra costomen 212 97906 775 ['EFEIB{I 2404 10,154
Financial imvesmenis 3
— ar amarcised coer R4 L) (635 1 135
— ar fair value theaugh ather canprebensie income 50 7 — 14 Lo
Oeheramer — finandal st Nocefii]] 2304 000 (1,183 437 124072
O bahnoe sheet credic asets 40 457 (50 — LY 454
Subel 140z 57 486 2415 2913 122406
Allawance far impainment losses o ocher ase
Oicher amees — pepoaresed aets 400 kLo ] (15 7
Subaal 4 Ly 7 (15 i}
Mom:

n Othurs Inchide recovery of boans waien off, and effect of exchangs differences daring the yawr.

il Tha lrpadrmant leaser of srcmed nmrcen: af e fiaencial oramanes 1o chie eshh asd 1o chenpes an inchuded I *Ohtber wssefinancid on®
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33 Depaosits from banks and non-bank financial institutions
Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 Deecember 31 December
2019 2018
In Mainland China

— banks 28E,439 208,427
— non-bank financial institutions 658,614 565,387
Subtotal 247,053 775.814

Drueside Mainland China
— banks 1,300 4242
— non-bank financial institutions 59 57
Subtotal 1,359 4299
Accrued imtersst 2,710 4,151
Total 951,122 782264

34 Placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions
Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 December 31 December
019 2018
In Mainland China
— banks 45,488 58,681
— non-bank financial institutions 35,562 47.239
Subtotal 81,050 105,920
Dueside Mainland China
— banks 11, 109 9,197
Accrued Interest 380 241
Taoral 921,539 115,358
35 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements
{a) Ana.l}rsr.tl h}r type and location of counterpartics
31 Drecember 31 December
2019 2018
In Mainland China
— PBOMC 65,329 93,151
— banks 4, 486 25.911
— non-bank financial institutions —_ 1,000
Subtotal 111.81% 120,062
Dhurside Mainland China
— banks — 218
Subtotal — 218
Accrued intepsst 23 a5
Towl 111,838 120,315
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35 Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (Continned)
(b) Analysed by type of collateral

31 Decetnber 31 December

2019 2018

Diiscounted bills 76,229 33,809
Dbt securities 35,586 BEATL
Accrued intersst 3 33
Tatal 111,838 120315

The Group did not derecognise financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements. As at 31 December 2019, non of the legal title of the collateral pledped disclosed
in Mote 52 has been transferred to counterparties.

36 Deposits from customers
Analysed by nature:

31 Dacembar 31 Decembear
20019 2018
Diemand deposits

— Corporate CWSTOMErs 1,668, 449 1.51 6,851
— pmnnﬂ] custormers 375,526 2652 960
Substortal 1,943,975 1.779.821

Time and call deposits
— Corporate CWSTOMErs 1,485,727 1,382,230
— pmnnﬂ] custormers B2, 644 ‘5.49,5‘59
Subtotal 2,088,371 1,831,779
Crutward remittance and remictance payables 6474 4,823
Acerusd inrerest 34,438 3,188
Total 4,073,258 3,649,611

Guarantece deposits included in above deposits:

31 Dacembar A1 Decembear
20019 2018
Bank acceptances 172075 163065
Guarantess 11,390 21,757
Letters of credit 11,754 6,234
Other: 93,315 109,627
Total 298,534 300,684

250 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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37  Accrued staff costs

Year ended 31 December 2019
Additlons Payinents

As at duting duting Asoat

Notes 1 Jabuary the year the year 31 Decembet

Shoct-term mpln:r!: benefits [a.:l 10,386 4,752 (23,418) 11,720
Post-emnployment benefics

— defined coneributian plans k) al 770 (2,483 318
Post-emnployment benefics

— defined benefic plans =] B (14 (2] 19

Otther loop-term benefies 97 1 (23 75

Tanl 10549 I7.509 (25.926) 13,132

Year ended 31 December 2018
Additions Payments

As at during during Asat

Mortes 1 January the year the year 31 December

Shoct-teren employee benefits fa) B35 12,660 (20,909) 10,386
Post-employment benefics

— defined contribution plans (k) 34 2,453 (2.458) 31
Past-employment benefits

— defined benefic plans (=] 4 102 {111} 35

Oicher loog-term benefits 125 (1 (34) a7

Tol B.A3E 2521 {23.510) 10,549
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37 Accrued staff costs {Continued)

{a) Short-term employee benefits

Yeatr eided 31 Diecember 2019

Additions Payments
As at duting duting Asat
1 January the year the yeat 31 Drecember
Salaries and bonuses w456 20,193 (18,664) 10,985
Social insurance 45 LA%0 (1470) &5
Welfare expenses z 1,262 (1,263) 1
Howusing fund ] 1,250 (1.249)  J

Libour union expenses and employes

education expenses BO5 462 L1 579
Housing allowance 54 B (3] 54
Others 16 By (7} Frl
Torl 10L386 24,751 (23.418) 11,720

¥ear ended 31 Diecember 2018

Addirions Payments
Asar during during Asoat
1 Jaomary the year the year 31 December
Salaries and bonuses 7333 17,818 (15.915) 9456
Social insurance ¥l:] 1469 (1.452) 45
Welfare expenses — 1400 (1,398) 2
Housing fand 10 1,300 {1,302) B

Labour union expenses and emplopes

education expEnses 95% 416 :555: ROS
Housing allowance T 196 {217} b |
Others 14 [ (59 16
Taorl B635 22,660 {20,909 10,386

ib) Post-cmployment benefits — defined contribution plans

Past-employment benefits defined contribution plans include contributions to statutory retirement plan. Pursuant
to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC governing labor and soclal security, the Group joins statutory
retirement plan for the employees as set out by clty and provincial governments. The Group is required to
make contributions based on defined ratios of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowance of the employes to
the statutory retirement plan under the administration of the government.

In addition to the above statutory retiement plan, the Bank's qualified employees have joined a defined
contribution retirement scheme (the “Scheme™) which was established by the Group and managed by the
CITIC Group. For the year ended 31 December 2019, The Bank has made anmuity contributions at 7% (31
Diecember 2018 5%) of its employes’s gross wages, For the year ended 31 Diecember 2019, the Bank made
annuity contribution ameunting to RMB 1,061 million (year ended 31 December 201 8: RMB757 million).

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for Hong
Kong staff. Contdbutions are charged to profit or loss when the contribution fall due

252 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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37 Accrued staff costs {Continued)

ic) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plans

The Group offers supplementary retirement benefits for certain of its qualified employees in Mainland China.
Retired employees are eligible to join this supplementary retirement benefit plan. The amount that Is recognised
as at reporting date presents the discounted value of benefit obligation in the future

The Group’s obligations in respect of the supplementary retirement benefic plan as ar the reporting date are
based on the projectad unit credit actuaral cost method and computed by a qualified professional actuary firm
{2 member of Soclety of Actuaries in the United States of America).

Save for the disclosed above, the Group has no other matedal obligation for payment of retirement benefits.

38 Taxes payable
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Income tax 501 L.570
WAT and surcharges 3830 3.042
Oithers 23 8
Toral B.B65 4,520
39 Debt securities issued
31 Drecember 31 December
Motes 2019 2018
Lun.g-l.rnn debt securities issued {n.:| 80,351 /0,205
Subordinated bonds issued:
— by the Bank k) BL4TS 118450
— by CBI () 5,591 5520
Certificates of deposit issued {d) 1,785 2,752
Certificates of interbank deposit lssued (e 438,830 341,310
Conmvertible corporate bonds (B 37,730 —
Accrued inrerest 512 4,155
Toral 650,274 552483
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39 Debt securities issued (Continued)

ia) Long-term debt securities issned by the Group as at 31 December:
31 Diecember 31 December

2019 2018

Annual MNomlnal Nominal

Livterest Value Vihue

Bond Trpe Tssue Diare Marutiey Date Bate RMB RMEB

Fized race bond 17 Apedl 2017 17 Apil 2020 4.20% 50,000 50,000

Fixed race bond 4 May 2017 24 May 2010 440% 159 2,99

Fized race bond 21 May 2015 25 May 2020 5.08% T00 F000

Fixed race bond 17 Movember 2015 17 Movember 2000 3.61% B000 B000

Floating rate bond 14 December 2017 14 December 2020 Three-manth 4877 4,814
Libor +0.9%

Fized race bond 14 December 2017 14 December 2000 I.BE% 1 2,083

Fh:ll.r]ng rate band 14 December 2017 15 December 2022 Three-month 3B %) ]
Libor +1%

Fized race bond 14 December 2017 15 December 2022 313% L741 1,719

Total nominal value RS H B0

Less: Unamertsed imuance cost (%] ]

Less: affset {150 —

Carrying value 80,351 B029G

(b) The carrying value of the Bank’s subordinated bonds issued as at 31 December:
31 December 31 Diecember

Motes 2019 2018
Subordinated fived rate bonds mataring:
— in August 2019 i) — 36972
— in May 2025 (i) 11,500 11,500
— in June 2027 L] 19,985 19983
— in September 2028 {iv) 23,990 30,000
— in Dctober 2028 ) 20, 00 19995
Tatal 81,475 118450
Matas
4] Tha Inmrast caca oo the mubcrdinaed fived con bonds doaed eo 26 Aogon 2014 i 6.13% par anoum. Tha Bank ba an cptien ca cedeam cha

beadh co 2€ Angos 1010, The bark bo sarly cedssmad all of the bonds a face wales an 16 Aogus 2019,

111} Tha ircarast rumm o0 cha mbordinaed Axed row beads oed on 1B Moy 2010 b0 4.30% per eonom Tha Banle bar an epticn 1o edemm cha
bends o 2B May 2030, 1F chey ars not cedssrmed, the Intersss raos of the bonds wil ramain ot 4.30% pe anrum for the et fve pean.

{01} Tha drcarest rume on che sohordinaed Azed rem bends liosd. 20 21 June 2012 b0 5.15% par wonom The Bank: har an cption 1o edemm. cha
bead en 21 June 2021 [F they are nee redmmad, cha Intersat eses oF che beads will remsdn o 5.15% par anoum for thn neet Ave yases.

[1L/] The Inmrast ey oo che ssberdinaed fised ruoe boads lansed an 13 Sspamber 3018 b 4.96% par sonon. The Bank har o aptien o mden
tha bareda oo 13 Sapaambar 3122 [F thry s noe mdewrned, cha doree rae of the bords will remain. 4.96% par aonom foo tha neas fea pascs

i Ths Inmrast racn o the mubsedinand fived cow bonds dmeed oo 22 Ocraber 318 12 4 56 par ancum. The Baok b an sptien ca mdeem cha
beads en 22 Ocraber 223 [F they wrw not medssmed, the dnmcen: cxm of the bords will mmaino 4. 5% par sonom for the e five yman

2.54 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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Debt securities issued (Continned)

ic) The carrying value of CBI's subordinated bonds issued as at 31 December:
31 December 31 December

Motes 2019 2018
Subordinated Axed rave notes maturing
— in May 2019 (i — 2,055
— in Jume 2020 (i) 2,134 3465
— in Peb 2024 () 3457 =
Total 5.591 5.520
Mo
[1}] CB] trnad USD30] mullicn snberdingisd nates s o coapan o of €006 par snnun an 7 Mevember 3113 The necen wre lieed on the Hong

Yang Seack Exchangs Aa st 7 My 2019, CBI redeamsd al chos subardinad noo.

W) CBlimued USDS00 millian subardinaed recs s 2 cavpon cuss <F 6.375% par annum an 24 [une 2010, The nate acs laced on the Sagppses
Exchangs. O 38 February 2019, CBI partially redasrned UISD196 millicn of the mbardinced nocer.

) CBI tansed USDHOD millicn schordinand nece s o coupsn ram of 4.629% per annum oo 28 Fabroy 2010, CBI b an apeion ca redeem
tham nowr on 28 Febrowry 2024, [ CB1 desn mot smercin de cedampdon cpticn, che coupon e par snoon will ba the S~pear U5 treamry

bend race an 23 Fabruwy 3004, pha 2299, The noom are Hmed on chs Hong Kang Steck Exchange.

(dl  These certificates of deposic were issued by CEI with interest mte ranging 3.13% per annum.

['.'.:I As at 31 Diecember 201 9, the Bank had issued certain certificares cd:'Lntu'bﬂ.nJ:dcpudtl, rn'hﬂ]Lugmﬁﬂ,EaﬂmlﬂLun
{as ar 31 December 2018: RMB341.310 million), with yied anging from 2.59% to 3.67% (as at 31 December
2018 Z.B0% to 4.86%) per annum. The original expiry terms are between one months to one year.
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39 Debt securities issued (Continued)

(fl  As approved by the relevant regulatory authorities in China, the Bank made a public offering of RMB40 billion
A-share convertible corporate bonds on 4 March 2019, The comvertible corporate bonds have a term of st
years from 4 March 2019 to 3 March 2023, ar coupon rates of 0.3% for the st year, 0.8% for the second
wear, 1.5% bor the thicd year, 2.3% for the fourth year; 3.2% for the fifth y\mrn.u.d 4.0% for the sizth FEar.
The comversion of these convertible corporate bonds begins on the first trading day (11 Seprember 2019) after
sitx months upon the completion date of the offering (8 March 2019), until the matudty date (3 March 202 5.

In accordance with formulas set our in the prospectus of the comvertible corporate bonds, the initial conversion
price of the comvertible corporate bonds is BMB7.45 per share, and the price of the comvertible corporate bonds
will be adjusted to reflect the dilutive impact of cash dividends and increase in paid-in capital under specified
circumstances. As the cash dividend was paid on 22 July 2019, the converslon price of the convertible corporate
bonds has been adjusted to BMB7.22 per share. During the conversion period (from 4 March 2019 to 3 March
252 5), if the closing price of the Bank’s A-shares is lower than 80% of the current conversion price for at least
15 trading days in any 30 consecutive trading days, the Board of Directors of the Bank has the right to propose
to lower the conversion price and submit the proposal to the shareholders’ meeting for delibemation.

These convertible corporate bonds are subject to conditional redemptions. During their conversion period, if the
closing prices of the Bank’s A-shares are no less than 130% (inclusive) of the current convension price for at least
15 trading days in 30 consecutive trading days, the Bank has the right to redeem all or part of the cutstanding
convertible corporate bonds at their par value plus the current accrued interest, upon approval of the relevant
regulatory authorities (if required). In addition, when the total amount of the cutstanding convertible corparate
bonds is less than RM B30 million, the Bank has the right to redeem all outstanding converiible corporate bonds
at their par value plus the current accrued interest.

As ar 31 December 2019, convertible corporate bonds of RMB 105,000 was converted to 14,533 A-shares.

Liabillty Equiey Total

Issued nominal value of convertible
corporate bonds 36,859 3.141 40,000
Dhirect issuance expenses (74) (i) (B0)
Balance at the issuance dare 36,785 3.135 39920
Amartisation 245 — 945
Amount of bonds comverted — —_ —
Ending balance 37.730 3,135 40,865
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40 Provisions

31 Drecember 31 December

2019 2018

Allowance for Impalrment losses on offbalance shest ltems 5,046 4549
Litigation provisions 470 470
Total 6116 5,013

The movement of affbalance sheest allowance for impalrment losses is included in the Maote= 32.

Movement of provisions:
31 December 31 Dacamber
2019 2018
As at 1 January 470 Ao
Accruals L] 220
Reversal in the current year (1) —
Payments a) (144)
Az ar 31 December 470 470

41 Other liabilities

31 December 31 Dacambar
Mote 2019 2018
Settlement and clearing accounts b, 896 11,010
Payment and collection accounts 7589 13,828
Dheferred emoluments PE:FG])]E {!} B,T92 Q162
Advances and deferred expenses 5,305 5.B18
Leasing deposits 1,463 1,579
Accrued expenses 111 Td1
Precious metal contracts — L.383
Oihers 14,722 10,339
Total 42,878 54,061

Hate:

(1] Ao s 3] Decersber 2010, tha defermed smclument payabl snownod co RMBL, P22 millon (3] Decembar 2013: FABA, 162 milicn). This repremnta
daferred 1| payable ca smpleym o mopect of mrvces provided oo che Group. Soch smeunt will be dieriboted sccarding o plane
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42 Share capital
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018

Number of shates Nominal Value
(enilliofs)
Crrdinary shares
Registered, issued and fully paid:
A-Share 34,053 34,053
H-5hare 14,882 14,882
Total 48,935 48,935
31 December 31 December
Mote 2019 18
As ar 1 January 48,935 48,933
Canvertible bond settlement (i — —
As ar 31 Diecamber 48,935 4B.933
HNoim:
i Az ut 31 Dacember 2015, pocwss bards of RMB10£,000 war corwertsd 1o 14,533 A-shares.

43  Other equity instruments

31 December A1 December
2019 2018
Preference shares (Mote (1)) 34,955 348955
Undated capital bonds (Mate (i) 3,993 —
Equity of convertible corporate bonds (Mate 39 (ff) H135 —
Taotal 78,083 34,955
[11] Prefaranze tharen
Financial luwd Tovnsed ra b= luawd
[r— Disidand. price of shars wominalvales  Buinsiey
in i L (RMHE TIMB milliom) (FME milicasi  Dam Corrersias
Frfurmo s 10 i) 1% BHED  Somuehp b N aomnban
datiegg da e

35, (M0 milien prefecmcs shaem of FAMEBLED sxch war lumed 10 Qiziober 2014, with o dividend rao of 3808 por sonon oo the Aot Eve yasn fon
dmuance, oo no mane than. 300 qualified Imvean, puranane o= cha sppeoval by 1o cedinary shanbalers' meedng and rebreant mgulaiory anthecicia.

Tha carrying smount of prafamnc shaem, e of dirct imuance scperoer, wan FAMBA4.944 millions m 5 3] Dacarnber 2019 All the procesds meakved 10
wid 1o mplnbh Othere Tier-Ome csplal o ardar ca lncreaue che Beok®™ Thr-Oos capled sdequacy ek (Hom 5463 Dddmds son neo-cunaleive asd

whars payuble ae paid annally. Cividend rase at che cne of tmus 1o 35 per anoum and will b ce-priced avery e years tharsafiar with refarencs o
the froe-yuar PRC masrury beads plald plus 3 Aned prembum of 1.350%.
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43  Other equity instruments (Continued)
11} Frefarmce sharm [(Condnosd)

A aothecbed by the codinary dhawbeldey’ Anoual Canenl Masing, the Bosd of Dirsccoon b the sole dixceation. o deches and disinbace dividands
an prefecmcs tharse. The Bank shall nat discibote any dvidends 1o Lo cedinary shambalders befiom 1c declaree auch dividacds 1o p hareh ol

for tha pelovant period. The datbution of preferencs shurs dhddmd 1n a the Bank's 4 wnd lathvs. P harshelder am noc
entitled o= parcicipuis in the disidbachn of retalned prafii ssopt Far che dhddemds sisied abave.

The Bank ka redemgilan cpilan when specified ssadiclans o sipulsed In the affsring dacemencs of pedfmence shares ars mai, subjes £a pagubicany
spproval, whirem prafarsncs shaebabecs have ne right 10 reqatrs che Bark 1o redemn. the prefurence hare

Upen nosurencs of the igpering svmes a mipaleed 1n paragraph 1 (3) of the Gutance of the Chir Banking Ragulsry C en ]
Banla' [r on Caplead 1 [CBRC MeuSE [BOLI and sbjes £a ragulacary appeaval, praf sharea shall ba datnrik |
toriz ardinary & shares o the Bank ur the camverdon prics of RME7.07 par share, pardally ar sotirsly. Tha price of che prek thares
wil bo adjumed wham carcin sewnin gocur including boour lanser, righes s, capledischan of remees ol new {ouance of codinary shame, mbjce o
warras and farmulas providad for o che affeing decanenm, oo maincn. tha relaive i baseen pref bsraboldees and cedinary abarsioH

Thaue abarer arw clarified as squity ard d s wquity In the Iidated of i | paddaor; snd e qualtfied

w Addidons Ther-Ooe Capied Irtrumanes in sccordance with ths CEIRC mguinmancr

g Unduied capital banda

With the app It by rakevane mpul harid in China, the Bank tmsed RME4D billan writs-dewn ondared capied bondr fibes *Band:s™) in the

domentic interburk band market en 9 Dacambar 2019, ind eompleed che louno co 1] Decensbar 3010, Tha 4 of the Bends 1n RMB100
sach, and the wnod coopan ra of the Bands for tha fiet & pesrs o 4209, mutdng ey § pear

Tha durscion afcha Bareds s the sans as the canelnuing aperaticn of the Bank. Subject to P — fiara snd baving obednad
tha price approwal of tha CRIRC, the Bank may redsemn the Beads In whals o in pare e sach dinribacian paynant dew § pasrn sfver tha lmwance des
of the Bardr. Upan tha ccrummcs of o trigger event Far weks- dosrra, wich the coreent of the CBIRC and withoue the conmnt of dea bendholan, tha
Bank has tha cight to wrim dawn all oc part of the sbove Bende loed aed sxining tthar dme in sceoedsnce with the cocal par vaboe. Tha dalme of the
becldars of tha Bends will be mbardineeed i tha claim of dap genard crdicze snd ssbecd d crad ared shall cank In pdaricy ca chacldme of

sharsbcldar and will cank: pard pemy wich. da dalms sndar woy atbar sdditicnal ter 1 capiesl nmroments of che Bank char rank part paam with the Banda,

The Bords e paid by nen-cunoltiva Interest. Tha Bank shall hove tha righe to cancal dindbutizas oo the Banda o whicls or 1o pare and sach cancaladan
shall necc conmicums o default. The Bank may ac ta d udlize tha f d from. cha lod dinirik = meat othar oblip of
ubes, But dhe Bank shall not dindbus profics 2 cedinary sharsheldes uniil the remmpdan =f Fal e payment.

These undaned cxpital bords ane clorifed 1 sgalee nd 1 1 arpuity In the conabidaeed of ] mnd v

quabified s Addittenal Tlar- O Caphial Insrumenis i acceedwnce with the CBIRC mquremnis.
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43  Other equity instruments (Continued)
(171 Undsced capital bareds [Cendnoed)

Inmrmai sciribucshbe 1o squity lomrunenn” beldar:

31 Decamber 31 Dacurrkar
2048 L
Teal squley sitdbuis in squtiy beldan of
1he paranc company 17311 FErrTs
Equley sitdhuis in cedinary squicy beldes of
1he parane company 430,218 AILTOE
Egquiry sitrbuim 1o char squicy lorumanes beldan of
1he parane company 7B.083 34954
— Prafit Far tha pariod/Dividend dinribuatica far
the paricd 1330 L3353
Tecd squicy sunbuw 1o ran-cecamslling incamm 15213 LE4TS
Equiry stirthui 10 nan-conmelling incemm o
eedinary share 8545 7933
Egquiry siinbum o nan- conmelling incemm of
cchar squhty lnmrumenin G867 B402

Fer the yasr andad 31 Dicamber 1010, the Bank pad EMEL3N aillien dividmd ic dw preficencs shasheldas (far the yexr mnded 3l Decembar
2012 RSB, 230 millizal.

44 Capital reserves
31 Dacembar 31 Decembear

2019 2018
Share premium 58,896 38896
Crther resenves 81 81
Tatal 58,977 SEATT

45 Other comprehensive income
Orther comprehenstve income comprises items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profic or loss, such as net
changes on the measurement of defined benefit plan (Mote 37} and fair value changes on financial investments designared

at fair value through other comprehensive income, and items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss,
such as fair value changes on financial ass=ts at fair value through other comprehenstee income, credit impaicment

allowance on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and exchange differences on translation.
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Surplus reserve
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Asail ]mu.n.qr i A50 30,244
Appopriations 4,559 4206
As at 31 December 39 009 34,450

Under the relevant PRC Laws, the Bank and the Bank’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to app ropriate 10%
of its profit for the year, as determined under regulations issued by the regulatory bodies of the PRC, to the statutory
surphas reserve until the reserve balance reaches 509 of the registered capital. After making the appropriation to the

statutory surplus reserve, the Bank may also approprate its profic for the year to the discretio nary surplus resenve upon
approval by ordinary shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The Bank makes its appropriation on an annual basis.

Subject to the approval of ardinary sharehalders, starutory surplus reserves may be used for replenishing accumulated
losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital , provided that the balance of statutory surplus reserve after such
capitalisation is not less than 25% of the registered capital before the process.

General reserve

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
As at 1 January 74,255 74,231
Appropriations 7160 4
As at 31 December B1.535 74255

Pursuant to relevant Ministry of Finance ("MOF”) notices, the Bank and the Group’s banking subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to set aside o general reserve to cover potential losses against their assets. The Bank and the Group
make its appropriation on an anmaal basis.

Profit appropriations and retained earnings

(a) Profit appropriations and distributions other than dividends declared during the year

31 Drecember 31 Drecember
Motes 2019 2018

Appropriations to
— surplus resepve 45 4,559 4206
— genenal reserve 47 T 2B0 4
As at 31 December 11,839 4210

The Bank appopriated BME4.559 million to statutory surplus reserve fund for the year of 2019, and app ropriated
RME7.278 million to general reserve. The Group’s subsidiary, Lin'an rural bank, made approprations to general
reserve in accordance with relevant regulatory requirements.

(b]  In accordance with the resolution approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Bank on 24 May 2019 a
total amount of approximately RMB11.255 million (RMB2.30 per 10 shares) were distriibuted in the form of
cash dividend to the ondinary shareholders on 22 July 2019,
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48 Profit appropriations and retained eamings (Contimaed)

(€] In accordance with the resclution approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Bank on 27 August 2019,
a total amount of approximarey BME 1,330 million {calculated by the bank wsing the agreed dividend rate of
3.8% with RMB3.80 per share) were distributed in the form of cash dividend to the preference shareholders
on 28 October 2019.

(d]  On26 March 2020, the Board of Directors proposad a cash dividend of RMB 239 per 10 shares in respect of the
year 2019, Subject to the approval of the ardinary shareholders ar the Annual General Meeting, approximarehy
EME11.595 million will be payable to those on the register of ordinary sharcholders as at the relevant record
date. This proposal is a non-adjusting event after the reporting period and has not been recognised as labilin
as at 31 Diecember 2019,

(£]  As ar 31 Diecember 2019, the retained sarmings included the statutory surplus reserves of certain subsidiaries of
FEMB260 million l::nl at 31 December 2018: RMB200 mlﬂinu}l, of which EMB&2 million l::n.l at 31 December
2018 RMB56 million) was the appropriation made by the subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 20019,
Such starutory surplus reserves in the retained earnings cannot be discribured.

49 Non-controlling interests

Mon-controlling interests included codinary shareholders held by non-controlling interest in subsidiaries and other
equity instrument holders” interests. As ar 31 December 2019, other equity instrument holders’ interest amounted to
RMB&EETT million representing other equity instruments issued by CBI on 11 October 2016, and & November 2018,
an entity ultimately controlled by the Group. Such instraments are perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional
Ther- One capital securities (the “Capital Securities™).

Flnandal

Instruments Nominal First Payment

I bssme Issue Diate VYalue Call Date Coupon Rate Frequency
Capiral 11 October USDS00 11 October  4.25% per anmum for the first five yeas  Sembannually
Securities 2016 millicns 2021 afver issuance, and re-priced every Five

yEars to n.mvaq_ubm]n:nrtu the Five

year US Treasury rate plus 3.107%

|per anmam
Capital & Movember USDS00 & Movember  7.10% per annum for the first five years  Semiannually
Securities 018 millioms 2023 afrer issuance, and re-priced every Frve

years to a mate equivalent to the Five

year US Treasury rate plas 4.151 %

|per annum

CBI may, at Its sole discretion, elect to cancel any payment of coupon, in whale or in part, or redeem Capital Securities
in whaole on the frst call date and any subsequent coupon distribution date, where the holders of these Capital Securitles
harve no right to require CBI to redeem. These Capital Securities listed above are classified as other equity instruments.

A distrdbution payment of BMB470 million was paid to the holders of the Capital Securitles during the year ended
31 December 2019 {I:hn: year ended 31 Diecember 2018: RMB28G m.iuhn}l.

Oin 22 April 2019, upon the approval of Hong Kong Monetary Authority and in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Capital Securities, CIFH made eary redemption in full of the USDA00 million Capital Securities lssued on 22
April 2014
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50 Motes to consolidated statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
e B35 6,188
Cash equivalents
— -SI.LI:P]IJ.! d.cpu:ll: reserve hands o7 L2 128,425
— Deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions due
within three months when n:\q_'l.dmd 30 i 88,801
— Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial
institurions due within three months when acquired 134,321 124,023
— Investment securities due within three months when acquired 4,275 27,674
Subtotal 336,104 369,821
Total 342,449 376,009

51 Commitments and contingent liabilities

{a) Credit commitments

The Group’s credit commitments take the form of loan commitments, credit card commitments, financial
guarantees, letters of credit and bank acceprances.

Loan commitments and credit card commitments represent the undrawn amount of approved loans with signed
contracts and credic card limits. Financial puarantees and letters of credit represent guarantees provided by the
Group to guarantee the pedformance of customers to third parties. Bank acceptances comprise undertakings
by the Group to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Group expects the majority acceptances to be
setitled simultanecushy with the reimbursement from the customers.

The contractual amounts of credit commitments by categores are set our below. The amounts disclosed in
respect of loan commitments and credit card commitments assume that amounts are fully dawm down. The
amounts of puarantees, letbers of credic and acceprances represent the madmum potential loss that would be
recognised at the reporting date if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
Contractual amouant
Loan commitments
— with an original maturity within one year &, 7ED 4,521
— with an original maturity of cne year or above $5.422 35,508
Subtotal 52,211 40,029
Bank acceptances 426,226 393,831
Credit card commirments 545,503 434,590
Letters of guarantes issued 147 ,15% 158,813
Lettars of credic isnaed 103,981 92,024
Toml 1.275.07% 1. 120207
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51 Commitments and contingent liabilities (Cantinued)

(b) Credit commitments analysed by credit risk weighted amount

31 Deceinber 31 December
2019 2018

Credit risk weighted amount of credic commitments 398,617 370,529

The credit risk welghted amount refers to the amount as computed in accordance with the rules set out by the
CBIRC and depends on the status of counterparties and the matarity characreristics. The risk welghting used
range from % to 1 50%.

{c) Ca]:lita] commitments

i} The Group had the following authorised capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment

ar the reporting date:
31 December A1 December
2019 2018
Far the purchase of property and equipment
Contracted for 3.457 3336

(i)  The Group announced the approval of the Board of Directors on the establishment of CITIC Bank
Financlal Management Co., Led. (hereinafter “CITIC Bank Financial Management™) by the Bank on 13
Dhecember 2018, and obtained the n.ppn:rw] an establishment from the CRIRC On 4 December 2014,
The Bank plans to contribute no more than RMBS billion, and after the completion of setup preparation,
will apply to the CBIRC for its approval on the commencement of business in accordance with rel evane
regulations and procedures.

id) Outstanding contingencics including litigation and disputes

The Group has assessed and has made provisions for any probable outflow of economic benefits in relation to
commitments and contingent labilities ar the reporting date in accordance with its accounting policies including
litigation and disputes.

As ar 31 December 2019, the Group was involved in certaln potential and pending litigation as defendant
with gross claims of RMB2,436 million {as at 31 December 2018 REMB271 million). Based on the opinion of
internal and external legal counsels, the Group had made livigation provisions of RMEBE&.61 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (for the year ended 31 Diecember 2018 RMB220 million) against these litigation
{Mote 40). Such contingencies, including litigation and disputes, will not have materal impact on financial
position and opemtions of the Bank.
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51 Commitments and contingent liabilities (Cantinued)

(e} Bonds redemption obligations

As an underwriting agent of PRC treasury bonds, the Group has the responsibilicy to buy back those bonds
sold by it should the holders decide to sarly redeem the bonds held. The redemption price for the bonds at any
time before their maturity dates is based on the nominal value plus any interest unpaid and accrued up to the
redemption date. Accrued interest payables to the bond holders are calculated in accordance with relevant rules
af the MOF and the PEOC. The redemption price may be different from the fair value of similar instruments
traded at the redemption date.

The redemption obligations below represent the nominal value of treasury bonds underwritten and sald by the
Group, but not yet matured at the reporting date:

31 December 31 Diecember
2019 2018
Rnd.gmprlnn commitment for PRC treasury bonds 11,272 11,101

The criginal maturities of these bonds vary from one to five years. Management of the Group expects the amount
of redemption before maturty dates of these bonds will not ke material. The MOF will not provide fanding
for the early redemption of these bonds on a back-to-back basis, but will settle the principal and interest upon
matarity.

(f Underwriting obligntinns

As ar 31 December 2019, the Group did not have unfulfilled commitment in respect of securities underwriting
business. {as at 31December 201 8: Nil)

52 Collateral

(a) Asscts pledged

(i The carrying amount of financial assets pledged as collareral in the Group’s crdinary course of businesses,
including repurchase agreements and borrowings from central banks, are disclosed as belown:

31 Drecember 31 December

2019 2018

Diabir securicies 6T 616 439272
Discounted bills T, 590 33,955
Cichers 181 172
Total 444, 387 473,399

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the G:nupr': liakilities related to the abowe collateral
were due within 12 months from the effective dates of these agreements and title of these collateral was
not transferred to counterparties,

{li) In addition, as ar 31 December 2019, the Group pledged debt securities and deposits with banks and
other fimancial institutions with carrying amount totalling RMB840million (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB1.335 mIJHnn:I as collateral for derbvative transactions and Fuarnise funds to c:rJ:.n.n.Eﬂ. Title of
these pledged assets was not transferred to counterparties.

(b) Collateral accepied

The Group recebved debt securities as collateral for financial assets held under resale agreements as set out in Mote
21. Under the terms of theses agreements, the Group could not resell or re-pledge certain parts of these collateral
unless in the event of default by the counterparties. As at 31 Diecember 2019, there was no collateral that can be
resold or re-pledged by the Group (as at 31 Diecember 2018: Mil}. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group did not resell ar re-pledge any of these collateral (year ended 31 Diecember 2018: Mil).
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53 Transactions on behalf of customers

{a) Entrusted lending business

The Group provides entrusted lending business services to corporations and individuals, as well as entrusted
provident housing fund mortzage business services. All entrusted loans are made under the instruction or at
the direction of these corporations, individuals or provident housing fund centre and are funded by entrusted
funds from them.

Far entrusted assets and liabilities and entrusted provident housing fund mortgage business, the Group does not
expose to credit risk in relation to these transactions, but acts as an agent to hold and manage these assets and
labilities at the instruction of the entrusting parties and receives fee income for the sepdces provided.

Trust assets are not assets of the Group and are not recognised on the consclidated statement of fnancial
position. Income recetved and recetvable for providing these services is included in the consclidated statement
of profit or loss as fee Income.

At the reporting date, the entrusted assets and Habilities were as follows:

31 Deceinber 31 December

2019 2018
Entrusted loans 441,142 640,227
Entrusted funds 441,143 540,229

(b) Wealth management services

The Gmu.p’: wealth Management services o customers mn.’lnljr represent sale of wealth PN O e e pmducl:,
inclading principal guaranteed (Mote 59 (c)) and non-prncipal or interest guaranteed wealth management
products (Mote 59 (b)), to corporate and personal banking customers.

The funds raised by non-principal guaranteed wealth management products from investors are invested in varlous
investments, including debt securities and money market instruments, credit assets and other debt instruments,
equity instruments etc. Credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk associated with these preducts are borne
by the customers. The Group only earns commission which represents the charpes on customers in reation ta
the provision of custodian, sale and management services. Income is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as commission income. The Group has entered into placements transactions ar market interest
rates with the wealth management products wehicles (Mote 59 (B)).

As at 31 December 2019, the amount oftotal assets imvested by these non-principal guarantesd wealth management
products issued by the Group was disclosed in Note 59 (b).
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Segl'“e“t re F‘O‘ rti “g
Measurement of segment assets and llabilities, and segment income and expenses are based on the Group’s accounting
policies.

Internal charges and transfer pricing of transactions between segments are determined for management purpose and
have been reflected in the performance of each segment. Met interest iIncome and expenses arsing from internal charges
and transfer pricing adjustments are referred to as “Intecnal net interest income/ expenses™. Interest income and expenses
earned from third parties are referred to as “External net interest income/expenses”.

Segment Income, expense, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to o segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets and liabilities do not include deferred tax assets and liabilicles. Segment
Income, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances, and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process. Segment capital expenditure is the total costs incurred during the year
to acquire assets (including both tangible assets and intangible assets) whose estimated useful lives are over one year.

{a) Buosiness SCEMEnts

The Group has the following main business segments for management purpose:

Corporate banking

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to corporations, government
agencles and non-financial institutions, as well as conducts imvestment banking businesses and international
businesses. The products and services include corporate loans, deposit nking activities, agency services, remittance
and settlement services and guarantes services.

Personal banking

This ssgment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to indibvidual customers and
small enterprises. The products and services comprise loans, deposit services, securities agency services, remittance
and settlement services and guarantes s=rvices,

Treasury business

This segment conducts capital markets operations, inter-bank opemations, which, specifically, includes inter-
bank money market transactions, repurchase transactions, and investments and trading in debt instruments.
Furthermore, treasury business segment alio cardes out derivatives and forex trading both for the Group and
for customers.

thers and unallocated

Others comprise components of the Group that are not artributable to any of the above segments, along with
certain assets, lHabilities, income or expenses of the Head Office that could not be allocated on a reasonable
basis. This sepment also manages the Group’s liquidity pasition.

In 2019, for internal mamagement purposes, the Bank adjusted the presentation of cash instalment income
from the credic card business and the business segments of the Bank and some subsidiaries, and restared the

comparathve figures.
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54 Segment reporting (Continned)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

Yeat ended 31 December 20019
Cotporate Petsonal Treasury  Oithets and

Banking Bankilng  Operatlons Unallocated Tatal
Eatermal art Interet fncome!{expenr) 52,199 70,028 28,032 {21.088) 127271
Internal net ineerest incomed(expense) 26,809 38,392) [20,552) 32,135 —
et Enterest noome 79,008 3,636 TABD o147 127271
Met fee and commission incomef{expense) 12,591 3a7 929 (6.153) 46,384
Other net income (ot (i) 219 631 11,067 337 14,226
Opetating hcome 93,790 71,284 19476 3331 187881
Opetating expenses
— depreciation and amortisation (1,938) (1,11%) (1,399 (1610) (160551
— athers (18,012 (26, 462) (2.340) (1.288) (48,102)
Credit impairment lasses (51,07%) (24,070) (73a) (7371 (76,679
Impairment losses an other assets — — — (576) (576)
Rewluation grin on investment properties — — — {15} (15}
Share of loss of asociztes and

joint ventures —_ —_ —_ 102 1z
Profit before tax 21,764 19,633 14941 (793) 56,545
Income tax (7.551)
MNet profie 458,994
Capital expenditure 1,484 891 1,074 999 4,448
Year ended 31 December 20019
Cotporate Petsonal Treasury  Oithets and

Banking Banking  Operatlons Unallocated Tatal
Segment assets 1305553  L315035 1,763,646 1,330,432 6,714,666
Interest in associates and joint veotures — — 112 3,568 3472
Deferred tax assers 32095
Total asset 6,750,433
Segment Labilities 3.274.306 1,876,042 Se4AET 103,084 6,217,899
Dieferred tax lisbilities 10
Total Liakillties 6,217,909
Off-balance sheet credit commitments 76,272 545,503 — — 1275075
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54 Segment reporting (Continned)
(a) Buosiness segments (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018
Corporate Personal Treasurr  Oithers and

Banking Banking Business  Unallocated Tawl
External net interest income{expense) 53.524 60,659 2,282 {27.563) 112,912
Internal net incerest income! (expense) 20,378 (32.179) {18,935 30,738 =
et Intetest Income 73900 28490 7347 3175 112,912
Net fee and commissian income/{expense) 11,253 24,699 1,133 {GT) 37008
Otther net income (MNaote (1)) 2,870 4,33 8,242 598 15,846
Operatlng lncome E7.B13 57,525 16,712 3.706 165,766
Operatlhg expenses
— depreciation 1nd amortisation (1,040) (5529 (4] (710} (2,942
— athers (19,138) (25.055) (3,358 (2111} [49,658)
Credit impaiement losses (42,074) (15,295) (187) (330) (57,886
Imnpairment losses oo other asets — — = (347} (347)
Revaluarion pain on investment properties — — — 35 35
Share of loss of associates and
jodnt ventures — — — (E42) (642)
Profit before tax 25573 16,623 12,529 (399 54,326
Iocome tax (8950
Met prafit 45,376
Capital expenditure 1,594 Tan Bl 1,089 4,103
Year ended 31 December 2018
Corporate Personal Treasurr  Oithers and
Banking Banking  Openations  Unalkocared Tawal
Segment assets 2,328,530 1,155,488 1,488,115 1,0687.726 6,039,659
Interest in associares and joint ventwnes — — 118 3,763 5881
Dieferred tax assers 23,174
Total asset G,068, 714
Sepment liabilities 3,046,177 1,538,976 716,638 311.821 54613612
Dieferred tax liahilities 16
Total Nabilicies 3613628
Of-balance sheet credit commitments 1,007 283 02,924 — — 1,120,207
Boca:
[ H] Ohtbar nat Incoma connes of et esding pan, ot puin fram invesiment ssoureis, ree bedpieg lan and echar aparaing incamae
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54 5&gment reporting (Continned)

(b) Geographical segments

The Group operates principally in Mainland China with branches locared in 31 provinces, autonomous reglons
and municipalities. The Bank’s principal subsidiaries, CNCE Investment and CIFH are registered and operating
in Hong Kong. The other subsidiarles, Lin'an Rumnl Bank and CFLL are registered in Mainland China.

In presenting information by gecgraphical segments, operating income Is allocated based on the lacation of
the branches that genemated the revenue. Segment assets and capital expenditure are allocated based on the
geographical locatlon of the underdying assets.

Geographical segments, as defined for management reporting purposes, are as follows:

—  "Yangtze River Delta” refers to the following areas where Tier-One branches of the Group are located:
Shanghal, Manjing, Suzhou, Hangzhou and Mingho, as well as Lin‘an Rural Bank;

— “Pearl Riwver Delta and West Strait™ refers to the following areas where Tier-Oine branches of the Group
are located: Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Dongruan, Purhou, Xiamen, and Halkow;

—  "Bohai Rim”™ refers to the following areas where Tier-One branches of the Group are located: Bedjing,
Tianjin, Dallan, Qingdac, Shijlahuang, Jinan and CFLL;

—  “Centnal” region refers to the following areas where Tier-One branches of the Group are located: Hefed,
Zhengrhou, Wuhan, Changsha, Taiyuan and Manchang;

— “Western” region refers to the following areas where Tier-Otne branches of the Group are located: Chengdu,
Chongging, Xf'an, Kunming, Nanning, Hohhot, Urumgi, Guiyang, Lanzhou, Xining, Yinchuan and
Lhasa;

— “Northeastern® region refers to the following areas where Tier-One branches of the Group is located:
Shenyang, Changchun and Harbim;

— “Head Office™ refers to the headquarter of the Bank and the Credit Card Center; and

— “Ohverseas” includes all the operations of Londen branch, CHMCE Investment, CIFH and its subsidiaries.
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54 Segment reporting (Continoed)

(b) Geographical segments (Continusd)
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54 Segment reporting (Continned)
(b) Geographical segments (Continusd)
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Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to and its manapement and control of rsks, in particular
the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arse from the filure of a customer or
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations or commitments to the Group.

Market risk Market risk arises from unfavourable changes in market prices (interest rate, exchange rate,
stock price or commodity price) that lead to a los of on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet
business in the Group.

Liquidity risk Liquidity risk arises when the Group, in meeting the demand of labilities due and other
payment obligations as well as the needs of business expansion, is unable to sufficlently,
timely or cost-effectively acquire funds.

Operational risk Opemational risk ardses from Inappropriate or problematic internal procedures, personnel,
IT systems, or external events, such risk includes legal risk, but excluding strategy sk and
reputational risk.

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to constantly monitor the risks and Hmits by means of reliable and up-to-dare management information
systems. The Group regularly modifies and enhances its risk management policles and systems to reflect changes in
markets, products and best practice sk management processes. Internal auditors alse perform regular audits to ensure
compliance with relevant palicies and procedures.

(a)

Credit risk
Credit nidk management

Credit sk refers to the risk of loss caused by default of debtor or counterparcy. Credit risk also occurs when
the Group makes unauthorised or inappropriate loans and advances to customers, Anancial commitments or
imvestments. The credit risk exposure ofthe Group mainly arises from the Group’s loan and advance to customers,
treasury businesses and off-balance sheer frems.

The Group has standardised management on the entire credit business process including loan application and
its imvestigation, approval and granting of loan, and monitoring of non-performing loans, Through stricty
standardising the credit business process, strengthening the whole process management of pre-loan investigation,
credit rating and credit granting, examination and approval, loan review and post-loan monitoring, improving
the risk of slow-release of collateral, accelerating the disposal of non-performing loans, and promoting the
upgrading and transformation of credit management system, the credit sk management of the Group has been
comprehenstvely improved.

The Group writes off the recoverable financial asset when it cannot reasonably expect to recover all or part of the
asset. Signs indicating that the recoverable amount cannot be reasonably expected includes (1) the enforcement
has been terminated, and (2} the Group’s recovery method is to confiscate and dispose of the collateral, but the
expected value of the collateral cannot cover the entire principal and interest.

In addition to the credit risk to the Group caused by credit assets, the Group manages the credit risk for treasury
businesses through prudently selecting peers and other financial institutions with comparable credit levels as
counterparties, balancing credic risk with returns on imvestment, comprehensively considering i nternal and external
credit rating information, granting credic hierarchy, and using credit management system to review and adjust
credit commitments on a timely basis, etc. In addition, the Group provides off-balance sheet commitment and
guarantes businesses to customers, so it is possible for the Group to make payment on behalf of the customer
in case of customer’s default and bear risks similar to the loan. Therefore, the Group applies similar risk control
procedures and policies to such business to reduce the credir risk.
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)
memtafmﬂmﬂt losses

Since 1 January 2018, the Group adapts, the "expected credit loss model™ on its debt instruments which are
classified as financial assets of debt instruments and off balance sheet credic assets measured ar amortised cost
and at fair value through other comprehenstve income in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9.

Far financial assets that are included in the measurement of expected credic losses ("ECL"), the Group evaluates
whether the credit risks of related financlal assets have increased significantly since the initial recognition.
The “three-stage™ impalrment model is used to measure their allowances for impairment losses respectively to
recognisze ECL and thelr movements:

Stape 1: Pinancial instruments with no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition will be classified
as “stage 17 and the Group contimuowsly monitors their credit dsk. The allowance of impairment losses of
financial instruments in Stage 1 is measured based on the ECL in the next 12 months, which represents the
proportion of the ECL in the lifetime due to possible defaule events in the next 12 months.

Stage 2: If there is a significant increase in credic risk from initial recognition, the Group transfers the relared
financial instruments to Stage 2, bur it will not be considersd as credit-impaired instruments, The ECL of
financial instruments in Stage 2 is measured based on the lifetime ECL.

Stage 3t IF there is a credit impairment in financial instruments, it will be moved to Stage 3. The ECL of
financial instruments in 5115: 3 iz measured based on the lifetime ECL.

POCI financial assets refers to financial assets thar are credit-impaired ar initial recognitlon. Allowance for
impairment losses on these assets are the lifetime ECL.

The Group measures the ECL for Anancial assets through testing medels, which includes expected loss model
and discounted cash flows model. The expected loss model method is applicable to assets related to perscnal
client, assets related to corponate client in stage 1 and 2, interbank investments and off balance sheet credic
assets, DMscounted cash Aows medel is applicable to assets relared to corporate client in stage 3.

The Group estimate the ECL in accordance with the IFRS 9, the key judgments and assumptions adopred by

(1) Sigmificams incredse in oredit rick

On each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the credit risk of the relevant financial instruments
has increased significantly since the initial recognition. When one or more on quantitative or qualitathve
threshold, or upper limit are triggered, the credit risk of financial instruments would be considered as
increased significantly.

By setting quantitative and qualitative threshald, and wpper limit, the Group determines whether the
credit risk of financial instruments has increased significantly since inital recognition. The judgment
mabnly includes (1) credit risk of borrowers declining to Grade 15 or below since initial recognition; (2}
adwerse changes in business, financial or operating conditions of borrowers and in economic conditions;
(3) significant increase in other credit risk Por the bormowers who are 30 days (exclusive) o 90 days
{inclusive) past due on their contractual payments (including principal and interest), the Group considers
that their credit risk has increased significantly and classifies them to stage 2.

2.',]"4 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit losses (Cont in ned)
(2 Defimition of credic-impaired avsees
When credit impairment oourred, the Group defines that the financial asset is in default. In genenl, a
financial asset that is owverdue for more than 90 days is considered to be in default.

When one or more events that adversely affect the expected future cash Aow of a financial asset ocours,
the financial asset becomes o credit-impaired financial asset. Evidence of credit-impaired financial assets
includes the following observable information:

L The issuer or borrower Is in significant financial difficulies;

. The borrower is in breach of financlal covenant(s) such as default or overdue in repayment of
inter=sis or p.rLu.prl-q, ety

- The creditar gives the debtor ne concesslon under any other circumstances, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the debtor’s fnanclal difficulties;

. It is becoming probably that the bormrower will enter bankruptcy or other debt restructuring;

. An active market for that financial asset has disappeared because of financial difficulties from
issuer ar barrower;

. Financial assets are purchased or originated at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit

]Dllﬂ.

The Group's default definition has been consistently applied to the modeling of default probability,
default risk exposure and default loss mate in the Group’s ECL calculation process.

(3 Impwis for medsaremsent of expectad cradic Lses
The expected credit lass is measured on either a 12 months or lifetime basis depending on whether a

significant increase in credit risk has cccurred or whether an asset §s considered to be credit-impaired.
Related definitions are as follows:

] The probabiligy of default (*PLD7) represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligaticns, either over the next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the obligation.

- Lass given defaule (*LGD™) represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted
exposure. LG varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of caim, and availability of
callateral or other credit support. LGD) is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at
the time of default and is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis.

. Exposure at defanle ("EAD™) is based on the amounts that the Group expects to be owned at the
time of defaule, over the next 12 months or ower the remaining lifetime of the obligation.

The Group regularly monitors and reviews the assumptions related to the calculation of ECL, including
the PTY and the change in the valwe of collatern] over time.

The Group categorises exposures with similar risk characteristics and estimares the PO, LG, EAD by the
exposures respectively. The Group has obtained sufficient information to ensure its statistical reliability.
ECL of the Group is measured based on the continuous assessment and follow-up of individuals and
their fnanclal status.

Diuring the reporting pericd, there were no significant changes in the estimated technology or key

assumptions.
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk (Contined)
Measurement of expected credit losses (Continped)
() Forward-boking information

The assessment of significant increase in credit sk and the calculation of ECL incorporates foreard-
looking information. The Group has performed historical analysis and identified the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and ECL for each asset portfolio.

These economic varables and their asseciated impact on the PD vary by Anancial instruments. Expert
judgment has been applied in this process, forecasts of these economic variables are estimated by the
experts of the Group on a quartery basis, and the impact of these economic varables on the PDY and
the exposure at default was determined by statistical regression analysis.

In addition to the meutral economic scenario, the Group determine the possible scemarios and their
welghtings by a combination of statistical analysis and expert judgment. The Group measures ECL as
either a probabilicy weighted 12 months ECL (stage 1) or a probability weighted lifetime ECL (stage
2 and stage 3). These probabilicy-welghted ECL are determined by running each scenario through the
relevant ECL model and multiplying it by the appmopriate scenaric weighting,

Macroecomomic scemarie dnd weighting infrmarion

The Group has built @ macro forecast model, and pedformed historical analysis and identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL for each portfolic, sach as domestic Gross Diomestic
Preduct (FGDPF), dectricity production and registered urban unemployment rate, etc.

In 2019, the Group has considered different macroeconomic scenaros, and the key macmeconomic
scenario assumptions in estimating ECL are set out below:

Vatables R"-E
Growth rate of domestic GDP, WeERr on year 5. 70% -5.41%
Accumulated electricity production, year on year L76% -7.24%
R:Elrben:ﬂ. wrban un:mp]n}rm:nt ate 3.50% -3.73%

Adopt top-down development approach, the Group has established models including different key
economic indicators is established with the new actual defaule rare of regremion model, and use the
prediction results and historic defaule information adjustment coefficient calculation, then realise the
provislons for foreard -locking adjustment.

The Group considers internal and external data, experts predice, and the best estimate of future, to
determine the weightings in positive, newtral and negative scenarios. Meutral is defined as the most likehy
to happen in the future, as compare to other scenarios. Optimistic scenario and pessimistic scenario
represents the possible scenario that is better off or worse off scenario compared to neutral scenario
respectively. Currently, the welghting of neutral scenario is equal to the sum of the welghtings of other
scenarios. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as a welghted average probabilicr of ECL
in the next 1 2-month under the three scenarios for Stage 1 financial instruments; and a weighted average
prmobabiligy of lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and 3 financial instruments.

Far portfolic cannot establish regression model, such as customer default rate is extremely low, or no
suitable internal rating data portfolic, etc., the Group mainly uses the regression model has been established
a similar combination than expected losses, in order to increase the covenge of existing impairment model.

276  China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

335/407



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2019
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit losses (Cont in ned)
(5)  Scritiniy irformsition drd mamsgemen’s sverliy

L

The change of the inputs for measurement of ECL and forward-locking information impact the assessment
of significant increase in credit sk and measurement of credic loss.

As at 31 December 2019, assuming the welghting of optimistic scemario increased by 10% while the
welighting of neutral scenario decreased by 10%, the allowance for credit impairment losses of the Group
will be decreased by RMB2.345 billion {as ar 31 December 2018 RMB2.868 billion); assuming the
welghting of pessimistic scenario increased by 10% while the welghting of newtral scenario decreased by
10%, the allowance for credic impairment losses of the Group will be increased by RMB1.896 billion
I:u at 31 December 2018: RMB2.166 |:|i]|.|.c|.u.:|;

For new changes in the external economic situatlon not caprured by the modd, the Group has also
considered and increased the allowances for expected credit losses to further improve its risk mitigation

capacity.

Allowance for impairment losses of performing loans and advances to customers consists of ECL from
Stage 1 and Smge 2 which is measured based on 12 months ECL and lifetime ECL respectively. Loans
and advances to customers in Stage 1 transfer to Stage 2 when there is a significant increase in credit dsk.
The following table presents the estimated impact as if the ECL of all performing loans and advancs o
customers are measured based on 12 months ECL, holding all other risk profile constant.

31 December 31 Dacamber
2019 2018
Pedforming loans and advances to customers
Allowance of impairment losses assuming loans in
stage 2 transfer to stage 1 50,919 53.070
Impact of stage transfers 098 1,790
Current allowance for impairment losses 62,017 54, B0
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk (Continged)
Measurement of expected credit losses (Continued)
(5)  Sewsitivity information dwd mandgement’s sverlty (Continmed)
i} Maximum credit dsk exposure

The mazimum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date without taking into consideration of
any collateral held ar other credit enhancement is represented by the net balance of each type of
financial assets in the consclidated statement of financial position after deducting any allowance
for impairment losses. A summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:

31 Dieceinbet 3019
ot
Seape | Sitage 1 Stage 3 appllcable Tonl
Balarces with ceniral banks 454,813 — — — 456813
insinutiom 11,37 - - - 121,257
Macemenis with and Jaara 1o basks and
nen-hank financial fnstitusicas 204,547 - - - W454T
Dierivacive Anancial aseis - - - Imy 117
Firancid assers beld under resake appeements 9,554 — — — a5
Tnterest recdvahles
Leans and advances ta custamens 3798, B0 LM 15,757 6915 3EIZ502
Firancid imestments
— at fair vahoe chrangh profic ar Lo - - - 317,546 7546
— at amartised cas 07, W6 10,45 5470 — 4,13
— at fair vahoe chrangh echer
mnp.rd:m.n'.mi:mn ARAST 13 00 — B8RO
— designated a fir vabie theongh
ucher composhenive incane - - - 3,036 036
Chter finandal aies A,138 Ll TIB - 13984
Subival 6,158,912 BMAZD 12555 614 6,609,910
Credit commiimenes 1.264,571 B.31§ 188 — LINT
Masimum aredit risk expanre TAR AR 92,145 12,743 Hi6M  TEBE0E
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk {Continusd)
Measurement of expected credit losses (Cont in ned)
{5)  Semitinity informaiors and mamagemes’s averlay (Comsinued)
)  Moshmmm codie ik ropame (Contioed)

31 Dierenaber 2013
Bat
Sage | Stape 2 Sage 3 applicable Taual
Balances with cmmal hanks 5w - - - Az
Diepraits with hask and nan-bank frencid
inmintiens WilH - - - 915
Macements with and leams o banks and.
aca-hank financil intitciam 17,15 — 1 — 176,140
Dierhative Financial asreis - — - Jan im
Financial asiets bdd wnder resake agpeamenn 10,7m — — — Lo 7an
Torievest reveivahles = = = — —
Laans and ahances t comomen|oace (i sdrigon TOEE 15,061 X 151%650
Fianrial irvesterenis
— az fair value through profi ar loas - - - 0472 B2
— at amartsed cam 1A 173k 22 — TTRIE
— at Rir value through other
incane J10,0m 05 ] — L0346
— designared at fuir value through ather
comprebensive incane - — - 1w Ly
Ctber firancil ame 17,440 3191 S867 - M, 196
Subtoed i .61 T2 42 Higm JimnTs
Credit commitments 111443 5,17 L0 — L1207
Marimum credi risk expasure G.660,451 179 24492 M50 TAL052

According to the quality of assets, the Group classified the credit mting of the financial assets
as rsk level 1, risk level 2, risk level 3 and default. “Risk level 1* refers to customers who have
competitive advantages among local peers with good foundarions, cutstanding operation results,
strong operational and fnanclal strength, and/or good corporate governance structure. “Risk
level 2 refers to customers who are in the middle tier among local peers with fair foundations,
fair apemation results, fair apuntl-un.n] and Anancial Il‘mnEl‘]lu and/for fair COrpsorate governanoes
structure, “Risk level 3” refers to customens who are in the lower-tier among lecal peers, with weak
foundations, poor operation results, poor operational and financial strength, and/or deficiency in
corporate povernance structure. The definiton of “Default™ is same as the definition of credit-
impaired. The credit rating is used for internal risk management.
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continged)
Momamirinet aFexpocied ciofit Tames ({Cas i)
(5)  Sewsitivity information dwd mandgement’s sverlty (Continmed)
) Mudmum credit dsk exponre (Contmand)

The following table provides an analysis of loans and advances to customers and financial
imvestments that are included in the ECL assessment according to the credit risk level. The book
walue of the following financial assets is the Group’s maxdmum exposure to credic dsk for these assets.

31 Discetnbet 2019
Alawince
ol
ipodmekt
Riklevel]l Rbklwd? DMiskled } Defuk Subital lomes et bakince
Lot und sz 0 cusiamens
Rz i
Supe 1 wane  Engm i —  MES (B amegn
Suge 1 15 11153 a1 - wam (e TLO
g - - — W G [EE AT
Birancitl inmstwenss a marsed. e
B 1 BTl a8 5 — s A W
Siage 1 - 10,92 - - 10,752 55 T £
Suape 3 - - - ¥ ] L ) S
Firancial inmsstmenn i Eir mikoe
throesh odercamprehensive ‘oo
g1 il ] Tk - — R (13 esdsT
Suoge 1 - 13 - - ] ] 13
Sagz 3 - - - 1] m [} H1
Misom e sk expomne iBE THRIE Bhn A S0 a4
31 Deceber 2B
Manc br
mpdme
Rikclemel]  Fuklewl? Fibleed] Dbk Sabiaul by Ber halane
Lot und sz 0 cusiamens
Bz}
Suager 1 UG e HEM —  AMEsL @M 3dEm
S 1 il L] TLERY - AN frl [ ] THEEE
Suge 1 = = = i £545 HETY LALE]
Birancitl inmstmenss ai umarsed. mer
Suge 1 FL A = - T A TTAEE
Suger 1 = 1m = - 1 L35 AT
Suage 3 - - = (N1 118 (538 11
Binancial inwsstmenn a1 Eir wiboe
theoegh campeeheceive ‘oo
Suge 1 agE I - - fpm rap ke
g1 - ir§ - - 1 1 1
Stage 3 - - = m nl [ b
Micimum ol risk eposare ARLHE RAET 144,508 W A5EH LTS

Boa:

Loz and achances o customen nchids lasm nd shance o cutcmen memored. o far value throsgh. cchar comprebmalve incama,
and hr carapanding Impalmnent dear oot inchide o the “Allawsnce far Impacnent lome® o diewn do the able
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk {Continusd)
Measurement of expected credit losses (Cont in ned)
{5)  Semitinity informaiors and mamagemes’s averlay (Comsinued)
) Measurement of expected credic losses

The following table shows the movement in carrying value of loans and advances to customers

in current reporting period:
31 December 2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
As ar | January 2019 3,457,641 93,676 65,433
Movements
Met transfers out from Stage 1 (113799 — —
Met transfers in to Sl:n.g\e 2 — 42217 —
Met transfers in to Sage 3 — — 71,582
Met transactions incurred during
the year (Mote(i)) 486,777 (38.913) (6.733)
Write-off — — (60,686)
Crthers (Motefil)) 3.743 238 —
As at 31 December 2019 3,834,362 97218 69,596

31 December 2018

Seage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
As at 1 January 2018 3,036,736 92,227 67,933
Movements
Met transfers out from Stage 1 (24.271) — —
N:rrm.n,l:&rlinmsrng\ei — 11,115 —
et transfers in to Stage 3 — — 73,156
Met transactions incurred during
the year (Mote(i)) 495,119 {10,215) (28.961)
Write-off = = (46.938)
Ovthers (Motelil)) 10,057 549 243
As at 31 December 2018 3,457,641 93,676 65.433
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continged)
Momamirinet aFexpocied ciofit Tames ({Cas i)
(5)  Sewsitivity information dwd mandgement’s sverlty (Continmed)
i}  Mewsuement of expected credit losses (Continued)
The following table shows the movement in carrying value of financial imvestment In current

reporting period:
31 December 2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Seage 3
Asat 1 January 2019 1,286,574 3995 1,385
Movements
Met transfers out from Stage 1 (11,26:0) — —
Met transbers in to Stn.a: 2 — 1, 36E —
Met transfers in to Stage 3 — — B9Z
Met transactions incurred during
the year (Moteli}) 253,869 (3516 6,810
Write-off — — (186)
Ohers (PMotefii)) 10,794 &E 3}
As at 31 December 2019 1.%39.977 1,915 8,898

31 December 2018

Srage 1 Srage 2 Srage 3
Asat 1 January 2018 1,064,552 347 45
Movements
Met transfers out from Stage 1 (B.430) — A
Met transfers in to Stage 2 — 3.875 —
Met transfers in to Stage 3 — — 4335
et transactions incurred during
the rear (Note(i)) 27172 (236) (2.528)
Write-off —_ —_ (689)
Others (Motefil)) 3,280 9 2
As at 31 December 2018 1,286,574 3995 1.385

B eama:

r,o Mat eranmstiens incured during the paar mainly ircludes chnges In zuryping emoune dus o purchasd, sdgnand or de-
rsczguitlon. excepiing for wrioe-aff

() Other includs changes of interss recevablar, and dfex of mchangs dffernce dudng the par.

282 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

341/407



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2019
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk {Continusd)
Measurement of expected credit losses (Cont in ned)
{5)  Semitinity informaiors and mamagemes’s averlay (Comsinued)
i) Mewurement of expeceed comdit Jomes (Comtimaed)

The following table shows the movement in allowance for impairment of loans and advances o
customers in current reporting period:

31 December 2019

Seage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

As ar 1 January 2019 3,072 22,TBE 46,372
Movements (Mote(i))

Met transfers out from Stage 1 (2.328) — —

Met transfers in to Sl:n.g\ei — i, 034 —

Met transfers in to Sage 3 — — 42,339
Met transactions incurred during

the year (Mote(ii)) 5.769 (B.610) (1,738)
Changes in parameters for the year

(Moeeii}) 327 5.747 11,153
Write-off — — (60.686)
Orthers (Motes(iv) 175 9 6,413
As ar 31 December 2019 36,015 26,088 53,853

31 December 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

As at 1 January 2018 30,654 24,674 42,363
Movements (Mote(i))

Met transfers out from Stage 1 {1.870) — —

Met transfers in to Stage 2 — 515 =

Met transfers in to Sage 3 — — 48,6540
Met transactions incurred during

the year (Note(ii)) 4,02 (1,838) (1.337)
Changes in parameters for the year

(Mate(iil)) (1.540) (623) L.1o7
Wrie off — — (46,934
Orthers (Motes(iv) 11& 62 2,333
As at 31 December 2018 32,072 22,788 46,372
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continged)
Momamirinet aFexpocied ciofit Tames ({Cas i)
(5)  Sewsitivity information dwd mandgement’s sverlty (Continmed)
i}  Mewsuement of expected credit losses (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in allowance for impairment of financial investment in
current reporting period:

31 December 2019

Srage 1 Stage 2 Seage 3

Asar 1 January 2019 3,407 154 B48
Movements (More(i))

Met transfers out from Stage 1 (53 — —

Met transfers in to Stage 2 — 195 —

Met transfers in to Stage 3 — — 138
Met transactions incurred during

the pear (Mote(ii)) L.610 (13 1,135
Changes in parameters for the year

(M atefiil)) (23) — 190
Write-off — — (186)
Others (Motes(iv]) (7 — —
As at 31 December 2019 4,945 3T 3} 1z5

31 December 2018
Stage 1 Srage 2 Stage 3

Asat 1 January 2018 3,933 10 3l
Movements (More(i))

Met transfers out from Stage 1 (239) — —

Met transfers in to Stage 2 — 144 —

Met transfers in to Stage 3 — — 1.843
et transactions incurred during

the year (Mote(ii)) a7 — —
Changes in parameters for the year

(N ote(iii) (703) — (341)
Write-off — — (689}
Orthers (Motes(ivi) 26 — 4
Az at 31 December 2018 3,407 154 848

B ooma:
0 o1l Toe 1 during the year mainly in=lads tha imps of e hunges on the meanmman: o

ECLa.

oy Kot anmastizar Incurmed during the yesr muinly Incladar changes in allawsnes for Impelmant des ez Anandsl aoet
parchamd, ang 1 oe d " faecluding ).

M) Changes in paesrasters malnly inclods change: in cisk sspomss 1nd the mpacta =0 ECLe dus £2 changes i PO and LGDs
Felloaring repulsr up-daos on medaling prmscan robar dun csps moverano,.

(=] Ochan Inclids meovery of Joarn writen off, chanpes of inpummme leame of Inocat recetesblar, wod affsct of eechanpe
diffarancar.
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)

{a) Credit risk (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit losses (Cont in ned)

(5 Sensitivity information dnd management’s overlay (Comtinued)
{lify Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry secton:
31 Decembet 2019 31 December 2018
Loans and Leans and
advaices advances
Giras secuted by Grag secured by
balance % collateral balane % callateal
Corparare |nans
— rental and busines srvices 351.T3z BB 190,879 232,699 74 L7713
—ezil estate 1BATH T2 156672 32903 Y 73640
— waer, enviroament and public
wility munagement 268,942 67 124285 20890 58 LGAE
e ISTATS 64 114587 295005 B2 Mol®
pastal mrvices 185,117 e 70,036 151038 42 76131
— whaolesale and pecail 146,883 7 BT, HE 15131 42 ERuid
— cangEnuctinn 4,701 14 4448l TG 11 31,360
— preduction and apply of
elecrric pawer, g and was G215 LT T T8 P} 40667
— public management and
social oepanisations 15743 a3 6,733 13366 04 771
— athers 314526 TE 135883 AT L1 128377
Subtotal 1955519 488 LOTTTH LSS 5Ll LO6&ETE
Peranal loars LT¥0ALE 3.1 Ll4nET 1484490 410 1000200
Diiscounted hills 65 k) —  MrmT &7 -
Accroed ineemes: Ll a3 —_ E.3id a2 —_
Grass lnars and advances o cumomens 4,008,091 lon L0741 RELETI0 1ong 2067079

fiv) Loans and advances to customers analysed by geographical ssctor:

31 Diece mber 2019 31 December 2014
Loans and Leans and
ll:h'l.l.n:ll I.I:l.ﬂ.u.l:ﬂ
Gioas secuted by Gram serured by
balance % collateral balanee % collatenal
Bohai Rim fincheding Head Office]  1,224.035 05 410,248 1123293 L1 42647
Yangize River Dl 90846 30 59n600 Ta4q 722 4 I )
Pearl River Deka and West Siraic weals 14.9 473,112 o491 152 HETID
Cenerd 54,366 133 29,138 453,100 12.3 206,085
Western 474,100 LB 175458 433143 o 2ATeS
Northeastern TTaH 19 55767 Theaz il 51,382
Ouiside Mainland China 168524 43 75176 7R 49 66,953
Accreed ineresc Ll a3 — EMIE a2 —
Tatd 4008091 long 120,741 RELETI0 ong 2067079
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continged)
Momamirinet aFexpocied ciofit Tames ({Cas i)
(5)  Sewsitivity information dwd mandgement’s sverlty (Continmed)
{v)  Loans and advances to customers analysed by type of securigy
31 December 31 December

2019 2014

Unsecured loans 70, 04T 804,154

Guarantesd loans 489,545 492,382

Secured loans 2,330,741 2067 079

— loans secured by collateral 1,822,815 1,658 484

— pledged loans 307,926 408595

Subtotal 3,686,333 3,365,615

Discounted bills 311,654 242,797

HAccrued interest 1, 104 B.338

Gross loans and advances to customers 4,008,091 616,750

{vl) Rescheduled loans and advances to customers

31 December 2019 31 Decemnber 2018

% of toral % of total

Giross loans and Giross loars and

balance advances balance wdvances

Eescheduled laans and advances: 22,792 0L57T% 21,588 0,50%

— rescheduled loars and adwances
overdue mare than 3 manths 1, S00 0.27% 18,748 0.52%

Rescheduled loans and adwances are those loans and advances to customers which have been
restructured or renegotiated after their credic condition declined. And For the purpose of management,
the group recrganizes the loans that have been classified as bad under the premise of satisfying
credit enhancement, aiming at the detedomation of the bormower's financial position before the
loan matures. As ar 31 December 2019, with bormwens® financial difficulty, the concession the
Group considered resulted from economic or legal reasons is not significant.
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk {Continusd)
Measurement of expected credit losses (Cont in ned)
{5)  Semitinity informaiors and mamagemes’s averlay (Comsinued)
fvi) Debit srcoritics anabysed by crodl meting

The Group adopts a credic rating approach to manage credit risk of its debt instruments parfolio.
The ratings are obtained from major rating agencies where the debt instruments are lssued. The
carrying amounts of debt Instruments investments analysed by rating as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

31 December 2019
Untated
- (Moee (1)) A4 AL A  Bdewd Tokal
Diebi securkies isaued by
— poTemments 907H 175718 4895 1,766 — 683133
— policy banks 94,455 — — 062 —  s7
— public entities — 102 a6 — — 345
— banks and nenebank Anancial
irstitutions 35558 321,258 6,151 1549 %531 39TE4d
— Corporates 44,596 36,881 11023 15593 9188 117,281
[nvestment manapement products
manaped by securities companies 18585 — d0i — 17 186,277
Trust investment pl.l.n: 157,194 — — — — 157,194
Tenl 1LMB3I9L 533955 jrA21 48,790 16,736 1,642,693
A1 December 2018
Unneed
(Mo (i) AdA AL A BelwA Tonl
Diebi securikies ismed by:
— govemments 371,368 114,370 11,453 265 = 457 5
— pelicy banks 108,816 B4 — 7Ol — 1M
— public emticies 178 b 1486 — — 1573
— banks and nenebank Anancial
institutions 16,995 181031 4,560 23,585 9591 4578
— corpontes 5240 48675 1047 7230 6234 137
[nvesiment MEnpEment pl:nd'nd:
manaped by securities companies 228,392 = = = = 225352
Trust inveszment plans 178,019 = = = = 178,019
Tenl 969,008 351,760 7873 38,106 15,845 1409,703
Hxa:
Wl LUnraned dabt senritiar bhald by the Grasp ars primarily bards Lussd by the Chines govenman, palicy banks, bk, nea-
kank fi | £ pred ged by panbes and craw plun.
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (Continged)
Momamirinet aFexpocied ciofit Tames ({Cas i)
(5)  Sewsitivity information dwd mandgement’s sverlty (Continmed)
{viil} Imvestment management products managed by securities companies and trust investment plans

analysed by type of underlying assets
31 December 31 Diecember
019 2018
Imvestment management products managed by

securitles companies and trust Investment plans
— credit assets 265,969 300,083
— rediscounted bills 80,513 B0.831
— interbank assets products issued by other banks — 16850
Total Fib, 482 406,570

The Group divides investment management products managed by securities companies and
trust investment plans Into comp rehensive credit management system. to manage its credic risk
exposure in a holistic manner. The type of collateral of credit assets includes guarantes, securige
by collateral, and pledge.

(b) Market risk

Marker risk refers to risks thar may cause a loss of on-balance sheet and off balance sheet businesses for the
Group due to the adverse movement of market prices, including interest mates, foreign exchange rates, stock
prices and commodity prices. The Group has established a market risk management system that formulates
procedures to identify, measure, supervise and control market risks. This system aims to limit market risk to an
acceptable level through examining and approving new products and limit management.

Risk and Internal Control Committes of the Group is responsible for approving market risk management policies,
establishing appropriate organisational seructure and information systems to effectively identify, measure, monitor
and control market risks, and ensuring adequate resources to reinforce the market risk management. The Risk
Management Diepartment is responsible for independently managing and controlling market risks of the Group,
including developing market risk management policies and authorisation limits, providing independent report
of market rsk to identify, measure and monitor the Group's market risk. Business departments are responsible
for the day-to-day management of market risks, including effectively identifring, measuring, controlling market
risk factors associated with the relevant operations, so as to ensure the dynamic balance between business
development and risk underaking,

The Group uses sensitivity analysis, foreign exchange exposure and interest rate re-pricing gap analysis as the
primary instruments to monitor markes sk

Interest rate risk and currency risk are the major market risks that the Group is exposed to.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate exposures mainly arise from the mismatching of assets and liabilitles” re-pricing dates,
as well as the effect of interest rate volatility on trading positions.

The Group primarily uses gap analysls to assess and monitor its re-pricing risk and adjust the ratio of Asating and
fixed rate exposures, the loan re-pricing cycle, as well as optimise the term structure of its deposits accordingly.
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b} Market risk (Continued)
Taterest mte dsk (Continped)

The Group implements variows methods, such as duration analysis, sensithvity analysis, stress testing and scenario
simulation, to measure, manage and report the interest rate risk on a regular basis.

The following tables summarise the average interest rates, and the next re-pricing dates or contractual mataricy
date whichever is earlier for the assets and Habilities as at the end of each reporting date

31 December 2019
Between
thiee
Avehepe Less than noiths Beetmeen
Iutefest ke Nob-Interest thhee and ane oneand  Mare than
(Pae (1)) Toal beating manths yar  freyers  fiveyan
Aspeis
Cath and balances wich central banks L55% 463,158 1713 45415 - — -
Depasics with banks and aan-tank
firancil institutians 100k 121,57 L.Ha 53,285 B BE3 — —
Placements with and baass o banks and
nan-bunk Anancial instinstivns AT ST LUE 14333 1956 145 -
Finandal amets held under cesde apreements L1¥% 94 - 2554 - - -
Lears and advances 1o auscamers [Node [if)] SO0B%  ANL602 998 150543 LIST4 nraw BI8.363
Finandal imvestmenc:
— atfair vahue dhiroagh poafit orless 7,546 11%5% 48,523 M85 15508 ST
— atamertied cut 4.30% 134,234 112 36126 TATER JET. 0 115,593
—at fair value through ocher
canpreben e income
— desigated at fuir valoe thraugh 1A6% 24780 47 44513 MLE J4B3E 142421
aiker m.np.llununmm 3,036 103 — — — —
Oithers 165,179 185,179 — - — —
Total mets 6790433 43BAW L6091 L4602 LGN LOGRS1L
Liabilities
Bamawing fron. cenmal harks AL HE M, 28 — 11358 224,040 — —
Depasics from banks and aan-bank
firancil instittians W 9512 L MRS MSAT - -
Placements fram backs and noo-hank
firancal insinatians 1% 2,539 i 57432 3LTIE 90 —
Firandal tishilisies ac far value thoangh
peckit ar loss BT 7§ 151 — - -
Finandal amens sold ander reparchase
Ll L% 111,638 ki 80,155 31,660 - -
Depasics from cusomen LOE% 407338 50932 LTARAAT #5144 03 928
Deebit seciricies duned LA 650078 3512 TLTaY 458367 W 1T
Lease lahilities 46E 1 B9 T 11 108 5303 4584
Chhes BREIT  BRAY - - - -
Total Lishillt s 6,217,908 L6004 3706652 L1306 610831 113,316
[bkebest ratr gup SALSI4 19LAEE  (LOLLIGN)  (1ELOGY 451989 T3S
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b} Market risk (Continusd)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
11 December 20LE
Average Between Between
tierest e Man-inomest Lo dhan cheee manths meand  Maretha
[Muie (i) Tl bewing chree moachs andapeymr freeyan fivepean
Assetn
Caih and halinces with cenmal hasks L% S3E.T08 17,047 1,66 - - =
Depasits with banks and nea-hask
finandal institocians 112% 90153 114 LI 5000 - -
Pheements wich and loans a banks and
wan-bark firancil insiiitian 3.IE% 176160 i ] 129,13 4051 - -
Binancial aeeis hel under eale szreenenc 2.55% 10,790 - 10,790 - - -
Laans and advnces o costomen: (Noe (1)) 406% 1515650 LI BT ] BLE2LS W06 15,m
Finarcial invesmmen:
— ar fair vabue through peafit o b MEET2 217,164 0,077 26624 0,915 4111
— a amoctised coat 4§71% TR &L 67,5972 131,186 i 131,659
— ar fair vabue throogh athe
conpeehensive income A% 510,346 8im 1,530 FLE07 28307 57,04
— designaied ai Rir value chraugh cher
m.npd.ur.iﬂixnme ol 2707 = — — —
Oihers 126090 124,204 L7l 171 — —
Totul asmets 6 06,714 A1 ZA7TIEN LT0EFS LAMLW 252,01
Liabilitles
Hmw.:gﬁmmnﬂh.lh 327% HE.410 - 64,550 IR0 —_ -
Depeasits From banks and nen-bask
finandal institucians 3% TAL2E4 4151 pih IME0 17 -
Pheement fram banks and pan-bank
finandal institocians 4% 15358 Ml B1,ER 31,224 - M
Finarcial liabdities at fir valoe through
poafit or Jam ez 962 = = — —
Binancial aeeis sald under rpurchae
AL LM% 120315 1§ 116,790 w40 - -
Depasits From cascomers LIFS 4Ll nMl  LANEE ERAE TN kil
Debe securities ismed LN, ¥izdaz 415 144 7874 95,260 108,250
Ochers 106,205 14323 1,312 = = =
Total Labilides SA13628 135307 35214 L 37EE5] 471,160 L0701
Lnbetest babe gup 4306 L e v - O - 145,047

Fare
w Averags Inters rarw ceprasanced h racks of Interas Incomedexp e o nrage s bedng amecsMabillles durieg de pear.

w Fer boaru and achancn 1o cumamars, the "Leas than chres mondu” casgary Included swardus {rae af all Far lmg Jorsaid
of AAB43, 791 milicn s ot 31 Dlecamber 2018 fas s 31 Ducernbar 2013: AAMB42 289 million).
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b} Market risk (Continued)
Taterest mte dsk (Continped)

The Group uses sensithriey analysis to measure the potential effect of changes in intersst rates on the Group's
net interest iIncome. The following table sets forth the resulis of the Group’s interest rate sensitivity analysis as
at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2015,

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
(ther Other
Met Lnterest  comprehensive Met interest  comprehensive
Income Income Income income
+100 basis points (11,471) (3.407) (11.435) (1 .:409)
-10@ basls polints 11,471 3407 11,435 1409

This sensitivigy analysis Is based on a statkc interest rate risk profile of the Group’s non-derivative assets and
liabilities and certain assumptions as discussed below. The analysis measures only the impact of changes in interest
rates within one year, showing how annualised interest income would have been affected by repricing of the
Group’s non-derdvative assets and liabilities within the one-year pericd. The analysis is based on the following
assumptions: (i} all assets and liabilities that reprice or mature within the three months bracket, and the after
three months but within cne year bracket are both reprice or mature at the beginning of the respective pericds,
(ii) it does not reflect the potential impact of unparallded yield curve movements, and (iii) there are no other
changes to the portfolio, all positions will be retained and molled over upon maturity. The analysis does not take
into account the effect of risk management measures taken by management. Due to the assumptions adopred,
actual changes in the Group's net interest income and other comprehensive income resulting from increases or
decreases in interest rates may differ from the results of this sensithvity anabysis.

Currency dsk

Currency risk arises from the potential change of exchange rates that cause a loss to the on-balance sheer and
offbalance sheet business of the Group. The Group measures Its currency risk with forelgn currency exposures,
and manages its currency risk by spot and forward foreign exchange transactions and matching its foreign
currency denominated assets with comesponding liabilities in the same currency, as well as wing derivative
Anancial instruments, mainly foreign ecchange swaps, to manage fts exposure.
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)

(b} Market risk (Continusd)
Currency rsk (Cont in ned)
The exposures at the reporting date were as follows:

31 Diecember 2019
BMB usD HED Dthers Tatal
(RMB {RMB (RMB
equivalent]  equivalent]  equibvalent)
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 445.569 16,679 694 116 463,158
Dieposits wich banks and non-bank.
Financial institutions 26,334 16,579 1,598 5.7B& 121,297
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank finuncial iostitutions 123,725 55,649 0516 4,657 24,547
Financial assets held under resale
1greemenis 0,054 — — — 9,054
Leans and advances to custamers 3,655,998 11,7 105842 18,062 3,892,602
Financial investments
— at fuir value through profit or loss 193,217 2a,E62 3467 — 317546
— at amortised cost 921,118 LG —_ — 924,234
— at fuir value through ather
comprehensive income 538,355 64,153 17,903 8,369 628,780
— designated at fair value through
ocher comprehensive income 1557 178 3ol —_ 3,036
Others 175,304 4,679 4,550 746 185,279
Total assets 6,263,241 193,485 1554871 3T.B36 6,750,433
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banks 240,298 —_ —_ —_ 240,298
Dleposits from banks and non-bank
Financial institutions 941867 B2 in B2 951,122
Placements from banks and non-bank
Financial institucions TH.315 16,858 116 150 92,539
Financial Liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 715 132 — — 847
Financial assets sold under repurchase
igreements 111,838 —_ —_ —_ 111,538
Dleposit Fram customers 3.700,005 200,762 154,291 18,200 4,073,258
Diebt securicies dssued 628,885 21,389 — — 650,274
Lease liabilicies 10,183 4 559 150 10,896
Others 50,992 1,724 3855 266 BE83T
Total Liakillties F.r91,098 248,711 159,252 18,848 6,217.900
MNet on-balance sheet pesition 472,143 44,774 (3.381) 18,988 532,524
Credit commicments 1,169,606 84,385 13,294 Taroa 1,275,075
Dierivatives (Note (i)) (9,194 (27,398) 45,836 (77 LAT4
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)
(b) Market risk {Continued)
Courren cy sisk { Cas thamed)
The exposures at the reporting date were as follows: (Continued)

31 December 2018

RMB usD HED Others Towl
{RMB (RMB {RMB
equivalent]  equivilent)  equivalent)
Assets
Cash and balinces with central banks 525,321 12,668 535 184 538, TOR
Dieposits with banks ind non-bank
financial institutions 64,670 23,757 2,429 B.257 99,153
Placements with and Joans w banks and
non-bank financial institutions 123,262 41,291 9,137 2470 176,160
Financial asets held under resale
apreements 9832 o5 — — 10,790
Loans and advances to customers 3,263,388 122573 109,773 19918 3515650
Financial imvestments
— at fair value through profit or los 287,957 18,146 2,729 — 308,872
— at amortised cost F75.749 2489 —_ — 778,258
— at fair value through ocher
camprebensive income 429,671 50,766 23,570 5.929 510,346
— designared ar fair value through
other comprehensive income 2,340 155 212 — 2,707
Olchers 121,762 1,858 515 1,955 126,000
Total assets 5,603,950 74,561 141,300 38763 60068, 714
Liabilicles
Barrowings from central banks 285,430 — — — 2B6,430
Dleposits from banks and non-bank
financial institnrions T77.TEd 2,582 131 L762 T2, 264
Placements from banks and non-bank
financial instituticns 101,09 14,139 125 — 15358
Financial liabdlities at fir value through
profit or loss — o — — 262
Financial amets sold under repurchase
ApTeemEnts 120,057 218 —_ —_ 120,315
Dlepesits fram custamers 3,285,244 205,993 138,905 21,469 34649,611
Diebt securities issued 531,768 0,715 — — 552483
Oichers 93,020 626 T25 1,934 106,205
Total labilicies 5193442 248,233 146, 7B 2506 5615628
Met on-balunce sheet positian 410,548 26,426 2,514 13.598 453,086
Credit commitments 1,004,799 95,187 12,852 7.330 1,120,207
Derivatives (Nate (i) 33,795 (38,861 22,205 {14,261 2,578
Bloo:
w Darhuiivas rapmenst cha nes satienal smeane of ¥ iing undsliversd Farsign axcharge sper, frsgn arhags G,

Farslgn exchangs swap and carmncy cpilan
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)

(b} Market risk (Continusd)
Currency rsk (Cont in ned)

The Group uses sensithrity analysis to measure the potentlal effect of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates on the Group’s profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The following table sets forth, as ar 31
Diecember 2019 and 31 Diecember 2018, the results of the Group's forelgn exchange rave sensitheicy analysis.

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Oreher Oiher
Profit comprehenshve Profit  comprehenshve
before tax oo me before ax income
5% appreciation 3,529 3 ez (1
5% depreciation 13,529 (23) (582) 1

This sensitivity analysis is based on a static foreign exchange exposure profile of assets and labilities and certain
assumptions as follows: (i) the foreign exchange sensitivity is the gain and loss recognised as a resule of 500 basis
point fluctuation in the foreign currency exchange rates against RMB at the reporting date, (i) the exchange
rares against RMB for all forelgn currencies change in the same direction simultanecusly and does not take
into account the correlation effect of changes in different foreign currencies, and (i) the foreign exchange
exposures calculated include both spot foreign exchange exposures, foreign exchange derbvarbve instruments,
and; all positions will be retained and molled over upon maturity. The analysis does not take into account the
effect of risk management measures taken by management. Due to the assumprions adopted, actual changes in
the Group’s profit and other comprehenstve income resulting from increases or decreases in foreign exchange
rates may differ from the results of this sensitivity analysis. Precious metal is included in foreign currency for
the purpose of this sensithrity analysis.

ic) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group, in meeting the demand of Habilities due and other payment obligations
as well as the needs of business expansion, is unable to sufficiently, fimely or cost-effectively acquire hands. The
Group’s liquidity risk arlses mainly from the mismaich of assets to liabilitles and customers may concentrate
their withd rawals.

The Group has implemented overall liquidity risk management on the entity level. The headquarters has the

responsibility for developing the entire Group’s liquidity dsk policies, strategies, and implements centralised

management of Hquidity risk on the entity level. The domestic and foreign affiliates develop their owm liquidiny

policies and procedures within the Group’s liquidicy stratepy management framework, based on the requirements

of relevant regulatory bodies.

The Group manages liquidity risk by setting various indicators and operational limits according to the overall

position of the Group’s assets and liabilities, with referencing to market condition. The Group haolds assets

with high liquidity to meet unexpected and material demand for payments in the ordinary course of business.

The toaols that the Group uses to measure and monitor liquidity sk mainly inclade:

—  Ligquidity gap analysis;

—  Ligquidity indicators (including but not limited to regulated and internal managed indicatoms, such as
liquidity coverage matio, net stable funding ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio, lHquidiey matio, liquiditr gap rate,
excess reserves rate) monitoring;

—  Scenaro analysis;

— Seress testing.
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)

ic) Liguidity risk {Continued)

O this basls, the Group establishes regular reporting mechanisms for liquidigy risk to report the latest situation
of liquidity risk to the senior management on a timely basis.

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of assets and liabilites

31 Deceiber 2013
Betwens Riwen
Repambhe Wik theeouki eind Marethui Tsduel
o dewad Nuniil o nhe et Bve peaie e pan [LEEl ] Tl
Aoty
sk arel bdseeywith covd Bk L, 14 - im - - i bzl
Diepesit i backs sec e husk
Finsacial iestirutions ATE 14180 £Lm1 - - - L1157
Pacmens witk ind bars o banks:
ied con bark Buaacid fnsinrins - B LE 1455 - - s
Ficanial ety bebd vadr 1o
grenemn - LU - - - - L1
Launs s acvancs o ey
ez (i e 2T 3,61 HLaT LATIN T, 1LY
Finangid ivvermens:
— & fi vaboe dhrogh puolie
aks L] M o 1517 TH kL 754
—x wmrind e BT 111 168,121 i A m LEERE
— il dreugh wher
cmapebenie bome 1 LTI wn A T i EBTE
— deind ke dooegh
arher cxgbeneiv incane - - - - - kTS A%
Ddbens o LA I E1 H 1808 %]
Tetd umets B LIS 135, 1,565, 40 LT k] 6743
Lisbiities
Boowwricgs Fom coend haale - 1L3% 16 - - - MK
Degesit Fecn ks i coa bk
Tnania] iestiions ] I HEITE - - - L
Paceeni o becks el o husk
T istiwions - M o0 P11 - - LA
Fiarcial ishdites u fir ke
thoegh 75 - - - - 18 ]
P
Fiancial s vall e eprachan
e - Iy 1561 - - - L5
Depesit Fon soena 162 L LLE] T LI - s
Dbt smrierined - 7L i 4 Ly - inm
Lz ke ] ™ 10§ 5 LIY Li
Oeben Az B L] L ur 15y KT
Tead liblitie LETES LI 141 i el i 217,509
{8 kot st [ %] [ (MBI 0 LTALY vk ) §1a

2019 Anoual Report 295

354/407



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2009
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

55 Financial risk management (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk {Continued)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturty of assets and liabilities: (Continued)
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)

ic) Liguidity risk {Continued)

The tables below present the cash flows of the Grm.l.p of financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounis
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash fown
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk {Continued)

The tables below present the cash flows of the Group of financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow (Continued).
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)

ic) Liguidity risk {Continued)

Credit Commitments include bank aCCEpraAnces, credit card commitments., Fuaraniees, loan commitment and
letbers of credit. The tables below summarise the amounts of credit commitments by remaining contracoual

matarity.
31 December 2019
Less than

1 wyear 1-5 yeats Ohwer 5 years Total
Bank acceptancess 425,236 — — 426,226
Credit card commitments 538,861 &,387 255 545,503
Guarantess 96,576 49,086 1,492 147,154
Loan commitments 16,448 18,779 16,954 53,211
Letter of credit 101,948 2,033 — 103,981
Toial 1,150,059 76,285 18,731 1,275,075

31 Drecember 2018
Less than

1 year 1-5 years  Ohver 5 years Toatal
Bank acceprancess 393,851 — - 393,851
Credit card commicments 427,681 6,909 = 434,550
Guarantees 83,905 68,354 6,554 158,813
Loan commitments 7,033 15,578 17,418 40,029
Letter of credit 0,634 2,290 — 92,924
Total 1,003, 104 93,131 23,972 1,120,207

Moax

[ H] For cush ard balsnowr with cmeral banks, che urdsed paried amamne capreamoied. stooiecy depostt mseres funds sand focal depeakes mxincdned
with the FBOLC. For placenania with and leans eo banks and neo-bank Anancial lowra and ad a and
tha undaid paricd amaure caprasanecsd tha balurces baing Impaiced or cvecduos For mees chan con monch. Equicy Invecount wan she mperiad
urder andused padad

uy Tha balsrces aof keans and shanas io comamecs which wers svsrdus wiibin ane meadh bax d are included in cepayable on demand.
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55 Financial risk management (Continued)

(d) Operational risk

Oiperational risk refers to the dsk ofloss arsing from inappropriate or problematic internal procedures, personnel,
IT systems, or external events, including legal risk, but excluding strategy risk and reputaticnal dsk

The Group manages cperational risk through a control-based emvirenment by establishing a sound mechanism
of operational sk management in order to identify, assess, monitor, control, mitigate and report operational
risks. The framework covers all business functions mnging foom finance, credit, accounting, settlement, savings,
treasury, intermediary business, computer applications and management, special assets resclution and legal
affairs. Key controls include:

— by establishing a matrix authodsation management system of the whole group, carying out the annual
unified authorsation work, and strictly resericting the institutions and personnel at all levels o carngy our
business activities within the scope of authority granted, the management requirements of prohibiting the
overstepping of authority to engage in business activities were Further clarified ar the instinwtional level;

—  through consistent legal responsibility framework, taking strict disciplinary actions against non-compliance
in order to ensure accountabilinn

— promoting operational fsk management culture throughout the crganisation; building a team of operational
sk management professionals. Through formal training and pedformance ap praisal system in raising risk
MARAFEMEnt AWarensss;

—  strengthening cash and account management in accordance with the relevant policies and procedures,
intensifying the monitoring of suspiciows transactions. Ensure the staffare well -equipped with the necessary
knowledge and basic skills on antl-money laundering through continuous training;

—  backup systems and disaster recowery plans cowering all the major activities, especially backoffice operations
in arder to minimise any unforeseen intermaption. Insurance cover is amanged to mitigate potential losses
associated with certain disruptive events.

In addition to the above, the Group improves its operational risk management information systems on an
ongoing basls to efficiently identify, evaluate, monitor, contral and report s level of operational risk. The
Group’s management information system has the functionalities of recording and capturing lost data and events
of operational risk to further support operational fsk control and selfassessment, as well as monitorng of key
risk indicarors.

56 Capital Adequacy Ratio

Capiral adequacy ratio reflects the Group’s operational and rsk management capability and it is the core of capital
management. The Group’s capital management objectives are to meet the legal and regulatory requirements, and to
prudently determine the capital adequacy ratio under realistic exposures with reference to the capital adequacy ratio
levels of leading global banks and the Group’s opemting situations.

The Group considers its strategic development plans, business expansion plans and rsk varables in conducting ies
scenario analysis, stress testings and other measures to forecast, plan and manage capitl adequacy mtio.

The Group’s management monitors the Group's and the Bank’s capital adequacy regulardy based on regulations isaied
by the CBIRC. The required information is filed with the CBIRC by the Group and the Bank semi-annually and
quarterly, respectively.

From 1 January 2013, the Group commenced the computation of its capital adequacy ratios in accordance with the
Regulaticn Geowerning Capital of Commerclal Banks (Provisional) and other relevant regulations promulgated by the
CBIRC in the year of 2012, From 1 January 2019 on, the Group calculates the default risk assets of the counterparties
of derivatives in accordance with the Regulations on Measuring the Risk Assets of the Counterparties of Dierbvative
Instruments promulgated by the CBIRC in 2018, The requirements pursuant to these regulations may have certain
differences comparing to those applicable in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions.
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56 Capital Adequacy Ratio (Cantimued)

CBIRC demands that commercial banks shall meet the capital adequacy requirements set cut in the "Capital Management
Measures for Commercial Banks (Tdal)” by the end of 2018. Systematically important banks are required to meet
the minimum core Tier-Chne capital adequacy ratic, Tier-One capital adequacy matio and capital adequacy ratio of
B.50%, 9.50% and 11.50%. Nnn-mten:n.l'hﬂ]l}r important bank are r:qulr:d to mes=t the minimum core Tier-One
capital adequacy ratie, TierOne capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio of 7.50%, 8.50% and 10.50%. In
addition, owerseas subsidiaries and branches are directly regulated by the respective local banking regulators and the
requirements of capital adequacy ratios differ by country. Durng the year, the Group has complied in full with all s
externally imposed capital requirements.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated in accordance with Regulation Geowerning Capital of Commercial Banks
(Provisional). According to the requirements, for credit risk, the capital requirement was measured using the weighting
method. The market risk was measured by adopting the standardised approach and the opemational risk was measured
by using the basic indicator approach.

Relevant requirements promulgated by the CBIRC are listed as below.

31 Deecember 31 December
2019 2018
Core Tler-One caplial adequacy ratio B9 B.G2%M:
Tlet-One caplial adequacy ratlo 120 9.43%
Capltal adequacy rato 12.44% 12.47%
Components of capital base
Core Tier-Ohne capital:
Share capital 46,935 48,933
Crualified portion of capital reserve and other equity instruments 62,112 58.977
Crther comprehensive income Ta361 5268
Surplus reserve 39,009 34450
Genenl reserve 81,535 74255
Retained earnings 03,411 178,820
Qun]lﬂﬂd portion af unn-canrm\]HnE Interests £ 637 4493
Total core Tier-Oine mpdl:nl 440, 990 408,128
Core Tier-Ohne capital deductions:
Goodwill {met of redated deferred tax labiligy) (912) (B9
Orther intangible assets other than land uwse right
{met of related deferred tax labilig) (1.B75) {1.878)
Caore Tier-One Capital investments made in financial institutions
over which the Gmu.p has control but are cutside the r:ﬂ.ﬂnl'nry
consolidation scope — —
Met core Tier-One capital 444,203 403,354
Dther Tier-One capital (Mote (i) 77555 37.THR
Tier-COhne -m_pdl:nl 521,758 441,122
Tier-Two capital:
Cualified portion of Tier-Two capital instruments issued
and share premium 63,151 104,315
Surplus allowance for loan impairment 40,753 37.122
Crualified portion of non-controlling interests 1,235 G634
Met capital base 635,897 383,393
Total risk-weighted assets 5 113,585 4,677,713

Hatm:

i A i M Dacerabar 219, the Group's sehar Thar-Ores caphial Includad prafaremcs shoares lrasad by tha Bask (Meos 43) and nan-conirslling Interssis (e
&9
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57 Fair value

Fair value estimates are generlly subjective in nature, and are made as of a specific point in time based on the
characteristics of the financial instraments and relevant market information. The Group uses the following hierarchy
for determining and disclosing the fair value of Anancial instraments:

Lewel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access ar
the measurement date. This level includes listed equity instraments and debt instruments on exchanges
and exchange-traded derivarives.

Leve 2 inputs other than quated prices inchuded within Lewel 1 are observable for assets ar liabilities, either directly
or indirectly. A majority of the debt securities classified as level 2 are Renminbi bonds. The fair values
of these bonds are determined based on the evaluation resules provided by China Central Diepository 82
Clearing Corporate Limited. This level also includes partial bills rediscounting and forfeiting in loans
and advances, as well as a majorty of ower-the-counter derbvative contracts. Porelgn exchange foreard
and swaps, Interest rare swap, and foreign exchange options use discount cash flow evaluation method
and the evaluation model of which includes Forward Pricing Model, Swap Model and Option Pricing
Medel. Bills rediscounting and forfeiting use discount cash Aow evaluation method to estimate fir value.
Iu.p'l.l.t parameters are sourced from the ﬂpzu market such as E]nnm'b-ug and Reuters.

Lewe % inputs for assets or llabilities are based on unobservable parameters. This level includes equity investments
and debt instraments with one or more than cne significant unobservable parameters. Management
determine the fair value through inquiring from counterparties or using the valuation technigues. The
midel incorporate unobservable parameters such as discount rate and market price volarilities.

The fair walue of the Group’s Anancial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

— Iferaded im active markets, fair values of financial ass=ts and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices, respectively;

— If not traded in active markets, fir values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with genenlly accepred pricing models or discounted cash Aow analysis using prices from chservable current
market transactions for similar instraments. I there were no aailable observable current market transactions
prices for similar instruments, quoted prices from counterparty is used for the valuation, and management
performs analysis on these prices. Discounted cash fovw analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration
of the instruments is used for dervatives other than options, and option pricing models are used for option
derhvaies.

The Group has established an independent valuation process for financial assets and financial liabilities. The Financial
Market Diepartment, the Financial Institution Department, and the [mvestment Bank Department are responsible for the
fair valuation of flnancial assets and financial liabilities. The Risk Management Diepartment performs an independent
review of the valuation methodologies, inputs, assumptions and valuation results. The Operations Department records
the accounting for these ftems according to the result generated from the valuation process and accounting policies.
The Finance and Accounting Department prepares the disclosure of the financial assets and financial labilities, based
on the independently reviewed valuation.

The Group’s valuation policies and procedures for different types of financial instruments are approved by the Risk
Management Committes. Any change to the valuation policies, or the related procedures, must be reported to the Risk
Management Committee for approval before they are implemented.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no significant change in the valuation techniques or inputs used to
determine fair value measurements.
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57 Fair value (Continuedy

{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Financial assets and liabilities not carrled at fair value of the Group include cash and balances with central
banks, deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions, placements with and loans to banks and non-
bank financial institutions, financial assets held wnder resale agresments, loans and advances to customers at

amortised cost, financial investments at amortised cost, borrowings from central banks, deposits from banks
and non-bank financial institations, placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements, deposits from customers and debe securities lssued.

Except for the items shown in the tables below, the maturity dates of aforesald financial assets and labilities are
within a year or are mainly floating Interest rates, as a result, their carying amounts are approximately squal

to their fair value.
Carrylog values Fair values
31 Deceimber 31 December 31 December 31 December
019 2018 019 01e
Financial assets:
Financial ivestment
— at amorised cost 92423 778,238 938,830 TTEITY
Financial labilicfes:
Diebe szcurities issued
— certificares of deposit (Dot for trading
purpase) issued 1563 1,813 1789 1732
— debt securities issued BL,196 BZ2,001 BiLE19 BO,G25
— subardinated bonds imued B9.555 126,269 B9.937 126,041
— certificates of interbank deposit issued 438,830 341,310 431,706 335475
— comveriible corporate bands 37830 — AnTI0 —
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57 Fair value (Continued)
{a) Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value (Continued)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities abowve at fair value hierarchy is as follows:

31 December 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Frnancial assets:
Financial investment
— at amoctised cost L0463 663,508 173259 938,830
Financial liabilities:
Debit securities issued
— certificates of depesit (not for trading
purpase] issued — 1,789 — 1,789
— debt securities issued — BOG1Y — BOLELT
— subordinated bonds issued 5.TES 84,148 — BR.A3T
— certificates of interbank deposit isnied —_ 430,706 — 431,706
— corvertible corporate bonds — 3770 — 37730

31 December 2018

Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Flhandal assets:
Financial imvestment
— ot amortised cost 2,109 501,890 274,780 TTB. 779
Flnandal Habillties:
Diebt securities issued
— certificates of deposit (mot for trading
purpose) issued — 2,752 — 2752
— debit securities isu=d - B0525 — B0G2S
— subordinated bonds issued 5,642 120,399 — 126,041
— certificates of interbank dq:!nlit jssued — 335,475 — 555,4?5
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Fair value (Continued)

{b) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured ar fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
(Note (L) Mote (1)) (Note (1))
As at 31 December 2019
Recurring fair value measurements
Assers
Loans and advances to customers at fair value
through other comprehenshre income
— loans — 923 — 9232
— discounted bills — 307,867 — 307,867
Loans and advances to customers ar fair valae
through current prafit or loss
— personal loans — — 5,915 6,915
Financial investments ar fair value through
profit or loss
— debit securities 2,086 30,417 10367 42,870
— investment funds 9,952 196,224 12,305 218,491
— certiflcates of deposic — 46,792 — 46,792
— wealth management products — 133 E19 a5
— equity Instruments L.1E5 — 7,239 8,424
— trust investment plans 17 — — 17
Financlal investments at fair value through
other comprehenshee income
— debit securities B6,557 516,989 13,248 616,794
— certificates of deposic 351 4,505 — 4, Bhib
Financial investments designated at fair value
through other comprehenstve income
— equity instruments 205 123 2. 708 3,036
Drerivative financial assets
— interest rate derivatives 2 5201 —_ 5203
— currency derheatves — 11,700 — 11,700
— precious metals dervatives — 214 — 214
— credit dedvatives —_ —_ —_ —_
Total finandal assets measured at falr value 100,375 1,121,087 53,0601 1,275,063
Liabilieles
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
— short position in debt securities 132 — — 132
— structured produces — — 715 715
Drerivative financial labilities
— interest rate derivatives — 5,176 — 5,176
— currency derhvarives 9 10,899 —_ 10,928
— precious metals derbvathves — Tz — Tz
— commodity dedvathves — —_ — —
Total finandal llabllitles measated
at falr value 1651 16,807 715 17,683

2019 Ansuel Report 305

364/407



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2009
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

57 Fair value (Continned)

(b} Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair valoe (Continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
(Mow= () MHoe= () (Mot (1))

As at 31 December 2018
Recurring fair value measurements
Assets
Loans and advances to customers at fair value
through other comprehensive income
— loans — 137 — 137
— discounted bills —_ 96,383 —_ Q6,383
Financial imvestments at fair value through
profit or loss

— debt securities 2,815 62,319 G.TBG 71820
— investment funds 4,879 178,451 5.846 189,176
— certificates of deposit —_ 16,713 — 16,713
— wealth management produces — — 116 114
— equity instruments F40 — 3,921 4 441
— trust imvestment p]nnl — — 2,486 365,486

Financial investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
— debt securities 4, 06 421,783 4,726 491,015
— certificates of deposit % 11,982 — 12544
Financial investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

— equity instruments 295 — 2,412 2,707
Deerivative financial assets

— interest race derbvatives B B098 — i, 106

— currency derivatives — 74 825 1 T4 826

— precious metals derhvatrives — 1,048 — 1,04!

— credic derivatives —_ 11 _ 11
Total financlal assets measured at falr value TAT05 B19.750 50,294 943,749
Liabilities

Fimancial liabilities ar fair value through

profit or loss

— short position in debe securities an2 — — a62
Drerivative financial liabilities

— intersst rate derbraties 12 5862 = 5874

— currency dervatives — 24 500 1 24 501

— precious metals derivatives — 1,170 —_— 1,170

— commodity derivatives — 1 e 1
Total financial liabilitles measared

at falr valae a74 31,533 1 2608
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57 Fair value (Continuedy

{b) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value (Continued)
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58 Related parties

{a) Relationship of related parties

i} The Group is contmlled by CITIC Corpomation Limited (incorporated in mainland China), which
owns 65.37% of the Bank’s shares. The ultimate parent of the Group is CITIC Group (incorporated in
mainland China).

{il}  Related parties of the Group inchade subsidiaries, joint wentures and associates of CITIC Corporation
Limited and CITIC Group. The Bank entered into banking tramsactions with its subsidiaries ar arm’s
length in the ardinary course of business. These transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

The Bank issued 2, 147,469,539 shares to CHTC through private placement on 31 December 2015, representing
4.39% shares of the Bank. A non-sxecutive director d:li&untﬂd'b}rm was n.ppDLn'bnd on 17 March 2018, and
the appointment was approved by the CBIRC on 24 June 2016, CNTC is thereafter regarded as the Group’s
related party as it has significant influence upon the Bank.

In P-d:!:u.m]r 2015, Xinhu Zhnngbau ., Lid. n.l:ql.l.Lmd 2,202 579,000 H shares of the Bank 'ﬂ:.mu.d:. its Id:.nﬂ}r
owned subsidiary, representing 4.58% shares of the Bank. A non-executive director designated by Xinhu Zhonghao
Co, Led. was appointed on 17 Manch 2016, and the appointment was ap proved by the CBIRC on 16 Movember
201 &, Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Lid. is thereafier reparded as the Group’s related party, as it has significant influence
upon the Bank. On 20 Movember 201 &, Xinho Zl.-o.u,gbm Caon,, Lid. , increassd its |h.n.n='|:.a]dLu£ o 2,020, 177 000
H shares of the Bank through s wholly owned subsidiary, representing 4.74% shares of the Bank. In October
2017, Xinkn Zhongbao Co., Led. increased its sharehalding o 2,446.265,000 H shares of the Bank through
its whaolly cwned subsidiary, representing 4.999% shares of the Bank.

Paly Group acquired 27,216,400 A shares of the Bank through the secondary market, representing 0.06% shares
of the Bank. A non-executive director designated by Poly (Group was appointed and sent to the bank on 25 May
201 8. Poly Group is thersafter regarded as the Group’s related party as it has significant influence upon the Bank.

ib) Related party transactions

Dhuring the relevant years, the Group entered into transactions with related parties in the ordinany course of its
banking businesses including lending, assets transfer (i.e. issuance of asset-backed securities in the form of public
placement), wealth management, investment, deposit, settlement and clearing, off-balance sheet transactions,
and purchase, sale and leases of property. These banking transactions were conducted under normal commercial
terms and conditions and priced at the relevant market rates prevailing at the time of each transaction.
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58 Related parties (Continned)

i(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

In addition, transactions during the relevant year and the comesponding balances cutstanding at the reporting
dates are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019

Ultimate holding Other major
cotmpany atd equlty holdets Assoclates and
affiliates Nowe (1) Jolnt ventures
Profit and loss

Interest income 1426 T93 253

Fee and commission income and
ather operating income 2073 252 —
Interest expense [TBI) (1,210 (34
Net rmd]ng loss 17 — —
Orther service fees (1,501) (1,050) (3

Year ended 31 Diecember 2018

Ultimate holding Other major
company and equity holders Assoclates and
affiliates Nate (i) jolnt ventures
Profit and loss

Interest income 344 4 %

Fee and commission Income and
other operating income 1.240 2 —
Interest expense (445) (8G9 (17
Met h:uﬂn.z zain {32] — —
Other service fees (1.398) — —
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58 Related parties (Continued)

i(b) Related party ransactions |Continned)

31 December 2019

Ultimate holding Oiher major
company ahd equlty holdets Assoclates and
affillates Note (L) Jolnt ventures
Assets
Sross loans and advances to customers 30,742 23,372 —
Less: allowance for impairment losses on
loans and advances (527) (572 —
Loans and advances to customers (net) 31,215 22, B —
Dieposits with banks and non-bank
financial institutions 51 — 21,056
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank financial instimarions 2,579 — —
Drerivative financial assets 207 J— —
Investment in financial assets
— at fair value through profit or loss S0l —_ —_
— ot amortised cost 1,722 3,500 —
— at fair value through other
comprehenshve income 26 1.237 —
— designated at fair value through other
comprehenstve income 107 — —
Investments in assoclates and
joint ventures — — 3672
Right-cfuse assets T4 5 —
Orher assets 11,183 150 —_
Liabilities
Diepasits from banks and non-bank
financial Institutions 30,219 2,340 1,511
Placements from banks and non-bank
financial institutions 3 J— —
Drerivative financial liabilities Fi2 — —
Drepasits from customens 63,050 57,112 51
Employee benefits payable 12 — —
Lease liabilig: 7O 4 —
Other liabilities 1,622 — —
Off-balance sheet Items
Guarantees and letters of credic v 935 —
Acceptances 2,336 258 —
Entrusted funds 35,264 3,048 —
Entrusted loans 11,9689 8117 —_
Funds raised from inwvestors of
non-principle guarantesd weealth
management produces 2.933 — —
Guarantees recebed 56,903 36,951 —
Mominal amount of derbarives 55.574 — —
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58 Related parties (Continned)

i(b) Related party transactions (Continued)
31 December 2018

Ultimate holding Other major
company and equity holders Assoclates and
affiliates Naote (i) jolnt ventures
Assers
Gross loans and adwance:s to customers 10,545 14,3853 —
Less: allowance for impalrment losses on
loans and advamces (258) (417) —
Loans and advances to customers {net) 10,387 13,945 —
Dleposits with banks and non-bank
financial institations — — 5. 3644
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank financial institutions 1.547 — —
Drervarive financial assets &0 —_ —
Investment in financial assets
— at fair value through profic or loss 310 — —
— at amortsed cost 4,258 4.318 —
Investments in asscciares and joine
Ventwres — — 3.BEl
Oither asseis 10,941 — =
Liabilieles
Dreposits from banks and non-bank
financial instliutions 25.710 178 1,201
Placements from banks and non-bank
financial instliutions 2503 — —
Dlervative financial Habilities 24 — —
Dleposits from customers 37 A96 41,756 17
Oreher liabilicies 1,222 — —
Off-balance sheet | teins
Guarantess and letrers of credit 1,828 452 —
tances 72 — —
Entrusted funds 45.729 6,641 —
Entrusted loans 18514 12,540 —
Funds raised from imvestoms of
non-principle puaranteed wealth
management products F07 —_ —
Guarantess recebred 52,086 9,538 —
Mominal amount of dervatives Ta50 —_ —
Moo
00 Otbar majec aquity boldars inchuds CNTC, Yinhn Thonghan Ce, Lid. end Paly Goaup.
The disclzasd caf | tha ol et sy e o S bl p et o i iz st e ezt

periods. The betwmen the mubridarie of CHTC/Paly Grawp and the Graup s nat aigeificant 1o 3010,
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58 Related parties (Continued)

i) Key management personnel and their close family members and related companies

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including divectors, supervisors and executive

oifflcers.

The Group entered into banking transactions with key management personnel and their close family members
and those companies controlled or jointly contmolled by them in the normal counse of business. Other than those
disclosed below, there was no materlal transactions and balances berween the Group and these individuals, their
close family members or those companies controlled or jointly controlled by them.

The aggregate amount of rdevant loans outstanding as at 31 Diecember 2019 to directoms, supervisors and
executive officers amounted to RMB1.51million (as at 31 December 201 8: RMB0.40 million).

The aggregated compensations for directors, supervisors and executive officers of the Bank as at 31 December
2019 amountsd to EMBAL74 million l::n.l at 31 December 2018 RMB38.59 m.iuhn}l.

(d) Supplementary defined contribution plan

The Group has established a supplementary defined contribution plan for i qualified employees which is
administered by CITIC Group (Mote 37 (b))

{e) Transactions with state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currenty predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the
PRC government through its government authorities, agencies, affiliations and other arpanisations (collectively
referred to as “state-owned entities”).

Transactions with state-owned entitles, including CHTC's indirect subsidiaries and Poly Group's indivect
subsidiaries, include but are not limited to the following:

—  lending and deposit taking;

—  taking and placing of inter-bank balances;

— derivative transacticns;

—  entrusted lending and other custody services;

—  imsunance and securities agency, and other intermediary services;

—  mle, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by state-cwned entities;

—  punchase, sale and leases of property and other assets; and

— rendering and recebving of wtilities and other services,

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group's banking business on terms similar to
those that would have been entered into wich non-state-owned entities. The Group has also established s pricing
strategy and approval processes for major preducts and services, such as loans, deposits and commission income.
The pricing strategy and approval processes do not depend on whether the customers are state-owned entities

or not. The Directors are of opinion that none of these transactions are materal related party transactions that
require separate disclosure,
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50 Structured entities

{2) Unconseclidated structured entities sponsored and managed by third parties

The Group imwests in unconsolidated structured entities which are sponsored and managed by other entities
for investment return, and records trading gains or losses and interest income thersfrom. These unconso lidaved
structured entities primarily include wealth management products, trust investment plans, imvestment management
products, investment funds and asset-backed securities.

The following table sets out an analysis of the carrying amounts of interests held by the Group asat 31 December
2019 in the structured entities sponsored by third party instioutions, as well as an analysis of the line items in
the consolidated statement of financlal position under which relevant assets are recognised:

31 December 2019
Cartying anount

Fluandlal

Financal Iovestimnents

lovestments atfalt valie

at falk value Finaichl  through ather
thioagh profit  Livestments at Comprehensive Madmom loss
ot lss  umortdsed cost Incaime Total exposile
Wealih management product of ccler banks 133 — — 133 133

[ 2 procucts managed by
sECIKities companies — 186,217 — 185,217 186,217
Turst management plans 17 160,248 — 160,255 160,355
Asset-backed = curides BT 101,584 13zxn 233993 133,93
[eresmment funds 11840 —_ —_ 218491 118491
Tel 118,728 448,143 132220 TIL0R TR
31 Diecember 201E
Carning amount

Financial

Financial investments

irvesments ar fair value

a fair value Finndd  thoough ather
theouph profie i at  Comprehens Maxmum lesz
orlom  amordsed cost inmme Tonl exposE
Wealih management product of ccher banks 16 — — 116 116

[ 2 procucts managed by

SECIKities companies —_ 3,51 —_ ng,5a 228,502
Turst management plans 26436 151,582 = 174,068 I7E 068
Asseibacked e curities 1239 9,846 6194 103,129 103123
[eresmment funds 189,176 — — 189,176 LERLL7E
Tonl 117,067 419,930 61.3H 69,5991 658,991

The maximum exposures to sk in the above wealth management products, trust investment plans, imvestment
management products, investment funds and asset-backed securities managed by securities companies and trust
imvestment funds are the carrylng value of the assets held by the Group at the reporting date. The maximum
exposures to risk in the asset-backed securities are the amortised cost or fair value of the assets held by the
Group ar the reporting date In accordance with the line ivems under which these assets are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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50 Stmictured entities (Continned)

(b Unconsolidated stroctured entities sponsored and managed by the Group

Unconsalidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group mainly include non-principal guaranteed
wealth management products. The wealth management products invest in a range of primarily fived-rate assets,
most typically money market instruments, debt securities and loan assets. As the manager of these wealth
management products, the Group invests, on behalf of s customers, in assets as described in the imvestment
plan related to each weealth management product and receives fee and commission income

As ar 31 December 2019, the total assets invested by these outstanding non-principal guaranteed wealth
management products lssuwed by the Group amounted to BMEB1,200,192 million (31 December 2018
EME1.058.907 million).

Dhuring the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s interest in these weal th management products included
fee and commission income of BMB935 million I:,QI)IE: RMB2 528 mlﬂinn}l; interest income of RMB1 259
million {2018 RMB2.271 million) and interest expense of RMBS&46 million (2018 RMBA20 millicn).

As ar 31 December 2019, the placements and financlal assets held under resale agreements from the Group
with these wealth management producis sponscred by the Group amounted to BMB53.500 million (31
Diecember 2018: RMBG3,500 million), while the placements from these wealth management products to the
Gmup amountsd to EMBA% 162 million I:51 December 201 8: RMB44 505 m.iuhn). DurLu,g the yEar ended
31 December 2019, the amount of maximum exposure of the placements and financial assets held under resale
agreements from the Group with these wealth management products sponsored by the Group was RMB&0,OTT
millicn {31 December 2018 RMBGR, 144 million), and the amount of maximum exposure of the placements
from these wealth management products to the Group was EMBE12.711 million (31 December 2018: RMB13.435
million). These transactions were conducted under normal business terms and conditions.

In 2019, the Gmp p'urd:.nnad flxed income assets of RMB23.875 millicn {20 18: Nﬂ:l from abowve-mentionsd
structured entities, and the considerations of such assets were based on the fair value of their undedying assets
at the time of purchase.

On December 31, 2019, the assets under the abovementioned financial management services included
BEMB166.444 million (31 December 2018: RMB188,892 million) managed by subsidiares and associared
enterprises of the CITIC Group.

() Principal guarantesd wealth management products s]:lonsnrcd and managcd 1:-}" the Group

Principal gpuarantesd wealth management products sponsored and managed by the Group represent produces
to which the Group has guaranteed the investor's principal imvestment, regardless of their actual performance.
Investmnents made by these products and the corresponding liabilities to the imeestors of these products are
presented in the respective financial assers and financial labilities ivems in accordance with the Group’s accounting
pelicies based on the nature of the assets and liabilities.
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Transfers of financial assets

The Group entered into transactions which involved transbers of financial assets including securitisation transactions,
structured transfers on assets usufruce, transfers of loans including non-performing loans, and financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements.

These transactions were entered into in the normal course of business by which recognised financial assets were transferred
to third parties or structured entities. Transfers of assets may ghve rise to Rall or partial de-recognition of the financial
assets concemned. Chn the other hand, where transferred assets do not qualify for de-recognition as the Group has
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continues to recognise the transferred assets.

Deetails of the financial assets sold under repurchase agreements are set forth in Mote 35. Detalls of securitisation
transactions, structured transfers on assets usufruct and loan transfer transactions conducted by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 twtally BMB77.356 million {year ended 31 December 2018: RMB227.518 million) are set
forth below.

Securitisation transactions and structured transfers on assets usufruct

The Group enters Into securitisation transactions by which it transfers loans to structured entities which lssue asset-
backed securities to imvestors. The Group assessed among other factors, whether or not to derecognise the transferred
assets by evaluating the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of the assets and whether it has relinquished
its contrals over these assets based on the criteria as detailed in Mote 4 (c) and Note 5.

Dhuring the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into securitlsarion transactions and stractured transfers
on assets usufruct backed by financial assets transferred with book value before impairment of RMB67.562 million (year
ended 31 December 2018: RMB192.,6685 million). RMB44,594 million of this balance {year ended 31 December 2018:
BME7.197 million) was in respect of performing loans and the Group conchaded thae ie had contiming imolvement
in these asets. The Group also recognised other assets and other liabilicles of RMB5.859 million {year ended 31
Deecember 2018 BMB&97 million) arising from such contimuing invobrement. The remaining balance of the loans
transferred were qualified for full de-recognition.

Loan transfers

Diuring the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group also through other types of transactions transferred loans of
beok value before impairment of RMB9.794 millon (during the year of 2018: RMBE34.853 million). All of them are
non-performing loans. The Group carred out assessment based on the criteria as detailed in Mote 4 {c) and Note 5
(v} and concluded that these transferred assets qualified for full de-recognition.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consclidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liabilicy simultanecusly.

As at 31 December 2019, the amount of the financial assets and financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements are not matedal o the Group.
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62 Statements of financial position and changes in equity of the Bank

Statement of financial position

31 Decetnber 31 December
019 2018
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 455,377 533.393
Dreposits with banks and non-bank financial instioutions 108,523 TE.758
Precious metals [%: 1Y 4088
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial
institutions 164,896 1443654
Drerivative financlal assets 11,250 26571
Financial assets held under resale agreements 9,954 10,790
Loans and advances to customers 3,673,860 3,285,963
Financial investments
— ar fair vahue through profit or loss 308,577 293,542
— at amortised cost 924,028 TITHA83
— ar fair value through other comprehensive income 557,543 449,350
— designated at fair value through other comprehensive income 2,581 2,242
Investments in subsidiades n.ndjcdnr Ventures 25,163 25008
Poperty, plant and equipment 21,931 20956
H.Id:.l'—af-m assets 11,743 —_—
Intangjble assets L7 1.301
Dreferred tax assets 31,33 22,458
Crther assets T, 114 33,108
Total asets 6,393,086 5710675
Liabilities
E-arm'wlngl from ceniral banks 240,258 2RG.350
Dreposits from banks and non-bank finandial institutions 55,451 TE2. 768
Macement: from banks and non-bank financial insticutions 42741 71 482
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or lass — 962
Drertvative financial liabilities 10,907 25,784
Financial assets sald under mp1.|.|:rJ:|.n.||: agreements 111,838 120,095
Dreposits from customers 3,824,031 3,397 318
Accrued staff costs 10,879 9.508
Taxes payahle a9 4 08RG
Lease liabilities 10,255 —
Provisions 6,027 4944
Drebt securities issued 638,839 541053
Crther Habilities 35,606 44,800
Total Habiltes 5,894,261 5,289,150
Equlty
Share l:n.pl'hﬂ] 48,935 4R.035
Preference shares 78,083 34955
Capital reserve 61,359 61,359
Crther comprehensive income 8332 5,167
Surplus reserve 39,009 34 450
Genenl resenve B, 648 73370
Retained earnings 184,459 163,289
Total equlty 498 825 421525
Total Habiltdes ahd equliy 6,393,086 710,675

3145 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

375/407



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2019
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

62 Statements of financial position and changes in equity of the Bank (Continned)

Statement of changes in equity

Othet
Slre  Preference Caphil  comprehensies Sutple Genenal Letned
apind shain raeve Lncaine lestre reebre sty Towl equliy
oz 3 Deeeher 2113
Mo ] Jamnary 2013 8435 HEH 339 ST His Tiam 163,268 135
i) Het pofit - - - - - - aan {55m
i) Cebser comguoeh evei s iovaxe - - - 115 - - - LIES
T campeehen sive incoome - — — 115 — - s &y
[iilasesiar cpitd
— limt coomenible boods - HWH - - - - - EAk
[ Jasme ciber e bmstmmenn
—Prfrred seck - - — — — - — —
— lndued capind s - B - - - - - e
Fej Profic sp rpricians
— Appenpriaions mmiphs resere - - - - 45 (35%) -
— Mppropiations m gensral rmerve - - - - T {ram) -
— Diridena] discibution o astioy
sharholders of the bask. - - - - — - {1,255 (11255)
— Dividend distrbation m prefesce
shachobders af the bask - - - - - - a3 (13%)
Ja 7 Deremher 2019 1B435 a3 L35 B3 L] B 164,438 LA
Chher
ayil dure reEne inome R reene camings Tl ey
dsz 31 Deceber 217 255 I B354 13789 Rk T 147,562 L
Chuneges in accomnting peicy - - = iR [h2 ] - 44 L]
Aoz ] [y 2013 55 Hafi £L37 ] M BIE IHH Em
i Mt profit - - - - - - 057 L)
i) Oebser comgureh evei s iovaxe = — = 10471 - - - 47
Tocal compeeensive income - - — 471 - - o057 i
[ Profi: spponpriarians
— Appropriations m yurghs reserve - - - - 6 - (4,20 -
— Divideed] distribwiion o asdinuy
starholders of the bask. = = - - - - L2773 [La77E
— Dedderd listrbution m prfresce
shantoli of te bak. - - - - - - (L3 (L3580
Ao 3 Dezmber 2013 55 HIn 61,35 J67 Wi Tam L5336 AL
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63 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors

{a) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments
The remuneration of the Bank’s director and superdisor is set out below:

Pnrﬁeymrcnddal December 20019
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Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2019
{Amomrty in millions of Renminbl onles othermwise sated)

63 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (Cantinued)

(a) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)
Pu:'ﬂ::}rﬂ:cu.dud 31 December 2018
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Chapter 11 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the pear ended 31 December 2009
{Amommts in milicns of Renminhi pmless otharmise stated)

63 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (Coatimued)

{a) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

ny Mrr. L Qangping, Mr. Csa Guoqlang, Mrr. Huosng Fang, Mr. Wan Uming, and Mr. Dang Changqing dd nat cecdve any «Twe of the foar
dimcizes ars dulagund by CITIC Linloed and CTTIC Grezap §pacme camp anda ™). Thair smclomano wees pald byt Grosp. Tha other e
! and thae sp arw dalaguind rurp Iy by Yicho Zhangtan Co., Led, CHTC and Poly Gmoup and provids smdcs o bodh tha

parnt compunry and the bunk. Thalr emel 1L am nee diclamd dus to the diflculty o differensiat che servoe provided by the
faar dirscicon and the mpscriscr.

111} Mr. Sun Dwabun revigrad in Fshnuary, 1019

] Mr. Cheng Fusharg resigrad tn My, 2010

(b} Orther benefits and interests

Mo direct or indirece retirement benefits and termination benefits were pn.l.d to directors as at 31 December
2019 {as ar December 2018 Nil).

Far the year ended 31 Diecember 2019 and 31 December 2018, the balance of loans and advances from the
Group to Directors, Supervisors or certain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the Directors
or Supervisors was not significant.

Mo slgnificant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the Compamy
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a materal interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subslsted at the end of the year or at any time during the year 2019 (2018: Mil).

64 Events after the reporting period

{a)  Since the novel coronavims outhreak (hereinafter referred to as the “covid-19 cuthreak™) in January 2020, and
the disease contral and prevention efforts have been going on across China and other countries and regions. The
Group has been devoting full attention and resources to implementing the state’s decisions and deployment,
applying itself in supporting the real economy, and facilitating disease control and prevention through effective
financial services.

The covid-19 outbreak has created considerable impact on the ovemmll economic activities and the business
openations of certain enterprises, and accordingly has affected the credit quality of and return on the financial assets
of the Group, the extent of which will depend on the development and duration of the disease, effectiveness of
disease control and prevention efforts, the impact of the disease on customers in different regions and industries,
as well as the implementation and effectiveness of relevant regulation policies. The Group will stay alert to and
updated on the development of the disease, and contime to assess the impact of the covid-19 outhreak on the
financial position and operating results of the Group and actively take response actions as needed.

(b}  With the approvals of the regulatory authorities and the Board of Diirecears, CITHC Bank was cleared to make
a public offering of RMB350 billion special financial bonds for small and micro enterprises (Special 5mE Bonds)
in the national interbank bond markes.

On 18 March 2020, CITIC Bank isued the 2020 Series 1 Sp::l.n] SmE Bonds. The funds raised will be used to
provide loans to small and micro enterprises to help them overcome the difficult period cansed by the covid-19

outhreak. The H:.mu-}r:n.r bonds have a coupon rate of 2.75%. The Seres 2 will be issued as needed, with o total
amount of no more than RMB20 billion.

65 Comparative data

Certain comparative data has been restated to conform to the presentation of the current year.

320 China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
20.37 18.52 17.32 17.48 16.75
18.55 15.06 15.75 16.01 14._86
19.35 16.35 16.59 16.64 15.81
18.56 16.78 17.28 16.16 15.60
100
2019 2019 2019 2019 10 2019 11 2019 12
15.82 15.77 15.30 15.43 15.63 15.68
15.65 14.86 14.88 15.08 15.35 15.42
15.74 15.11 15.13 15.32 15.51 15.57
100

15.47 2020

100
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
(incorporated in the People’ s Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 1 to 206, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSs”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the Hong Kong
Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of  most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the  consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarised as follows:
Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers and financial investments

Consolidation of structured entities  Non-principal guaranteed wealth  management products
De-recognition of financial assets
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the

Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit losses for |oans and advances to customers and financia investments

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5(i), Note 22 and Note 23to  We evaluated and tested the design and operational

the consolidated financial statements. effectiveness of the internal controls relating to the
measurement of ECL for loans and advances to customers, and

As at 31 December 2019, gross loans and advances to  financial investments, primarily including:

customers and accrued interest included for the purpose

of expected credit loss assessment, as presented inthe (1) Governance over ECL models, including the selection,

CITIC Bank’s consolidated balance sheet, amounted to approval and application of modelling methodology; and

RMB 4,001,176 million, for which the management theinternal controls relating to the on-going monitoring

recognized an impairment allowance of RMB 115,956 and optimization of the models;

million; total financial investments and accrued interest

included for the purpose of expected credit loss (2) Internal controls relating to significant management

assessment amounted to RMB 1,559,790 million, for judgments and assumptions, including the review and

which the management recognized an impairment approva of model selections, parameters estimation,

allowance of RMB 8,407 million. identification of significant increase in credit risk,
defaults or credit-impaired loans, and forward-looking

The balances of loss alowances for the loans and measurement;

advances to customers and financial investments

represent the management’ s best estimates at the (3) Internal controls over the accuracy and compl eteness of

bal ance sheet date of expected credit losses (“ECL") key inputs used by the models;

under International Financial Reporting Standard 9:

Financial Instruments expected credit lossesmodels.  (4) Internal controlsrelating to estimated future cash flows
and calculations of present values of such cash flows for
corporate loans and advances and financial investments
in stage 3;

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for model-
based measurement.
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How our audiit addressed the

Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit losses for |oans and advances to customers and financia investments

(continued)

The management assesses whether the credit
risk of loans and advances to customers and
financial investments have increased
significantly sincetheir initial recognition, and
apply athree-stage impairment model to
calculate their ECL. For corporate loans and
advances and financial investments classified
into stages 1 and 2, and all personal loans, the
management assesses |oss allowance using the
risk parameter modelling approach that
incorporates key parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default,
exposure at default and discount rates. For
corporate loans and advances and financial
investments in stage 3, the management
assesses loss allowance by estimating the cash
flows from the loans.

The measurement models of ECL involves
significant management judgments and
assumptions, primarily including the following:

(1) Criteriafor determining whether or not
there was a significant increase in
credit risk, or adefault or impairment
loss was incurred;

The substantive procedures we preformed primarily
included:

We reviewed the modelling methodol ogies for ECL
measurement, and assessed the reasonableness of the
models selection, key parameters estimation,
significant judgements and assumptions in relation to
themodels. We tested whether or not the
measurement model s reflect the modelling

methodol ogies documented by the management on a
sample basis.

We selected samples, in consideration of the financial
information and non-financial information of the
borrowers, relevant external evidence and other
factors, to assess the appropriateness of the
management’ s identification of significant increasein
credit risk, defaults and credit-impaired loans.

For forward-looking measurement, we reviewed the
management’s model analysis of their selection of
economic indicators, economic scenarios and
weightings employed, assessed the reasonabl eness of
the prediction of economic indicators and performed
sensitivity analysis of economic indicators, economic
scenarios and weightings.

In addition, we assessed the reasonabl eness of the
selection of significant uncertain factors, its
application and measurement in the management
overlay adjustments, and examined the accuracy of
the relevant mathematical calculations.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers and financial investments

(continued)
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(2) Economic indicatorsfor forward-
looking measurement, and the
application of economic scenarios and
weightings;

(3) Management overlay adjustments due
to significant
uncertain factors not covered in the
models;

(4) The estimated future cash flows for
corporate loans and advances and
financial investments in stage 3.

The Group established governance processes
and controls for the measurement of ECL.

For measuring ECL, the management adopted
complex models, employed numerous
parameters and data inputs, and applied
significant management judgments and
assumptions. In addition, the exposures of the
loans and advances to customers and financial
investments, the loss allowance and provision
accrued involve significant amounts. In view

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

We examined magjor data inputs to the ECL models on
selected samples, including historical data and data at
the measurement date, to assess their accuracy and
completeness. We also performed walk-through testing
and reconciliation of the transmission of major data
inputs between the models measurement engines and
the information systems, to verify their accuracy and
completeness.

For corporate loans and advances and financial
investments in stage 3, we examined, on a sample basis,
forecasted future cash flows prepared by the Group
based on financial information of borrowers and
guarantors, latest collateral valuations and other
available information together with discount ratesin
supporting the computation of loss allowance.

Based on our procedures performed, in the context of
the inherent uncertainties associated with measurement
of ECL for loans and advances to customers, and
financial investments, the models, key parameters,
significant judgements and assumptions adopted by
management and the measurement results were

of these reasons, we identified this as a key considered acceptable.

audit matter.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of Structured Entities  Non-principal Guaranteed Wealth Management Products
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Refer to Note 4(a), Note 5(v) and Note 59 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Asat 31 December 2019, non-principal
guaranteed wealth management products
issued and managed by the group involved
structured entities, and amounts for structured
entitiesincluded in the consolidation scope
and those not included were disclosed in Note
5(v)and Note 59 respectively.

Management’s decision on whether or not to
consolidate structured entities was based on an
assessment of the Group’s power, itsvariable
returns and the ability to exercise its power to
influence the variable returns from these
structured entities.

We focused on the consolidation assessment
and judgment made by management involving
the structured entities for non-principal
guaranteed WM Ps during our audit, as whether
or not to consolidate these entities involved
significant judgment.
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We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of management’s relevant controls over
the consolidation of structured entities for non-
principal guaranteed WMPs. These controls primarily
included the review and approval of the contractual
terms, the resultsin variable return calculations, and
the consolidation assessment conclusions for these
structured entities.

We selected samples of structured entities for non-
principal guaranteed WM Ps and performed the
following tests:

assessed the Group' s contractual rights and
obligations in light of the transaction structures,
and evaluated the Group’s power over the
structured entities;

performed independent analysis and tests on the
variable returns from the structured entities,
including but not limited to commission income
and asset management fees earned, retention of
residual income, and, if any, liquidity and other
support provided to the structured entities;

assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or
an agent through analysis of the scope of the
Group’s decision-making authority, its
remuneration entitlement, other interests the Group
held, and the rights held by other parties.

evaluated and examined on the appropriateness of
disclosures relating to structured entitiesin the
consolidated financial statements.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found
management's judgement relating to the consolidation
and disclosure of structured entities for non-principal
guaranteed WM Ps acceptable in all material respects.
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Key Audit Matter

De-recognition of Financial Assets

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5(iv) and Note 60 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group entered into transactions which involved
transfers of financial assetsincluding
securitisation transactions, structured transfers
on assets usufruct, and transfers of non-
performing loans.

Management analysed the Group’s contractual
rights and obligations in connection with such
transfers, and assessed the extent to which the
associated risks and rewards of ownership were
transferred by using models to determine
whether the de-recognition criteria were met.
Where necessary, the Group assessed whether
it had relinquished its control over the
transferred financial assets to determine
whether the de-recognition criteria were met.

The de-recognition assessment relating to the
transfer of financial assetsinvolved significant
judgment from management, and as such, we
focused our audit on the de-recognition of these
financial assets.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the relevant controls over transfers of
financial assets, including the review and approval of
the structure designs and contractual terms of the
transactions, the approval of models for testing the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership and the key
parameters and assumptions used in the models, as
well asthereview and approval of management’s
assessment results.

We selected samples and read through transaction
agreements to assess the contractual rights and
obligations of the Group, and whether the Group
transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows
from the financia assets or the transfer qualified for
the “pass through” of those cash flows, to independent
third parties.

We also assessed the appropriateness of the models,
the parameters and assumptions, the discount rates,
and the variability factors. We also tested the
mathematical accuracy of the calculations.

For financial assets where the Group neither retained
nor transferred substantially all of the risks and
rewards associated with their ownership, we analysed
whether the Group had relinquished its controls over
these financial assets, and if the Group had a
continuing involvement in these transferred financial
assets.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found
management’ s assessment over de-recognition of
transferred financial assets acceptable.

Other Information
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The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
arerequired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure regquirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for ng the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statementsas a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin interna
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Chan Kwong Tak.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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